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A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY OF THE MOUNT VERNON CITY COUNCIL
HELD ON WEDNESDAY, APRIL 24, 2024
Scheduled for 7:00 pm in the City Council Chambers, City Hall, Mount Vernon, New York.

*#% This meeting was held in the City Council Chambers, with virtual participation via ZOOM and
CMVNY Facebook. The meeting was not closed to the public. ***

PRESIDING: Danielle Browne, Esq., Acting President

OTHERS: Tanesia M. Walters, City Clerk; Antoinette Anderson, Legislative Aide; Brian G.
Johnson, Corporation Counsel; Johan Powell, Deputy Corporation Counsel.

CALL TO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Acting Council President Danielle Browne, called the meeting to order and provided general
house-keeping rules, including encouraging citizens to share the meeting on social media and what to do
“in case of emergency”. Acting Council President Browne explained the 3-minute-plus-1 public
comment rule. She then asked a Councilperson to lead the council in the Pledge of Allegiance. Council
President then proceeded to the Public Speakers session of the evening (listed below as public
comment).

PRESENTATIONS

2017 Annual Independent Audit Presentation by PKF O'Connor Davies
PUBLIC COMMENT

REFERRAL SESSION

Roll Call administered by City Clerk Tanesia M. Walters

REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES AND ACTION THEREON
To the Council:

LEGISLATION AND PUBLIC WORKS

1. Office of the Mayor: An ordinance authorizing the Mayor to attend the Democratic Mayors
Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” in Washington DC. (May 9 - 11, 2024)

Code: LPW

Attachments: Referral Letter - DMA Champion of
Democracy Summit.pdf
Democratic Mayors Assoc. Summit

Agenda.pdf
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2.

Office of the Mayor: An ordinance authorizing the Mayor's attendance at the 2024 New York
Conference of Mayors and Municipal Officials (NYCOM) Annual Membership Conference
(May 15 - 17, 2024).

Code: LPW
Attachments: Referral Letter - NYCOM 2024 Annual
Member Conference.pdf

NYCOM - 2024 Annual Meeting Agenda.pdf

Office of the Mayor: An ordinance authorizing the Mayor to attend the 2024 EPA Local
Government Advisory Committee’s (LGAC) Public Meeting (Washington DC, May 21 and May
22,2024).

Code: LPW
Attachments: Referral Letter - EPA LGAC Public
Meeting.pdf

Department of Public Works: An ordinance proclaiming May 19, 2024 through May 25, 2024, as
National Public Works Week

Code: LPW
Attachments: Legislation for DPW WEEK 2024.pdf

Department of Recreation: An ordinance authorizing the Co-Sponsorship of the Annual
Community Baby Shower (co-sponsorship with Senator Bailey's office on May 10, 2024, from
4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the Doles Community Center).

Code: LPW

Attachments: community baby shower -new.header date.pdf

Department of Recreation: An ordinance authorizing the Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration
Co-sponsorship at Hartley Park (with Miztili LLC).

Attachments: Cultrual Celebration.pdf
PD Response.pdf

Department of Recreation: An ordinance authorizing the Department to co-sponsor the Cinco de
Mayo Celebration in collaboration with Westchester Latinos Unidos

Code: HR
Attachments: Cinco de Mayo 2024.pdf
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8.

City Council: An ordinance Repealing Outdated Procurement Legislation and Adopting an
Updated Procurement Policy for the City of Mount Vernon, New York

Code: LPW

Attachments: Procurement Repeal.pdf

To the Council:

10.

11.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Youth Bureau: An ordinance authorizing the Mayor to retroactively enter into an agreement
between the City of Mount Vernon and Barrington Irving Technical Training School (BITTS) -
(March 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024).

Code: HR
Attachments: BITTS -Flying Classroom .pdf

Youth Bureau: An ordinance authorizing the Mayor to retroactively enter into an agreement with
Chef Giovanni Green of Break Bread not Hearts (March 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024).

Code: HR
Attachments: Break Bread Not Hearts by Chef Green.pdf

Youth Bureau: An ordinance authorizing attendance at the National Association for Relationship
and Marriage Education (NARME) Summit (June 23rd to June 26, 2024)

Code: HR
Attachments: Referral to NARME Summit 6.23 - 6.26.24
-pdf

2024 NARME Workshop Schedule (002).pdf

To the Council:

12.

PUBLIC SAFETY AND CODES

Department of Buildings: An ordinance authorizing Commissioner Patrick Holder to attend the
2024 International Code Council (ICC) Annual Conference Expo - (October 20-23, 2024)

Code: PSC

Attachments: Referralletter-ICCConference.pdf
ICC Annual Conference 2024 Meeting. PNG
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13.

14.

Department of Buildings: An ordinance authorizing Retroactive Payment for Repairs on
Non-City-Owned Properties

Code: PSC

Attachments: Retroactive Referral.pdf

Department of Public Safety: An ordinance authorizing retroactive attendance for two (2)
Members of Service ("MoS") at the Consensual Encounters Training (Thursday, February 8,
2024)(Not Adopted - 2nd vote Needed).

Code: PSC
Attachments: REVISED Consensual Encounters

To the Council:

15.

FINANCE AND PLANNING

Comptroller's Office: An ordinance authorizing the acceptance of the 2017 Annual Independent
Audit by PKF O'Connor

Code: FP

Attachments: COMP2024-08 - Acceptance of the 2017
Annual Independent Audit .pdf
Final 2017 City of Mount Vernon FS.pdf

OTHER BUSINESS/CLOSING COMMENTS
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File #: TMP -549 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 1.

City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
TO ATTEND THE DEMOCRATIC MAYORS
ASSOCIATION “CHAMPIONS OF DEMOCRACY
SUMMIT” IN WASHINGTON DC (May 9-11, 2024)

Whereas, by letter dated April 11, 2024, the Mayor has requested legislation authorizing her
to attend the Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” in Washington DC
from May 9 - 11, 2024; and

Whereas, the Mayor of Mount Vernon must stay informed and connected with national
initiatives and policies that impact the Mount Vernon community; and

Whereas, the Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” offers
valuable opportunities for the Mayor to engage with officials from the Biden-Harris team and gain
insights into upcoming initiatives from the White House; and

Whereas, the Mayor’s attendance at the summit will empower her with the knowledge and
resources necessary to effectively communicate and mobilize proactive initiatives within the Mount
Vernon community; and

Whereas, the summit will cover a wide range of topics including The Housing Crisis, Public
Safety, Economic Development, Dealing with Polarization, Social Advocacy, Immigration, Voting
Rights, and How to Develop Strategic Alliances; and

Whereas, it is in the best interest of the City of Mount Vernon to allocate funds for the
Mayor's attendance at the Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit”;
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization. The Mayor of Mount Vernon is hereby authorized to attend the
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File #: TMP -549 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 1.

Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” in Washington DC May 9 - 11,
2024.

Section 2. Expenditure Limit. The total cost of the trip, including transportation,
incidentals, and hotel expenses, shall not exceed $1,000.

Section 3. Funding Source. The expenses related to the Mayor’s attendance at the summit
shall be expensed from budget A 1210.402 - Travel.

Section 4. Purpose of Attendance. The Mayor’s attendance at the Democratic Mayors
Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” is intended to empower her with the knowledge and
resources necessary to effectively communicate and mobilize proactive initiatives within the Mount
Vernon community.

Section 5. Summit Sessions. The summit sessions shall cover various topics including The
Housing Crisis, Public Safety, Economic Development, Dealing with Polarization, Social Advocacy,
Immigration, Voting Rights, and How to Develop Strategic Alliances.

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any
other provision of this ordinance.

Section 7. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 8. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance under
the requirements of law.

Section 9. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

Mayor Office
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD, MPA City Hall, One Roosevelt Square MALCOLM CLARK
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Chief of Staff

(914) 665-2362 — Fax: (914) 665-6173

April 11, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Mount Vernon

One Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Dear Honorable Council members,

This letter comes as a request to the City Council for the enactment of legislation authorizing the
Mayor to attend the Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” in
Washington DC on May 9" to May 11,

The entire trip including transportation, incidentals, and hotel should not exceed $1,000.00. (One
thousand dollars). The cost of the travel and hotel fees will be expensed from budget A 1210.402
— Travel

The Democratic Mayors Association “Champions of Democracy Summit” will empower the
mayor with the knowledge and resources necessary to effectively communicate and mobilize
proactive initiative within the Mount Vernon community. The summit will host sessions with
officials from the Biden-Harris team, and offer the Mayor insight about upcoming initiatives from
the White House. This interactive summit provides in depth conversations on topics such as: The
Housing Crisis, Public Safety, Economic Development, Dealing with Polarization, Social
Advocacy, Immigration, Voting Rights, and How to Develop Strategic Alliances.

Please see the Democratic Mayor’s Association website for more information:
Agenda — Champions of Democracy Summit (dmasummit.com)

In Service,

e ttoree tn ¥

Shawyn Patterson-Howard, MPA
Mayor

“The Jewel of Westchester”



Thursday, May 9 - Messaging

7:00 am - 5:00 pm - Registration

8:00 am — 9:00 am - Cities and Technology Breakfast

A breakfast conversation about technology challenges and solutions.

9:00 am - 9:15 am - Welcome



Mayor Kate Gallego

9:15 am - 10:15 am - Breaking Through: Messaging that Works

A discussion with key Democratic operatives on creating and delivering the most effective messaging in a divisive political

environment.

10:15 am - 12:00 pm - Tackling the Big Three: Housing, Safety, and the Economy

Navigating messaging related to some of our cities’ most complex issues.

12:30 pm - 2:00 pm - Lunch: Keynote Speaker

2:00 pm - 3:00 pm - Messaging About Fundamental Rights and Values: Reproductive Rights and Immigration

Advocating for reproductive rights and messaging on immigration.

3:00 pm - 3:15 pm - Break

3:15 pm - 4:15 pm - Effective Messaging through Digital Media

Coaching session with digital and communications experts.

4:15 pm - 5:30 pm - Video Recording: Mayors on Message

Individual opportunities for Mayors to record short videos with professional digital staff.

6:30 pm - 8:30 pm - DMA Fundraiser

Please join current and former Democratic Mayors and special guests for an evening reception to support DMA.
Friday, May 10 - Mobilizing

8:00 am - 9:00 am - Infrastructure Breakfast

A dialogue with partners on effective implementation of federal investments.
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9:00 am - 10:15 am - Dissecting the Electorate

Insights into specific voting blocs.

10:15 am - 11:00 am - GOTV Best Practices
A conversation with experts on data-driven tactics to increase voter turnout.

11:00 am - 11:15 am - Break

11:15 am - 12:15 pm - Democratic Branding in 2024 and Beyond

12:15 pm - 1:15 pm - Lunch

1:15 pm - 2:45 pm - Biden-Harris Campaign Update/Dialogue

2:45 pm — 3:45 pm - Mobilizing with Labor

Building strategic relationships with Labor to get out the vote and more.

3:45 pm - 4:45 pm - 2024 Down Ballot Snapshot

An overview of Senate and House Flections.

4:45 pm - 5:45 pm - Mayors in Action: Reports from the Field

An interactive session with Mayors on best practices for mobilizing and messaging.

1:00 pm - 9:00 pm - A Special Evening Event

Saturday, May 11

9:00 am - 10:30 am - Breakfast and Closing Discussion

11



Democratic Mayors Association

National Press Building - 529 14th St NW, Suite 1206
Washington, DC 20045

12
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File #: TMP -548 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 2.

City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR’S
ATTENDANCE AT THE 2024 NEW YORK CONFERENCE
OF MAYORS AND MUNICIPAL OFFICIALS (NYCOM)
ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP CONFERENCE (May 15-17, 2024)

Whereas, by letter dated April 10, 2024, the Mayor has requested legislation authorizing her
to attend the 2024 New York Conference of Mayors and Municipal Officials (NYCOM) Annual
Membership Conference from May 15-17, 2024, in Bolton Landing, New York; and

Whereas, the Mayor of the City of Mount Vernon has been invited to attend the 2024 New
York Conference of Mayors and Municipal Officials (NYCOM) Annual Membership Conference in
Bolton Landing, New York; and

Whereas, it is deemed beneficial for the Mayor to attend such conferences to foster
partnerships, exchange ideas, and gain knowledge that will directly benefit the residents of Mount
Vernon; and

Whereas, the cost of registration for the conference shall not exceed $600.00 and the total cost
of the trip, including transportation, incidentals, registration fees, and hotel fees, shall not exceed
$1,500.00; and

Whereas, the expenses related to travel and hotel fees for the Mayor's attendance at the
NYCOM Annual Membership Conference will be sourced from Budget A1210.402 - Travel;

Whereas, as a member of the NYCOM Executive Committee, attending the Annual
Membership Conference will enable the Mayor to engage with other conference members, attend
workshops, participate in committee meetings, and connect with vendors providing essential products
and services; and

Whereas, the workshops at the conference will cover a variety of innovative topics relevant to
municipal governance and administration, including but not limited to Health Insurance Options for
Local Governments, Strategies for Stopping Illegal Cannabis Sales, State and Federal Funding
Opportunities, Managing Water Resources in Communities, In Rem Tax Enforcement Post Tyler,

City of Mount Vernon, New York Page 1 of 2 Printed on 4/24/2024
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File #: TMP -548 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 2.

Emergency Management for Elected and Appointed Officials, Volunteer Firefighter Issues, and Ethics
for Local Officials; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:
Section 1. Authorization. The Mayor of the City of Mount Vernon is hereby authorized to

attend the 2024 New York Conference of Mayors and Municipal Officials (NYCOM) Annual
Membership Conference from May 15-17, 2024, in Bolton Landing, New York.

Section 2. Financial Provisions:

(a) The cost of registration for the conference shall not exceed $600.00.

(b) The total cost of the trip, including transportation, incidentals, registration
fees, and hotel fees, shall not exceed $1,500.00.

(c) The expenses associated with the Mayor’s attendance at the NYCOM
Annual Membership Conference shall be expensed from Budget A1210.402 - Travel.

Section 3. Purpose of Attendance. The Mayor’s attendance at the NYCOM Annual
Membership Conference is intended to facilitate networking opportunities, knowledge exchange, and
partnership building for the benefit of the residents of Mount Vernon.

Section 4. Workshop Topics. The Mayor shall actively participate in workshops covering
a range of topics relevant to municipal governance and administration, as outlined in the “Whereas”
clauses of this ordinance.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 6. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

Mayor Office
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD, MPA City Hall, One Roosevelt Square MALCOLM CLARK
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Chief of Staff

(914) 665-2362 — Fax: (914) 665-6173

April 10, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Mount Vernon

One Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Dear Honorable Council members,

This letter comes as a request to the City Council for the enactment of legislation authorizing the
Mayor to attend the 2024 New York Conference of Mayors and Municipal Officials (NYCOM)
Annual Membership Conference in Bolton Landing New York on May 15 to May 17%.

The cost of registration should not exceed $600.00. The entire trip including transportation,
incidentals, registration fees and hotel should not exceed $1,500.00. (One thousand five hundred
dollars). The cost of the travel and hotel fees will be expensed from budget A 1210.402 — Travel

As a member of the NYCOM Executive Committee, attending the Annual Membership
Conference enables the Mayor to communicate with other conference members and establish
partnerships which will benefit Mount Vernon residents. In addition to workshops on a variety of
topics, conference participants will have the opportunity to network with peers from other
municipalities, attend committee meetings, and connect with vendors who provide vital products
and services. The workshops will include innovative topics such as: Health Insurance Options for
Local Governments, Strategies for Stopping Illegal Cannabis Sales, State and Federal Funding
Opportunities, Managing Water Resources in Your Communities, In Rem Tax Enforcement Post-
Tyler, Emergency Management for Elected and Appointed Officials, Volunteer Firefighter Issues,
and Ethics for Local Officials.

Please see the NYCOM website for more information:
Home - New York Conference of Mayors (nycom.org)

In Service,

e Sottree s Y

Shawyn Patterson-Howard, MPA
Mayor

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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The Sagamore
Bolton Landing

May 15-17, 2024

INFORMATION ~ REGISTER HOTEL
Annual Meeting Tentative Agenda

Wednesday, May 15, 2024

12:00 p.m. NYCOM Registration Desk Opens

2:30 p.m. POLICY COMMITTEE MEETINGS
(all registrants are encouraged to attend)

o Finance

o Government Operations and Community
Development

o Employee Relations and Public Safety

o Energy and Environment

4:00 p.m. CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Albany Update

o Handling Stress in the Workplace 16



6:30 p.m.

8:00 p.m.

Thursday, May 16, 2024

7:30 a.m.

8:00 a.m.

9:15 a.m.

10:00 a.m.

11:15 a.m.

12:30 p.m.

2:00 p.m.

o Volunteer Firefighter Issues
o Understanding Battery Storage in NYS

WELCOME RECEPTION-STYLE DINNER

ENTERTAINMENT

NYCOM Registration Desk Opens
CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o An Open Forum for Local Officials
o College Communities Roundtable

ANNUAL BUSINESS MEETING
AWARDS PRESENTATIONS

PLENARY SESSION

CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Exploring Health Insurance Options for Local
Governments

o Promoting Civility in Your Communities

o Roles and Responsibilities

LUNCH

CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Positions of Employment in Local
Government: Understanding the Nuances

o Policies Local Governments Must Have and
Should Have

o State and Federal Funding Opportunities

17



3:30 p.m.

5:45 p.m.

7:00 p.m.

Friday, May 17, 2024
8:00 a.m.

8:00 a.m.

9:00 a.m.

NOTE: Schedule is Subject to Change

ANNUAL CONFERENCE
CONFERENCES & WORKSHOPS

CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Managing Water Resources in Your
Community

o Mastering Media Relations

o Strategies for Ending Illegal Cannabis Sales

PRESIDENT'S RECEPTION
ANNUAL BANQUET AND INSTALLATION OF
OFFICERS

FIREWORKS

NYCOM Registration Desk Opens

CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Emergency Management for Elected and
Appointed Officials
o Women's Advisory Committee

CONCURRENT SESSIONS

o Municipal Procurement and Competitive
Bidding

o Ethics for Local Officials

o In RemTax Enforcement Post-Tyler

updated 4/1/24
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File #: TMP -559 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 3 -

A

City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR TO ATTEND THE 2024 EPA LOCAL
GOVERNMENT ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S

(LGAC) PUBLIC MEETING (May 21-22, 2024)

Whereas, by letter dated April 11, 2024, the Mayor has requested legislation authorizing her to
attend the 2024 EPA Local Government Advisory Committee’s Public Meeting in Washington DC on May
21-22,2024; and

Whereas, the EPA Local Government Advisory Committee is an independent, policy-oriented
advisory committee that provides advice and recommendations to the EPA Administrator on critical
environmental issues impacting local governments; and

Whereas, as a member of the EPA Local Government Advisory Committee, attending the public
meeting in May will enable the Mayor to participate in discussions around Climate Communications,
Reducing Plastic Pollution, and Environmental Justice while presenting the Mount Vernon perspective to
EPA decision-makers; and

Whereas, it is deemed beneficial for the City of Mount Vernon for its Mayor to attend such
meetings to stay informed on environmental policies and contribute to discussions that may impact the
city;

Whereas, the entire trip, including transportation, incidentals, and hotel, should not exceed
$1,500.00 with the costs of travel and lodging to be reimbursed by The Environmental Protection Agency
after the meeting concludes; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization. The Mayor of Mount Vernon is hereby authorized to attend the 2024
EPA Local Government Advisory Committee’s Public Meeting in Washington DC on May 21-22, 2024.
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File #: TMP -559 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 3 -
A

Section 2. Expenditure Limit. The total expenditure for the trip, including transportation,
incidentals, and hotel, shall not exceed $1,500. Costs of travel and lodging shall be reimbursed by The
Environmental Protection Agency after the meeting concludes.

Section 3. Funding Source. The cost of the travel and hotel fees shall be expensed from
budget A1210.402 - Travel.

Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance or the application thereof to any
person or circumstances is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of
this ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end, the
provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable.

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board of
Estimate & Contract.

City of Mount Vernon, New York Page 2 of 2 Printed on 4/24/2024
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

Mayor Office
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD, MPA City Hall, One Roosevelt Square MALCOLM CLARK
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Chief of Staff

(914) 665-2362 — Fax: (914) 665-6173

April 11, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
City of Mount Vernon

One Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Dear Honorable Council members,

This letter comes as a request to the City Council for the enactment of legislation authorizing the
Mayor to attend the 2024 EPA Local Government Advisory Committee’s Public Meeting in
Washington DC on May 21% and May 22",

The entire trip including transportation, incidentals, and hotel should not exceed $1,500.00 (One
thousand five hundred dollars) with the costs of travel and lodging to be reimbursed by The
Environmental Protection Agency after the meeting concludes. The cost of the travel and hotel
fees will be expensed from budget A 1210.402 — Travel

The EPA Local Government Advisory Committee (LGAC) is an independent, policy-oriented
advisory committee that provides advice and recommendations to the EPA Administrator on
critical environmental issues impacting local governments. As a member of the EPA Local
Government Advisory Committee, attending the public meeting in May will enable the Mayor to
participate in discussions around Climate Communications, Reducing Plastic Pollution, and
Environmental Justice while presenting the Mount Vernon perspective to EPA decision makers.

Please see the LGAC website for more information:
Local Government Advisory Committee (LGAC) | US EPA

In Service,

e Sottree o, Y

Shawyn Patterson-Howard, MPA
Mayor

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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Mayor Office

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD, MPA City Hall, One Roosevelt Square MALCOLM CLARK

Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Chief of Staff
(914) 665-2362 — Fax: (914) 665-6173

Tentative Itinerary

Monday, May 20, 2024 — Travel day

Tuesday, May 21, 2024 — Full day of meetings

Meetings will be held at the hotel, in the middle of the redeveloped Navy Yard neighborhood in
Washington, D.C.

A full agenda will be available in May. At this time, plan to be on site or online 9:00 AM to 5:00
PM Eastern Daylight Time.

The agenda will include sessions on environmental justice/cumulative impacts, climate
communications, and plastic pollution. Other sessions may be added over the coming weeks.

Members will be at their own leisure in the evening.

Wednesday, May 22, 2024
Check out of hotel.

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE PROCLAIMING
MAY 19, 2024, THROUGH MAY 25, 2024,
AS NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK

Whereas, by letter dated April 10, 2024, the Commissioner of the Department of Public Works has
requested that the City Council of the City of Mount Vernon proclaim May 19, 2024, through May
25, 2024, as National Public Works Week in recognition of the invaluable contributions made by
Public Works professionals; and

Whereas, it has been brought to the attention of the City Council that May 19, 2024, through
May 25, 2024, marks National Public Works Week in the United States; and

Whereas, the observance of National Public Works Week serves to celebrate and recognize the
invaluable contributions made by the tens of thousands of men and women across the nation who are
engaged in providing and maintaining the infrastructure and services collectively known as public
works; and

Whereas, Public Works professionals play a crucial role in the daily lives of citizens by
ensuring access to clean water, safe roads, bridges, functional transportation systems, and various
other essential services; and

Whereas, their dedicated efforts contribute significantly to enhancing the physical and
environmental aspects of our community, thereby improving our overall quality of life; and

Whereas, National Public Works Week provides an opportunity to engage the community and
educate them on the vital role of Public Works, with this year’s theme being "Quality of Life for All,"
emphasizing the commitment of Public Works professionals to enhance the quality of life for all
residents in the City of Mount Vernon; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Proclamation. The City Council of the City of Mount Vernon hereby proclaims
May 19, 2024, through May 25, 2024, as National Public Works Week in recognition of the invaluable
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contributions made by Public Works professionals.

Section 2. Celebration and Recognition. During National Public Works Week, the City of
Mount Vernon shall celebrate and recognize the dedication and hard work of Public Works
professionals who contribute to the well-being and prosperity of our community.

Section 3. Community Engagement. The City shall engage the community during
National Public Works Week to educate residents about the essential role of Public Works in
enhancing the quality of life for all citizens.

Section 4. Theme Emphasis. The City shall emphasize the theme “Quality of Life for All”
during National Public Works Week, highlighting the commitment of Public Works professionals to
improving the quality of life for all residents in Mount Vernon.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.

Section 6. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of
this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 7. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance under
the laws of the City of Mount Vernon.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption of
this ordinance by the City Council.
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powered by Legistar™ 24


http://www.legistar.com/

CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

DEPARTMENT of PUBLIC WORKS

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square DAMANI L. BUSH
Mayor Mount Vernon, NY, 10550 Commissioner
(914)'665-2300 —Fax: (914) 665-2476 ROBERT .. HACKETT

Deputy Commissioner
April 10, 2024

Honorable City Council

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, NY 10550
(Through the Office of the Mayor)

RE: Legislation to proclaim May 19, 2024-May 2.5, 2024, National Public Works Week

Dear Honorable City Council Members:

I am writing to ask for your support in proclaiming May 19, 2024, through May 25, 2024, as National
Public Works Week in the City of Mount Vernon, NY. This week is a time to celebrate and recognize and
celebrate the tens of thousands of men and women in our country who provide and maintain the
infrastructure and services collectively known as public works.

Public Works professionals play a vital role in our daily lives by ensuring that we have access to clean
water, safe roads, bridges, functioning transportation systems, and much more. They work tirelessly to
build, maintain, and improve the physical and environmental aspects of our community, and how their
efforts significantly contribute to our quality of life.

National Public Works Week is an opportunity to engage the community and educate them on the role of
Public Works. This year’s theme being “Quality of Life for All” this is the perfect time for Public Works
to show their commitment to the quality of life for the residents in the City of Mount Vernon.

Commissioner of Public Works

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CO-SPONSORSHIP
OF THE ANNUAL COMMUNITY BABY SHOWER

Whereas, by letter dated April 11, 2024, the Commissioner of the Department of Recreation
has requested legislation authorizing the co-sponsorship of the Annual Community Baby Shower, to
be held on Friday, May 10, 2024, from 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the Doles Community Center, 250
South 6th Avenue, Mount Vernon, NY; and

Whereas, the Department of Recreation, in collaboration with Senator Bailey’s office, has
requested the City Council’s endorsement to co-sponsor the Annual Community Baby Shower; and

Whereas, the Community Baby Shower is an initiative aimed at providing practical
assistance, emotional support, and a sense of community to expectant parents and families by offering
essential baby supplies, educational resources, and a supportive environment; and

Whereas, the event fosters connections among facilities, healthcare professionals, volunteers,
and local organizations, creating a network of support that extends beyond the event itself, thereby
celebrating the joy of new life and emphasizing the importance of collective care and compassion in
welcoming every child into the world; and

Whereas, the level of co-sponsorship from the Recreation Department includes the utilization
of the Doles Center, donation of supplies, and provision of additional staffing for the event; and

Whereas, the estimated cost to the city for co-sponsoring this event is approximately $2,500,
to be allocated from Budget Code A7310.104 (Part-Time Salaries); Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved
That

29

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Co-Sponsorship Approval. The City Council of Mount Vernon hereby approves
the co-sponsorship of the Annual Community Baby Shower, to be held on Friday, May 10, 2024, at
the Doles Community Center, 250 South 6th Avenue, Mount Vernon, NY.
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Section 2. Utilization of Doles Center. The Department of Recreation is authorized to
utilize the Doles Community Center for the Annual Community Baby Shower event on the specified
date and time.

Section 3. Funding. An amount not exceeding $2,500 shall be allocated from Budget Code
A7310.104 (Part-Time Salaries) to cover the expenses associated with providing additional staffing
for the event.

Section 4. Donation of Supplies. The Recreation Department is directed to donate essential
baby supplies to support the Annual Community Baby Shower event.

Section 5. Additional Staffing. The Recreation Department shall provide additional
staffing as necessary to ensure the successful execution of the Annual Community Baby Shower.

Section 6. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and enforceable.

Section 7. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of
this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 8. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance under
the laws of the City of Mount Vernon.

Section 9. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect its approval by the Board of
Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

RECREATION DEPARTMENT

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square KATHLEEN WALKER- PINCKNEY
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Commissioner
(914) 665-2420 — Fax: (914) 665-2421

April 11, 2024

Honorable City Council Members
City of Mount Vernon

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Re: Community Baby Shower

Honorable Councilmembers;

he Department creation, in collaboration with Senpator Bailey's office, req e ts at the
C,:l(;unclfE gaopt an e nance aﬁowmg us to co-sponsor tﬂ nnuaf‘(,:ommumr ower. clhhys

event, scheduled for Frlday, May 10, 2024, from 4 pm - 6 pm at the Doles Commumty Center- 250
South 6th Avenue, Mount Vernon, NY, is a significant opportunity for us to contribute to the well-
being of our community.

The Community Baby Shower is a heartwarming initiative designed to offer practical assistance,
emotional support, and a sense of community to expectant parents and families. The event aims to
alleviate the financial burden often associated with preparing for a new baby while empowering
parents with valuable knowledge and skills by providing essential baby supplies, educational
resources, and a supportive environment. Beyond material assistance, the Community Baby Shower
fosters connections among families, healthcare professionals, volunteers, and local organizations,
creating a network of support that extends well beyond the event itself. Ultimately, the Community
Baby Shower celebrates the joy of new life and underscores the importance of collective care and
compassion in ensuring that every child receives a warm welcome into the world.

The Recreation Department's level of co-sponsorship involves using the Doles, donating supplies,

and providing additional staffing for the event. The cost should not exceed $2,500.00 and will be
satisfied from account code A7310.104.

We thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

U A2

Commissioner Kathleen Walker- Pinckney

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
MEXICAN/LATIN CULTURAL CELEBRATION
CO-SPONSORSHIP AT HARTLEY PARK

Whereas, by letter dated April 15, 2024, the Commissioner for the Department of Recreation
has requested legislation authorizing the Department to co-sponsor the Mexican/Latin Cultural
Celebration, scheduled for Sunday, May 19, 2024, from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., in Hartley Park;
and

Whereas, the Department of Recreation, in collaboration with Miztli LLC, seeks City Council
approval to co-sponsor the Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration; and

Whereas, the event aims to foster understanding and appreciation among attendees, providing
colorful dance performances, engaging workshops, and opportunities for people of all backgrounds to
come together to share experiences and celebrate cultural diversity; and

Whereas, the cultural event aims to celebrate diversity, promote community spirit, and
showcase traditions, art, music, and cuisine from Mexican and Latin American cultures; and

Whereas, the event is anticipated to foster understanding and appreciation among attendees
and provide a platform for individuals of all backgrounds to come together and celebrate cultural
diversity; and

Whereas, the anticipated attendance is three hundred and fifty (350) individuals, with twenty-
five (25) business vendors, ten (10) food vendors, activities for children, and entertainment on a stage
with a DJ and artistic performances; and

Whereas, there will be no sale of alcohol during the event, no street closures are requested;
and
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Whereas, the event supervisor has assessed the event and determined that there are no safety
concerns, recommending the hiring of three (3) police officers to patrol the inside grounds of Hartley
Park during the event, with payment for their services to be submitted prior to the event; and

Whereas, the event supervisor further recommends that the street supervisor monitor the event
and be authorized to hire additional officers on an overtime basis, at the organizer’s expense, should
the need arise; and

Whereas, the Department of Recreation will provide support by facilitating the use of Hartley
Park furnishing necessary equipment such as tables and chairs for the event; Now, Therefore, Be It
Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization. The City Council hereby authorizes the Department of
Recreation to co-sponsor the Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration, scheduled for Sunday, May 19,
2024, from 10:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., in Hartley Park.

Section 2. Funding. There is no cost to the city for the co-sponsorship of this event.

Section 3. Purpose of the Cultural Celebration. The Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration
aims to celebrate diversity, promote community spirit, and showcase the rich tapestry of traditions, art,
music, and cuisine from Mexican and Latin American cultures.

Section 4. Support and Assistance. The Department of Recreation shall assist in the use of
Hartley Park for the Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration. This includes facilitating permits,
coordinating logistics, and providing necessary equipment such as tables and chairs for event
participants and attendees.

Section S. Authorization for Hiring Police Officers and Additional Police Officers. This
ordinance grants authorization for the street supervisor to hire three (3) police officers to patrol the
inside grounds of Hartley Park during the event, with payment for their services to be submitted
before the event and additional police officers on an overtime basis, at the organizer’s expense, should
the need arise during the event.

Section 6. Compliance. All organizers, participants, and attendees of the Mexican/Latin
Cultural Celebration shall comply with all applicable laws, regulations, and guidelines set forth by the
City of Mount Vernon and the Department of Recreation.
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Section 7. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage and
approval by the City Council.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

RECREATION DEPARTMENT
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square KATHLEEN WALKER- PINCKNEY
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Commissioner

{914) 665-2420 — Fax: (914) 665-2421

April 15, 2024

Honorable City Council Members
City of Mount Vernon

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Re: Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration

Honorable Councilmembers:

The Department of Recreation, in partnership with Miztli LLC, requests that the City Council adopt an
Ordinance allowing us to Co-sponsor the Mexican/Latin Cultural Celebration. This event, scheduled for
Sunday, May 19, 2024, from 10 a.m. to 6 p.m., will be held in Hartley Park.

The cultural event seeking to be hosted in Hartley Park promises to be a vibrant celebration of
diversity and community spirit. Its successful history in New Rochelle brings a rich tapestry of
traditions, art, music, and cuisine worldwide. From colorful dance performances to engaging
workshops highlighting various cultural practices, the event fosters understanding and appreciation
among attendees. With Hartley Park as its backdrop, the event aims to transform the green space into
a lively hub where people of all backgrounds can come together to share experiences, forge
connections, and celebrate the mosaic of cultures that enrich our society.

The Department of Recreation will assist in the use of Hartley Park and provide tables and chairs. There is
no cost for this co-sponsorship for the Department of Recreation.

We thank you for your considerati

L
N/

Commissioner Kathleen Walker- Pinckney

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON

POLICE DEPARTMENT

SUPPORT SERVICES DIVISION
(914) 665-2500 FAX (914) 665-2559

Captain Michael Goldman Sergeant Juliet Evans
Commanding Officer Executive Officer

Date: March 20, 2024

To: Office of the Police Commissioner
From: Sergeant Juliet Evans #4
Subject: Cultural Event: Latin Fest

On March 13, 2024, the undersigned supervisor received an event facility request form from the
Department of Recreation. The applicant, Jorge Fierro, on behalf of Miztli LLC. Organization
applied for an event on Sunday, May 19, 2024, from 1000 to 1800 hours with no scheduled rain
date. The event is reportedly a cultural Latin event to be held at Hartley Park with an anticipated

~ three-hundred and fifty (350) attendees. The event is scheduled to have twenty (25) business
vendors, ten (10) food vendors, activities for children, and a stage with a DJ and artistic
entertainment. The application reports that there will be no alcohol sales during this event, and
the applicant is not requesting any street closures. The undersigned supervisor has no safety
concerns regarding the applicant or the scheduled event and recommends that three (3) police
officers be hired to patrol the inside grounds of Hartley Park during the event. The payment for
the use of the Police Officers should be submitted prior to the event. The undersigned supervisor
also recommends that the street supervisor monitor the event and be authorized to hire additional
officers on an overtime basis should the need arise, at the organizer's expense.

The undersigned further recommends that this application be approved.

[ B
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Seléeant Juliet Evans #—4 ! :

Executive Officer

Support Services Division

SERERpA o Commissioner of Public Safety
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE DEPARTMENT
OF RECREATION TO CO-SPONSOR THE CINCO
DE MAYO CELEBRATION IN COLLABORATION

WITH WESTCHESTER LATINOS UNIDOS

Whereas, by letter dated April 15, 2024, the Commissioner of the Department of Recreation
has requested legislation authorizing the Department to co-sponsor the Cinco de Mayo Celebration
scheduled on Sunday, May 5, 2024, from 2:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. at Howard Street Playground, in
partnership with Westchester Latino Unidos; and

Whereas, the Department of Recreation, in collaboration with Westchester Latino Unidos,
seeks to organize and host the Cinco de Mayo Celebration on Sunday, May 5, 2024, from 2:00 p.m. to
5:00 p.m. at Howard Street Playground; and

Whereas, the Cinco de Mayo celebration is an eagerly awaited event that promises a vibrant
celebration of flavor, music, and cultural pride; and

Whereas, the previous year’s festivities were exceptionally successful, with the vibrant energy
of Mexican heritage enriching every aspect of the celebration; and

Whereas, the Department of Recreation will co-sponsor the event with Westchester Latinos
Unidos, providing the venue and organizing various entertaining activities; and

Whereas, the estimated cost to the city for co-sponsoring this event is approximately $1,500,
to be allocated from Budget Code A7620.457 (Recreation Features & Other Expenses); Now,
Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Co-Sponsorship. The Department of Recreation is hereby authorized to co-
sponsor the Cinco de Mayo Celebration scheduled for Sunday, May 5, 2024, from 2:00 p.m. to 5:00
p.m. at Howard Street Playground, in partnership with Westchester Latino Unidos.
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Section 2. Responsibilities. The Department of Recreation shall be responsible for
providing the venue and organizing fun activities for the Cinco de Mayo Celebration.

Section 3. Funding. An amount not exceeding $1,500 shall be allocated from Budget Bode
A7620.457 (Recreation Features & Other Expenses) to cover the expenses associated with co-
sponsoring the Cinco de Mayo Celebration.

Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remaining provisions, which shall continue to be in full force and effect.

Section 5. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 6. Publication. This ordinance shall be published and become effective under the
laws of the City of Mount Vernon.

Section 7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

RECREATION DEPARTMENT

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square KATHLEEN WALKER- PINCKNEY
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Commissioner
(914) 665-2420 — Fax: (914) 665-2421

April 15, 2024

Honorable City Council Members
City of Mount Vernon

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

Re: Cinco de Mayo Celebration

Honorable Councilmembers:

The Department of Recreation, in partnership with Westchester Latino Unidos, requests that the
City Council adopt an Ordinance allowing us to Co-sponsor the Cinco de Mayo. This event,
scheduled for Sunday, May 5, 2024, from 2 pm. to 5 p.m., will be held in Howard Street Playground.
The Cinco de Mayo celebration is eagerly anticipated and promises a fiesta of flavor, music, and
cultural pride. Last year's festivities were nothing short of spectacular, with the vibrant energy of
Mexican heritage infusing every aspect of the celebration.

The Department of Recreation will co-sponsor with Westchester Latinos Unidos by supplying the
venue and fun activities. The estimated cost to the city will be approximately $1,500. That will come

out of budget code A7620.457(Recreation features and other expenses).

We thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Respectfully submitted,

%Aﬁ&ﬂﬁ %@ﬂ - @;?("/4/2%

Commissioner of Recreation

“The Jewel of Westchester”
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING OUTDATED
PROCUREMENT LEGISLATION AND ADOPTING
AN UPDATED PROCUREMENT POLICY FOR
THE CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, NEW YORK

Whereas, by letter dated April 9, 2024, City Councilwoman, Danielle R. Browne, Esq. has
requested legislation authorizing the repealing outdated procurement legislation and adopting an updated
procurement policy for the City of Mount Vernon, New York; and

Whereas, the City of Mount Vernon recognizes the need to update its procurement legislation
to comply with New York State laws and operate efficiently in today's fast-paced environment; and

Whereas, the current procurement policy, which has remained unchanged since 1992, is
outdated and inadequate to meet the needs of the city's operations; and

Whereas, the revision of the procurement policy is crucial to streamline the procurement
process, enhance competencies, ensure quality and cost-effectiveness, and safeguard against
impropriety and corruption in procurement practices; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:
Section 1. Title. This ordinance shall be known as the “Repeal of Outdated Procurement

Legislation and Adoption of an Updated Procurement Policy for the City of Mount Vernon, New
York.”

Section 2. Repeal of Outdated Legislation. The City Council hereby repeals the Outdated
Legislation, which was enacted in 1992, as it is outdated and no longer reflects the needs of the City
of Mount Vernon.

Section 3. Adoption of Updated Procurement Policy. The City Council hereby adopts the
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updated procurement policy, as indicated below, to replace the repealed legislation:

“POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR
PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES
NOT SUBJECT TO COMPETITIVE BIDDING

§1. Statement of Policy and Purpose. Goods and services which are not required by law to
be procured pursuant to competitive bidding must be procured in a manner so as to assure the prudent
and economical use of public moneys, in the best interests of the taxpayers, to facilitate the acquisition
of goods and services of maximum quality at the lowest possible cost under the circumstances, and to
guard against favoritism, improvidence, extravagance, fraud and corruption.

To further these objectives, the City Council is hereby adopting internal policies and
procedures governing all procurements of goods and services which are not required to be made
pursuant to the competitive bidding requirements of General Municipal Law §103, or of any other
general, special or local law.

This resolution sets forth the policies and procedures of the City of Mount Vernon to meet the
requirements of General Municipal Law, § 104-b.

§2. Lists of Suppliers and Contractors.

A. The Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of
Management Services, shall maintain lists of suppliers and contractors categorizing the various types
of goods and services, which officials, department heads or their duly authorized designees may use in
soliciting prices.

B. The Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of
Management Services, shall update such lists on an annual basis or as needed and take such steps
necessary to effectuate the same.

C. Officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents shall advise
the Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of Management Services, of
prospective suppliers or contractors which should be added to the abovementioned lists.

§3. Applicability of this Policy. The policies and procedures outlined herein apply to the
procurement of every good or service procured by the municipality that are not required to be made
pursuant to the competitive bidding requirements General Municipal Law §103 or of any general,
special or local law.

A. Purchase or Public Works Contract Determination. Every proposed purchase
must initially be reviewed to determine whether it constitutes a purchase contract or a public works
contract. In general, purchase contracts involve the acquisition of commodities, materials, supplies, or
equipment, while contract for public work involve labor or construction. For the purposes of this
policy routine service contracts (e.g. grounds maintenance, vehicle maintenance and repair, janitorial
services) will be considered purchase contracts for the applicable methods of procurement and
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adequate documentation.

B. Aggregate Amount Determination. Once the determination is made regarding
whether the procurement constitutes a purchase contract or a public works contract, a good-faith effort
will be made to determine whether it is known, or can reasonably be expected, that the aggregate
amount to be spent on the goods or services falls below the monetary threshold for state competitive
bidding laws set forth under General Municipal Law Section 103. This determination must take into
account past purchases and the aggregate amount to be spent in a year.

C. Procurements Subject to State Competitive Bidding. The following items are
subject to competitive bidding pursuant to General Municipal Law §103 and must be procured
through the procedure outlined therein:

a. Purchase contracts over $20,000; and
b. Public works contracts over $35,000.

D. (i) Procurements Not Subject to State Competitive Bidding Requirements.
The following items are either not subject to or are exceptions to General Municipal Law Section 103
competitive bidding requirements:

a.  Purchase contracts under $20,000 and public works contracts under $35,000;
b.  Emergency purchases;

c. Certain municipal hospital purchases;

d.  Goods purchased from agencies for the blind or severely handicapped;

e.  Goods purchased from correctional institutions;

f. Purchases under state and county contracts; and

g.  Surplus and secondhand purchases from another governmental entity.

(ii) Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase is not subject
to competitive bidding requirements under General Municipal Law §103 must be documented in
writing by the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents and filed
with the purchase order or contract therefor. This documentation may include:

a. Written or verbal quotes from vendors; or
b. A memo from the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized
purchasing agents indicating how the decision was arrived at; or
c. A description of the professional services; or
d. A copy of the contract indicating the source that makes the item or service
exempt;
e. A memo from the purchaser detailing the circumstances which led to an
emergency purchase;
f. Any other written documentation that is appropriate.
E. (i) Statutory Exceptions to Quotations/Proposals Requirements of From
These Policies and Procedures. All goods and services will be secured in accordance with this
policy except in the following circumstances:
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a. Purchase contracts over $20,000 and public works contracts over $35,000 use
competitive bidding procedures under General Municipal Law §103;

b. Goods purchased from agencies for the blind or severely handicapped pursuant to
State Finance Law 175-b;

c. Goods purchased from correctional institutions pursuant to Correction Law §186;

d. Purchases under state contracts pursuant to General Municipal Law §104;

e. Purchases under county contracts pursuant to General Municipal Law 103(3);

f. Purchases let by other governmental entities pursuant to General Municipal Law
§103(16); or

g. Other items excepted from this policy (see Section 6, “Items Excepted from these
Policy and Procedures.

(ii) Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase is not
subject to this procurement policy must be documented in writing by the said official, department
head, or their duly authorized purchasing agent. This documentation may include:

Written or verbal quotes from vendors; or

. A memo from the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized
purchasing agents indicating how the decision was arrived at; or

. A copy of the contract indicating the source that makes the item or service
exempt;

d. Opinions of the Corporation Counsel, if any; or

e. Any other written documentation that is appropriate.

o e

o

In summary, the documentation should show the category of procurement that is being made
and what method of procurement is specified.

§4. Adoption of Procedures. The following procedures identify the methods of competition
and the means of adequate documentation to be used for the procurement of goods and services
subject to this policy.

A. Methods of Procurement

The methods of procurement to be used are as follows:

1. Discretion of officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing
agents

2. Verbal Estimates
3 Written quotations
4. Requests for Proposals

B. Adequate Documentation. Documentation of actions taken in connection with
each method of procurement is required as follows:

Estimated Amount of Purchase or Service Contract |[Method
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Less than $1,000 Discretion of purchasing agent
$1,000 - $2,999.99 3 verbal quotes

$3,000 - $19,999 3 or more written quotes/RFPs
Estimated Amount of Public Work Contract Method

Less than $1,000 Discretion of purchasing agent
$1,000 - $4,999.99 3 verbal quotes

$5,000 - $9,999 2 written quotes

$10,000 - $34,999 3 or more written quotes/RFPs

(1) A good-faith effort shall be made to obtain the required number of proposals or
quotations. If the purchaser is unable to obtain the required number of proposals or quotations, the
purchaser will document the attempt made at obtaining the proposals. In no event shall the failure to
obtain the proposals be a bar to the procurement.

(i) Verbal Quotations - The telephone log or other record should record, at a
minimum: date, item or service desired, price quoted, name of the vendor and name of the vendor’s
representative.

(ii1) Written Quotations - Vendors should provide at a minimum: date, description of
the item or details of the service to be provided; price quoted; and name of the vendor’s contact
person.

(iv) Requests for proposals - An effective way to award contracts for some
professional services is to award them only after a minimum number of professionals are contacted
and asked to submit written proposals. Requests for proposals (RFPs) are traditionally used as a
means of obtaining all types of professional services. RFPs are used to obtain the services of
architects, engineers, accountants, underwriters, fiscal consultants, and other professionals. A RFP
and evaluation of proposals can consider price plus other factors, like experience, staffing and
suitability for needs and may include negotiations on a fair and equal basis. The award should be the
most advantageous to the City of Mount Vernon.

(v) Second-Hand Equipment from Other Governments - Procurement shall be
documented by, at a minimum: market price comparisons obtained either by verbal or written quotes
(documented in accordance with Sections 4B(1) and 4B(i1) above).

C. Required Statements for Submissions Made Pursuant to Competitive Bidding.
If the goods or services to be procured must be acquired by competitive bidding pursuant to General
Municipal Law §103 or any other general, special or local law, the following statement must
accompany such bid:

a. The Iran Divestment Act. Every written offer made to the City of Mount Vernon
must contain the following statement subscribed and affirmed by the offeror as true under the
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penalties of perjury:

By submission of this offer, each offeror and each person signing on behalf of any offeror
certifies, and in the case of a joint offer each party thereto certifies as to its own, under penalty or
perjury, that to the best of its knowledge and belief that each offeror is not on the list created pursuant
to State Finance Law §165-a (3)(b).

The City of Mount Vernon may award an offer to an offeror who cannot make the statement of
non-investment on a case-by-case basis if:

i. The investment activities in Iran were made before the effective date of this
section, the investment activities in Iran have not been expanded or renewed after the effective date of
this section, and the person has adopted, publicized, and is implementing a formal plan to cease the
investment activities in Iran and to refrain from engaging in any new investments in Iran; or

ii. The City of Mount Vernon makes a determination that the goods or services
are necessary for the City of Mount Vernon to perform its functions and that, absent such an
exemption, the City of Mount Vernon would be unable to obtain the goods or services for which the
contract is offered. Such determination shall be made in writing and shall be a public document.

No contract may be awarded to any persons determined to be engaged in investment activities
in Iran as indicated by New York State Office of General Services.

b. Statement of Non-Collusion. Every written offer made to the City of Mount
Vernon must contain the following statement subscribed and affirmed by the offeror as true under the
penalties of perjury:

By submission of this offer, each offeror and each person signing on behalf of any offeror
certifies, and in the case of joint offer each party thereto certifies as to its own organization, under
penalty of perjury, that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

1. The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition, as to any
matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with any competitor.

ii. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices quoted in this offer have not
been knowingly disclosed by the offeror and will not knowingly be disclosed by the offeror prior to
opening, directly or indirectly, to any other offeror or to any competitor; and

iii. No attempt has been made or will be made by the offeror to induce any other
person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the purpose of restricting
competition.

c. Statements for Non-Bid Procurements. Offers submitted in a manner other
than competitive bidding shall also contain the above statements; however, the failure to include them
shall not result in their automatic rejection.

City of Mount Vernon, New York Page 6 of 14 Printed on 4/24/2024

powered by Legistar™

44


http://www.legistar.com/

File #: TMP -547 Agenda Date: 4/10/2024 Agenda #: 8 -

A

§5 Awards to Other than the Lowest Responsible Dollar Offeror. Whenever a contract is
awarded to someone other than the lowest responsible dollar offeror, the reasons why shall be
documented as follows:

A. Best Value. Notwithstanding anything else contained in this policy, the City of Mount
Vernon may award purchase contracts and service contracts that have been procured pursuant to
competitive bidding under General Municipal Law §103(1) or otherwise under this policy by either
the lowest responsible bidder standard or the best value standard.

a. Definition. “Best value” is defined in State Finance Law §163 as, “the basis for
awarding contracts for services to the offeror which optimizes quality, cost and efficiency, among
responsive and responsible offerors.” For the purposes of this section, the City of Mount Vernon
adopts the above definition of “best value” as may be modified from time to time by the State
Legislature.

b. Applicability. The best value standard may only be used for purchase contracts,
which includes contracts for service work, but excludes any purchase contracts necessary for the
completion of a public works contract pursuant to Article 8 of the Labor Law. When awarding
contracts under the best value standard the City of Mount Vernon must consider the overall
combination of quality, price and other elements of the required commodity or service that in total are
optimal relative to the needs of the City of Mount Vernon. Use of the best value standard must rely,
wherever possible, on objective and quantifiable analysis. The best value standard may identify as a
quantitative factor whether offerors are small businesses or certified minority- or women-owned
business enterprises s defined in the New York Executive Law §310.

c. Approval. Use of the best value standard for the procurement of goods and
services requires approval from the City of Mount Vernon. The City Council must also approve the
factors to be considered when awarding contracts under this standard.

d. Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase may be awarded on
the basis of best value must be documented in writing by public officials, department heads or their
duly authorized purchasing agents. This documentation may include a memo from the said officials,
department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents indicating how the decision was arrived
at or any other written documentation that is appropriate.

B. Additional justifications for awarding a contract to or purchasing from other than the
lowest responsible dollar offeror would be, among other considerations, that the lowest dollar offeror
has a history of:

a. Not making timely deliveries;
b. Delivering inferior quality goods; or
c. Providing inferior quality services.

§6. Items Excepted from these Policies and Procedures by the City Council. Pursuant to
General Municipal Law §104-b(2)(g), this policy may contain circumstances or types of procurements
for which, in the sole discretion of the City Council, the solicitation of alternative proposals or
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quotations will not be in the best interest of the municipality. In the following circumstances it may
not be in the best interests of the City of Mount Vernon to solicit quotations or document the basis for
not accepting the lowest bid:

A. Professional services or services requiring special or technical skill, training or
expertise. The individual or company must be chosen based on accountability, reliability,
responsibility, skill, education and training, judgment, integrity and moral worth. These qualifications
are not necessarily found in the individual or company that offers the lowest price and the nature of
these services are such that they do not readily lend themselves to competitive procurement
procedures.

a. In determining whether a service fits into this category the public official, department
head, or their duly authorized purchasing agents making the purchase shall take into consideration the
following guidelines:

i.  Whether the services are subject to state licensing or testing requirements;

ii. Whether substantial formal education or training is a necessary prerequisite to the
performance of the services; and

iii. Whether the services require a personal relationship between the individual and
municipal officials.

b. “Professional or technical services” shall include but not be limited to the following
services of:

i.  An attorney;

ii. Services of a physician

iii. Technical services of an engineer engaged to prepare plans, maps and estimates;

iv. Securing insurance coverage and/or services of an insurance broker;

v. Services of a certified public accountant;

vi. Investment management services;

vii. Printing services involving extensive writing, editing or art work;

Viii. Management of municipally owned property; and

ix. Computer software or programming services for customized programs, or
services involved in substantial modification and customizing of prepackaged
software.

c. To the extent practicable, professional services should be obtained through requests
for proposals issued by the City of Mount Vernon’s officials, department heads or their duly
authorized purchasing agents. All RFPs are to be reviewed by said officials, department heads or their
duly authorized purchasing agents, who will make a recommendation to the City Council for final
approval. The determination of the RFP will be based on clearly described and documented criteria,
and will include the evaluation of the service provider’s accountability, reliability, responsibility, skill,
education and training, judgment, integrity and moral worth. The City of Mount Vernon must provide
documentation, such as but not limited to a memorandum, outlining its evaluation and the basis for
awarding the contract for professional services.

d. In the event an RFP is not used to procure a professional service, no contract shall be
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awarded without written documentation, such as but not limited to a memorandum, outlining the
procurement process, the evaluation methods used, and the basis for awarding the contract.

e. Procurements of professional services in excess of the sum of Five Thousand
($5,000.) Dollars annually to any one contractor, though not subject to competitive bidding
requirements, are hereby required to be in the form of a written Professional Service contract, signed
by the party providing the service. and the City of Mount Vernon, and shall detail the costs of the
professional service. Such Professional Service Contracts shall be subject to the approval of the City
Council and the Board of Estimate and Contract, unless such professional services procurement is
specifically provided for by another method in the Charter of the City of Mount Vernon (e.g. Section
153 of the Charter of the city of Mount Vernon) or in State Law.

B. Emergency purchases. For purpose of this section, an emergency refers to an
occurrence that presents an immediate threat to public property, the life, safety, health, welfare or
property of residents or the public, or threatens to curtail or terminate an essential service to residents
or the public. Due to the nature of this exception, these goods or services must be purchased
immediately and a delay in order to seek alternate proposals may threaten the life, health, safety,
property or welfare of the residents or City of Mount Vernon. This section does not preclude alternate
proposals if time permits. Emergency purchases will be made at the discretion of the appropriate
department head with the appropriate documentation as to the nature of the emergency.

a. Documentation required - Procurement of goods and/or services shall be documented
by, at a minimum:

i. the nature of the emergency - a situation:

1. arising out of an accident or unforeseen occurrence or condition;

2. affecting public buildings, public property or the life, health, safety or
property of the City’s residents; and

3. that requires immediate action which cannot await competitive bidding.

i1. the verbal or written quote (documented in accordance with Sections 4B(i1) and
4B(ii) above); and
iil. any other relevant information.

b. Pre-approved contractors - There shall be an established list of preapproved
contractors and service providers which shall be contacted and retained as necessary in emergency
situations. The Mayor shall be authorized to enter into contracts with said contractors and service
providers during emergencies. The provisions of this section shall not preclude the hiring of
contractors and service providers which are not on the list if deemed necessary due to the nature of the
emergency.

C. Sole Source. Under State Finance Law §163, “sole source” is defined as “a procurement
in which only one offeror is capable of supplying the required commodities or services,” and no
substantial equivalent exists. To qualify under the sole source exception, the City of Mount Vernon
must demonstrate that the acquisition of the good or service sought is in the public interest and is
available from only one source, for which there is no equivalent. A good or service serves the public
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interest if there are unique benefits arising from the particular good or service as compared to a
different good or service, no other good or service would provide substantially similar benefits, and
the cost is reasonable when considering the benefit conferred upon the municipality.

a. Documentation Required - Procurement shall be documented by, at a minimum:

1. the unique benefit of the sole source item as compared to other items available in
the market place;

i1. the fact that no other item provides substantially equivalent or similar benefits;
considering the benefits received, that the cost of the sole source item is
reasonable when compared to conventional items; and

iil. that, as a matter of fact, there is no possibility of competition for the procurement
of said sole source item.

D. Preferred Source. Prior to entering into the competitive bidding process, the City is
required by law to purchase commodities and services from Preferred Sources if the offering meets
the form function, and utility required at a price no more than 15% above the prevailing market rate
from the organizational priority listing below:

1. Department of Correctional Services’ Correctional Industries Program [Corcraft]

2. Approved, charitable, non-profit making agencies for the blind [NYSID]

3. Equal priority to approved, charitable, nonprofit agencies for the severely
disabled, qualified special employment programs for mentally ill persons, and
qualified veterans’ workshops. [NYSPSP]

Utilizing Preferred Sources bypasses the need for a competitive bid process, streamlines
procurement, and advances social and economic goals.

E. Purchases of surplus and secondhand goods from any source or goods purchased at
auction. If alternate proposals are required, the City of Mount Vernon would be precluded from
purchasing surplus and secondhand goods at auctions or through specific advertised sources where the
best prices are usually obtained. It is also difficult to try to compare prices of used goods and a lower
price may indicate an older product.

F. Goods or services under $1,000. The time and documentation required to purchase
through this policy may be more costly than the item itself and would therefore not be in the best
interests of the taxpayer. In addition, it is not likely that such de minimis contractors would be
awarded based on favoritism.

G. Cooperative or Piggyback Contracts. General Municipal Law §103(16) allows for the
procurement of certain goods (including apparatus, materials, equipment and supplies) and services
through contracts let by the United States or any agency thereof, any state or any other political
subdivision or district therein, if such contract was let in a manner consistent with competitive bidding
and has been made available for use by other governmental entities. The stated purpose is to reduce
administrative and product cost and increase efficiencies. Through cooperative purchasing, or
piggybacking, a governmental subdivision has already investigated and secured the lowest possible
price for the municipality. It is the responsibility of the City Council to review each proposed
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procurement to determine, on the advice of the Corporation Counsel as appropriate, whether the
procurement falls within this exception. Three items must be considered:

a. The contract must have been let by the United States or any agency thereof, any state
or any other political subdivision or district therein; and

b. The contract must have been made available for use by other governmental entities;
and

c. The contract must have been let in a manner that constitutes competitive bidding
consistent with state law.

If it is determined that all three items to consider have been met, the City Council shall allow
this exception to the requirements of competitive bidding and this policy. The determination that
cooperative purchasing is allowed shall be documented and a copy of the government contract off
which piggybacking is allowed must be included in such documentation.

H. Shared Services, Efficiencies and Municipal Cooperation. The City of Mount Vernon
is encouraged and authorized to share services and work together with other municipalities when

possible to reduce costs.

I.  True leases. The courts have held that “true lease” agreements are neither purchases nor
contracts for public work and, thus, are not subject to bidding under General Municipal Law §103.

a.  Documentation Required: Procurement shall be documented by, at a minimum:

1. Written quotes
il. Cost-benefit of leasing versus purchasing
iii.any other relevant information.

§7. Other Considerations. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest. - When engaging in
procurement activities, officials, department heads or their duly authorized designees shall conduct
themselves in accordance with City Code Chapter 24.

C. Internal Control._ A system of internal control shall be established by the
Department of Finance and shall provide for periodic review and monitoring of procurement
procedures as outlined herein which shall be reported to the City Council.

D. Benefit-Cost Analysis. Benefit-cost analysis involves weighing the benefit against
the cost in order to make a choice among alternatives that will yield the maximum benefit at the least
cost. When implementing the policies and procedures outlined herein, officials, department heads or
their duly authorized designees should consider the financial benefit of their actions taken to procure
goods and services, which should be economically more beneficial than their cost.

E. Environmental Awareness. Officials, department heads or duly authorized
designees shall take into consideration the environmental impact of goods and their energy efficiency
when procuring the same.
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F. Maintenance and Durability. Further consideration shall be given to the cost of
maintaining said goods, and the durability, repairability and reliability of same.

G. Standardization of purchase. Standardization of a particular type of material or
equipment must be approved by a City Council resolution setting forth the reasons for a need for
standardization as defined in General Municipal Law §103. Such resolution shall state reasons of
efficiency or economy.

§8 Individual(s) Responsible for Purchasing

Purchasing Agent

Procurement Manager

Commissioner of Management Services
Comptroller

Assistant Comptroller

moaw»>

§9 Input from Officials, Department Heads and Purchasing Agent. Comments concerning
the policies and procedures have been solicited from officials, department heads, and the Purchasing
Agent of the City of Mount Vernon involved in the procurement process prior to the enactment of this
resolution. Further comments will be solicited from time to time as the City Council may desire.

§10 Annual Review. The City Council shall review these policies and procedures annually,
and when necessary, and evaluate whether the lists maintained by the City Clerk are being effectively
utilized by officials, department heads or their duly authorized designees to implement the
requirements of General Municipal Law § 104-b.

The Committee Chairpersons of Finance and Planning and Legislation and Public Works shall
be responsible for conducting an annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the procurement policy and
procedures and an evaluation of the control procedures established to ensure compliance with the
procurement policy and shall be responsible for reporting back to the City Council.

§11 Unintentional Failure to Comply. In the event of an unintentional failure to fully
comply with the provisions of General Municipal Law, Section 104-b, the following corrective steps
should be taken:

1. Immediate Review: Upon discovery of any unintentional noncompliance, an
immediate review shall be conducted to assess the extent and impact of the noncompliance.

2. Notification: The officer or employee who identifies or learns of the
noncompliance shall notify their supervisor and the Corporation Counsel’s Office.

3. Documentation: All details of the noncompliance, including how it was
discovered, the nature of the noncompliance, and any immediate actions taken, must be documented.

4. Rectification Plan: A rectification plan must be developed and implemented to
correct the noncompliance. This plan should outline the steps to be taken to ensure compliance and
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prevent future occurrences.

5. Review and Approval: The rectification plan shall be reviewed and approved by
the appropriate supervisory personnel and, if necessary, by the City Council.

6. Implementation: The approved rectification plan shall be implemented promptly
to address any issues arising from the noncompliance.

The unintentional failure to fully comply with the provisions of General Municipal Law,
Section 104-b shall not be grounds to void action taken or give rise to a cause of action against the
City of Mount Vernon or any officer or employee thereof.

§12 Training.

A. Annual Training: All department heads, purchasing agents, and relevant
employees will undergo a mandatory training session annually conducted by the Corporation
Counsel or an appointed representative, in collaboration with the Purchasing Manager or Agent on
these procurement policies. This training will reinforce the City's procurement procedures, ethical
guidelines, and any recent policy changes.

B. Training Documentation: Participation in annual training will be recorded and
filed in the Office of the City Clerk.”

Section 4. Purpose. The purpose of this ordinance is to modernize the procurement
practices of the City of Mount Vernon, ensure compliance with New York State laws, and enhance
operational efficiency and transparency.

Section 5. Key Provisions of Updated Procurement Policy:

1. Streamlined Procurement Process: The updated policy introduces a
streamlined process for the procurement of goods and services not subject to competitive
bidding to reduce administrative burdens and foster a more agile municipal operation.

2. Mandatory Annual Trainings: The policy mandates annual training sessions
for all commissioners and purchasing agents to enhance competencies, ensuring
competitiveness and inclusivity in procurement decisions.

3. Enhanced Quality and Cost-Effectiveness: Modern procurement practices
shall be adopted to acquire goods and services of maximum quality at the lowest possible cost,
directly benefiting taxpayers.

4. Guard against Improvidence and Corruption: The proposed policy sets
forth stringent procedures to prevent favoritism, extravagance, fraud, and corruption in the

procurement process, thereby safeguarding the public interest.

5. Compliance with NYS Law: Updating the procurement policy ensures
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compliance with New York State law, aligning the city with statewide standards and
regulations.

Section 6. Implementation. The City of Mount Vernon shall implement the updated

procurement policy immediately upon the effective date of this ordinance.

Section 7. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions.

Section 8. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

Section 9. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon passage.
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CITY COUNCIL

ONE ROOSEVELT SQUARE
MOUNT VERNON, NY 10550
(914) 665-2352 FAX (914) 668-6044

WWW.cCmvhy.com

DANIELLE BROWNE, ESQ.
CITY COUNCILWOMAN
DBrowne@cmvny.com

CHAIR, STANDING COMMITTEE ON
LEGISLATION & PUBLIC WORKS

CO-CHAIR, STANDING COMMITTEE ON
PUBLIC SAFETY & CODES

April 9, 2024

Honorable City Councilmembers
City Hall

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, NY 10550

RE: Repeal of Outdated Procurement Legislation and Adoption of Updated Procurement Policy

Dear Honorable Members of the Mount Vernon City Council,

I am writing to propose an essential update to our city’s procurement legislation, which has
remained unchanged since 1992. The current procurement policy is not only outdated but also
falls short of complying with New York State laws, hindering our capability to operate

efficiently and inclusively in today’s fast-paced environment.

This policy revision is crucial for several reasons.

1. Streamlined Procurement Process: The updated policy introduces a streamlined
process for the procurement of goods and services not subject to competitive bidding.
This efficiency will significantly reduce administrative burdens and foster a more agile

municipal operation.

2. Mandatory Annual Trainings: To ensure all commissioners and purchasing agents are
well-versed in the latest procurement practices, the policy mandates annual training
sessions. This will enhance our competencies, ensuring competitiveness and inclusivity in

procurement decisions.

3. Enhanced Quality and Cost-Effectiveness: By adopting modern procurement practices,
we position ourselves to acquire goods and services of maximum quality at the lowest

possible cost, directly benefiting our taxpayers.
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1. Guard against Improvidence and Corruption: The proposed policy sets forth stringent
procedures to prevent favoritism, extravagance, fraud, and corruption in the procurement
process, thereby safeguarding the public interest.

2. Compliance with NYS Law: Perhaps most importantly, updating our procurement
policy ensures compliance with New York State law, aligning our city with statewide
standards and regulations.

The adoption of this policy will not only rectify the current non-compliance issues but will also
greatly contribute to the operational excellence of our city’s administration.

I urge all members to review the attached proposal carefully and support its enactment. Thank
you for your attention to this matter. Please let me know if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

Danielle R. Browne, Esq.
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AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR PROCUREMENT OF
GOODS AND SERVICES NOT SUBJECT TO COMPETITIVE BIDDING.

§1. Statement of Policy and Purpose

Goods and services which are not required by law to be procured pursuant to competitive bidding must be

procured in a manner so as to assure the prudent and economical use of public moneys, in the best
interests of the taxpayers, to facilitate the acquisition of goods and services of maximum quality at the
lowest possible cost under the circumstances, and to guard against favoritism, improvidence,

extravagance, fraud and corruption.

To further these objectives, the City Council is hereby adopting internal policies and procedures
governing all procurements of goods and services which are not required to be made pursuant to the
competitive bidding requirements of General Municipal Law §103, or of any other general, special or

local law.

This resolution sets forth the policies and procedures of the City of Mount Vernon to meet the

requirements of General Municipal Law, § 104-b.

§2. Lists of Suppliers and Contractors.

A. The Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of Management
Services, shall maintain lists of suppliers and contractors categorizing the various types of goods
and services, which officials, department heads or their duly authorized designees may use in
soliciting prices.

B. The Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of Management
Services, shall update such lists on an annual basis or as needed and take such steps necessary to
effectuate the same.

C. Officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents shall advise the
Procurement Manager, or the designated person by the Commissioner of Management Services,

of prospective suppliers or contractors which should be added to the abovementioned lists.

§3. Applicability of this Policy.

The policies and procedures outlined herein apply to the procurement of every good or service procured
by the municipality that are not required to be made pursuant to the competitive bidding requirements

General Municipal Law §103 or of any general, special or local law.
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A. Purchase or Public Works Contract Determination. Every proposed purchase must initially be

reviewed to determine whether it constitutes a purchase contract or a public works contract. In
general, purchase contracts involve the acquisition of commodities, materials, supplies, or
equipment, while contract for public work involve labor or construction. For the purposes of this
policy routine service contracts (e.g. grounds maintenance, vehicle maintenance and repair,
janitorial services) will be considered purchase contracts for the applicable methods of
procurement and adequate documentation.
Aggregate Amount Determination. Once the determination is made regarding whether the
procurement constitutes a purchase contract or a public works contract, a good-faith effort will be
made to determine whether it is known, or can reasonably be expected, that the aggregate amount
to be spent on the goods or services falls below the monetary threshold for state competitive
bidding laws set forth under General Municipal Law Section 103. This determination must take
into account past purchases and the aggregate amount to be spent in a year.
Procurements Subject to State Competitive Bidding. The following items are subject to
competitive bidding pursuant to General Municipal Law §103 and must be procured through the
procedure outlined therein:

a. Purchase contracts over $20,000; and

b. Public works contracts over $35,000.
. (i) Procurements Not Subject to State Competitive Bidding Requirements. The following
items are either not subject to or are exceptions to General Municipal Law Section 103
competitive bidding requirements:

Purchase contracts under $20,000 and public works contracts under $35,000;

s

Emergency purchases;
c. Certain municipal hospital purchases;

d. Goods purchased from agencies for the blind or severely handicapped;

e. Goods purchased from correctional institutions;

f.  Purchases under state and county contracts; and

g. Surplus and secondhand purchases from another governmental entity.
(ii) Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase is not subject to competitive
bidding requirements under General Municipal Law §103 must be documented in writing by the
said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents and filed with the
purchase order or contract therefor. This documentation may include:

a. Written or verbal quotes from vendors; or
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f.

A memo from the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing
agents indicating how the decision was arrived at; or

A description of the professional services; or

A copy of the contract indicating the source that makes the item or service exempt;

A memo from the purchaser detailing the circumstances which led to an emergency
purchase;

Any other written documentation that is appropriate.

E. (i) Statutory Exceptions to Quotations/Proposals Requirements of From These Policies and

Procedures. All goods and services will be secured in accordance with this policy except in the

following circumstances:

a.

a o

=

(ii) Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase a purchase is not subject to this

Purchase contracts over $20,000 and public works contracts over $35,000 use
competitive bidding procedures under General Municipal Law §103;

Goods purchased from agencies for the blind or severely handicapped pursuant to State
Finance Law 175-b;

Goods purchased from correctional institutions pursuant to Correction Law §186
Purchases under state contracts pursuant to General Municipal Law §104;

Purchases under county contracts pursuant to General Municipal Law 103(3);

Purchases let by other governmental entities pursuant to General Municipal Law
§103(16); or

Other items excepted from this policy (see Section 6, “Items Excepted from these Policy

and Procedures

procurement policy must be documented in writing by the said official, department head, or their

duly authorized purchasing agent. This documentation may include:

d.

€.

Written or verbal quotes from vendors; or

A memo from the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing
agents indicating how the decision was arrived at; or

A copy of the contract indicating the source that makes the item or service exempt;
Opinions of the Corporation Counsel, if any; or

Any other written documentation that is appropriate.

In summary, the documentation should show the category of procurement that is being made and

what method of procurement is specified.

§4. Adoption of Procedures
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The following procedures identify the methods of competition and the means of adequate documentation
to be used for the procurement of goods and services subject to this policy.
A. Methods of Procurement
The methods of procurement to be used are as follows:

1. Discretion of officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents

2. Verbal Estimates
3. Written quotations

4. Requests for Proposals

. Adequate Documentation

Documentation of actions taken in connection with each method of procurement is required as

follows:

Estimated Amount of Purchase or Service

Contract

Method

Less than $1,000

Discretion of purchasing agent

$1,000 - $2,999.99

3 verbal quotes

$3,000 - $19,999

3 or more written quotes/RFPs

Estimated Amount of Public Work

Contract

Method

Less than $1,000

Discretion of purchasing agent

$1,000 - $4,999.99

3 verbal quotes

$5,000 - $9,999

2 written quotes

$10,000 - $34,999

3 or more written quotes/RFPs

(1) A good-faith effort shall be made to obtain the required number of proposals or

quotations. If the purchaser is unable to obtain the required number of proposals or

quotations, the purchaser will document the attempt made at obtaining the proposals. In

no event shall the failure to obtain the proposals be a bar to the procurement.

(i1) Verbal Quotations - The telephone log or other record should record, at a minimum: date,

item or service desired, price quoted, name of the vendor and name of the vendor’s

representative.

(ii1) Written Quotations — Vendors should provide at a minimum: date, description of the item

or details of the service to be provided; price quoted; and name of the vendor’s contact

person.

(iv) Requests for proposals — An effective way to award contracts for some professional

services is to award them only after a minimum number of professionals are contacted




and asked to submit written proposals. Requests for proposals (RFPs) are traditionally
used as a means of obtaining all types of professional services. RFPs are used to obtain
the services of architects, engineers, accountants, underwriters, fiscal consultants, and
other professionals. A RFP and evaluation of proposals can consider price plus other
factors, like experience, staffing and suitability for needs and may include negotiations on
a fair and equal basis. The award should be the most advantageous to the City of Mount
Vernon.

) Second-Hand Equipment from Other Governments — Procurement shall be documented

by, at a minimum: market price comparisons obtained either by verbal or written quotes

(documented in accordance with Sections 4B(i) and 4B(ii) above).

Required Statements for Submissions Made Pursuant to Competitive Bidding. If the goods
or services to be procured must be acquired by competitive bidding pursuant to General
Municipal Law §103 or any other general, special or local law, the following statement must
accompany such bid:

a. The Iran Divestment Act. Every written offer made to the City of Mount Vernon must

contain the following statement subscribed and affirmed by the offeror as true under the
penalties of perjury:

By submission of this offer, each offeror and each person signing on behalf of any offeror
certifies, and in the case of a joint offer each party thereto certifies as to its own, under
penalty or perjury, that to the best of its knowledge and belief that each offeror is not on
the list created pursuant to State Finance Law §165-a (3)(b).

The City of Mount Vernon may award an offer to an offeror who cannot make the
statement of non-investment on a case-by-case basis if:

i. The investment activities in Iran were made before the effective date of this
section, the investment activities in Iran have not been expanded or renewed after
the effective date of this section, and the person has adopted, publicized, and is
implementing a formal plan to cease the investment activities in Iran and to
refrain from engaging in any new investments in Iran; or

ii. The City of Mount Vernon makes a determination that the goods or services are
necessary for the City of Mount Vernon to perform its functions and that, absent
such an exemption, the City of Mount Vernon would be unable to obtain the
goods or services for which the contract is offered. Such determination shall be

made in writing and shall be a public document.



C.

No contract may be awarded to any persons determined to be engaged in investment
activities in Iran as indicated by New York State Office of General Services.

Statement of Non-Collusion. Every written offer made to the City of Mount Vernon

must contain the following statement subscribed and affirmed by the offeror as true under
the penalties of perjury:

By submission of this offer, each offeror and each person signing on behalf of any offeror
certifies, and in the case of joint offer each party thereto certifies as to its own
organization, under penalty of perjury, that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

1. The prices in this offer have been arrived at independently without collusion,
consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting
competition, as to any matter relating to such prices with any other bidder or with
any competitor;

ii. Unless otherwise required by law, the prices quoted in this offer have not been
knowingly disclosed by the offeror and will not knowingly be disclosed by the
offeror prior to opening, directly or indirectly, to any other offeror or to any
competitor; and

iii. No attempt has been made or will be made by the offeror to induce any other
person, partnership or corporation to submit or not to submit a bid for the
purpose of restricting competition.

Statements for Non-Bid Procurements. Offers submitted in a manner other than

competitive bidding shall also contain the above statements; however, the failure to

include them shall not result in their automatic rejection.

§5 Awards to Other than the Lowest Responsible Dollar Offeror

Whenever a contract is awarded to someone other than the lowest responsible dollar offeror, the reasons

why shall be documented as follows:

A. Best Value. Notwithstanding anything else contained in this policy, the City of Mount Vernon

may award purchase contracts and service contracts that have been procured pursuant to

competitive bidding under General Municipal Law §103(1) or otherwise under this policy by

either the lowest responsible bidder standard or the best value standard.

a.

Definition. “Best value” is defined in State Finance Law §163 as, “the basis for awarding
contracts for services to the offeror which optimizes quality, cost and efficiency, among
responsive and responsible offerors.” For the purposes of this section, the City of Mount
Vernon adopts the above definition of “best value” as may be modified from time to time

by the State Legislature.
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b. Applicability. The best value standard may only be used for purchase contracts, which
includes contracts for service work, but excludes any purchase contracts necessary for the
completion of a public works contract pursuant to Article 8 of the Labor Law. When
awarding contracts under the best value standard the City of Mount Vernon must
consider the overall combination of quality, price and other elements of the required
commodity or service that in total are optimal relative to the needs of the City of Mount
Vernon. Use of the best value standard must rely, wherever possible, on objective and
quantifiable analysis. The best value standard may identify as a quantitative factor
whether offerors are small businesses or certified minority- or women-owned business
enterprises s defined in the New York Executive Law §310.

c. Approval. Use of the best value standard for the procurement of goods and services
requires approval from the City of Mount Vernon. The City Council must also approve
the factors to be considered when awarding contracts under this standard.

d. Documentation Required. The determination that a purchase may be awarded on the
basis of best value must be documented in writing by public officials, department heads
or their duly authorized purchasing agents. This documentation may include a memo
from the said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents
indicating how the decision was arrived at or any other written documentation that is
appropriate.

B. Additional justifications for awarding a contract to or purchasing from other than the lowest
responsible dollar offeror would be, among other considerations, that the lowest dollar offeror has
a history of:

a. Not making timely deliveries;

b. Delivering inferior quality goods; or

c. Providing inferior quality services.

§6. Items Excepted from these Policies and Procedures by the City Council

Pursuant to General Municipal Law §104-b(2)(g), this policy may contain circumstances or types of
procurements for which, in the sole discretion of the City Council, the solicitation of alternative proposals
or quotations will not be in the best interest of the municipality. In the following circumstances it may not
be in the best interests of the City of Mount Vernon to solicit quotations or document the basis for not
accepting the lowest bid:
A. Professional services or services requiring special or technical skill, training or expertise.
The individual or company must be chosen based on accountability, reliability, responsibility,

skill, education and training, judgment, integrity and moral worth. These qualifications are not



necessarily found in the individual or company that offers the lowest price and the nature of these

services are such that they do not readily lend themselves to competitive procurement procedures.

a.

In determining whether a service fits into this category the public official,
department head, or their duly authorized purchasing agents making the purchase
shall take into consideration the following guidelines:

1. Whether the services are subject to state licensing or testing requirements;

ii. Whether substantial formal education or training is a necessary prerequisite to the
performance of the services; and

iii. Whether the services require a personal relationship between the individual and
municipal officials.

“Professional or technical services” shall include but not be limited to the
following services of:
i. An attorney;

ii. Services of a physician
iii. Technical services of an engineer engaged to prepare plans, maps and estimates;
iv. Securing insurance coverage and/or services of an insurance broker;
v. Services of a certified public accountant;
vi. Investment management services;
vii. Printing services involving extensive writing, editing or art work;
viii. Management of municipally owned property; and
ix. Computer software or programming services for customized programs, or
services involved in substantial modification and customizing of prepackaged
software.

To the extent practicable, professional services should be obtained through
requests for proposals issued by the City of Mount Vernon’s officials, department
heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents. All RFPs are to be reviewed by
said officials, department heads or their duly authorized purchasing agents, who
will make a recommendation to the City Council for final approval. The
determination of the RFP will be based on clearly described and documented
criteria, and will include the evaluation of the service provider’s accountability,
reliability, responsibility, skill, education and training, judgment, integrity and
moral worth. The City of Mount Vernon must provide documentation, such as but
not limited to a memorandum, outlining its evaluation and the basis for awarding
the contract for professional services.

In the event an RFP is not used to procure a professional service, no contract shall
be awarded without written documentation, such as but not limited to a
memorandum, outlining the procurement process, the evaluation methods used,
and the basis for awarding the contract.
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e. Procurements of professional services in excess of the sum of Five Thousand ($5,000.)
Dollars annually to any one contractor, though not subject to competitive bidding
requirements, are hereby required to be in the form of a written Professional Service
contract, signed by the party providing the service. and the City of Mount Vernon, and
shall detail the costs of the professional service. Such Professional Service Contracts
shall be subject to the approval of the City Council and the Board of Estimate and
Contract, unless such professional services procurement is specifically provided for by
another method in the Charter of the City of Mount Vernon (eg. Section 153 of the
Charter of the city of Mount Vernon) or in State Law.

B. Emergency purchases. For purpose of this section, an emergency refers to an occurrence
that presents an immediate threat to public property, the life, safety, health, welfare or
property of residents or the public, or threatens to curtail or terminate an essential service
to residents or the public. Due to the nature of this exception, these goods or services
must be purchased immediately and a delay in order to seek alternate proposals may
threaten the life, health, safety, property or welfare of the residents or City of Mount
Vernon. This section does not preclude alternate proposals if time permits. Emergency
purchases will be made at the discretion of the appropriate department head with the
appropriate documentation as to the nature of the emergency.

a. Documentation required — Procurement of goods and/or services shall be documented by,

at a minimum:
i. the nature of the emergency - a situation:
1. arising out of an accident or unforeseen occurrence or condition;
2. affecting public buildings, public property or the life, health, safety or
property of the City’s residents; and

3. that requires immediate action which cannot await competitive bidding.

ii. the verbal or written quote (documented in accordance with Sections 4B(i) and

4B(ii) above); and
iii. any other relevant information.

b. Pre-approved contractors — There shall be an established list of preapproved contractors

and service providers which shall be contacted and retained as necessary in emergency
situations. The Mayor shall be authorized to enter into contracts with said contractors and
service providers during emergencies. The provisions of this section shall not preclude
the hiring of contractors and service providers which are not on the list if deemed
necessary due to the nature of the emergency.

C. Sole Source. Under State Finance Law §163, “sole source” is defined as “a procurement
in which only one offeror is capable of supplying the required commodities or services,”
and no substantial equivalent exists. To qualify under the sole source exception, the City
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of Mount Vernon must demonstrate that the acquisition of the good or service sought is
in the public interest and is available from only one source, for which there is no
equivalent. A good or service serves the public interest if there are unique benefits arising
from the particular good or service as compared to a different good or service, no other
good or service would provide substantially similar benefits, and the cost is reasonable
when considering the benefit conferred upon the municipality.
a. Documentation Required — Procurement shall be documented by, at a minimum:
1. the unique benefit of the sole source item as compared to other items available in
the market place;

ii. the fact that no other item provides substantially equivalent or similar benefits;
considering the benefits received, that the cost of the sole source item is
reasonable when compared to conventional items; and

1ii. that, as a matter of fact, there is no possibility of competition for the procurement
of said sole source item.
. Preferred Source. Prior to entering into the competitive bidding process, the City is
required by law to purchase commodities and services from Preferred Sources if the
offering meets the form function, and utility required at a price no more than 15% above
the prevailing market rate from the organizational priority listing below:

1. Department of Correctional Services’ Correctional Industries Program
[Corcraft]
2. Approved, charitable, non-profit making agencies for the blind [NYSID]
3. Equal priority to approved, charitable, nonprofit agencies for the severely
disabled, qualified special employment programs for mentally ill persons,
and qualified veterans’ workshops. [NYSPSP]
Utilizing Preferred Sources bypasses the need for a competitive bid process, streamlines
procurement, and advances social and economic goals.

. Purchases of surplus and secondhand goods from any source or goods purchased at
auction. If alternate proposals are required, the City of Mount Vernon would be
precluded from purchasing surplus and secondhand goods at auctions or through specific
advertised sources where the best prices are usually obtained. It is also difficult to try to
compare prices of used goods and a lower price may indicate an older product.

Goods or services under $1,000. The time and documentation required to purchase
through this policy may be more costly than the item itself and would therefore not be in
the best interests of the taxpayer. In addition, it is not likely that such de minimis
contractors would be awarded based on favoritism.

. Cooperative or Piggyback Contracts. General Municipal Law §103(16) allows for the
procurement of certain goods (including apparatus, materials, equipment and supplies)
and services through contracts let by the United States or any agency thereof, any state or
any other political subdivision or district therein, if such contract was let in a manner
consistent with competitive bidding, and has been made available for use by other
governmental entities. The stated purpose is to reduce administrative and product cost,
and increase efficiencies. Through cooperative purchasing, or piggybacking, a
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governmental subdivision has already investigated and secured the lowest possible price
for the municipality. It is the responsibility of the City Council to review each proposed
procurement to determine, on advice of the Corporation Counsel as appropriate, whether
the procurement falls within this exception. Three items must be considered:
a. The contract must have been let by the United States or any agency thereof, any
state or any other political subdivision or district therein; and
b. The contract must have been made available for use by other governmental
entities; and
c. The contract must have been let in a manner that constitutes competitive bidding
consistent with state law.
If it is determined that all three items to consider have been met, the City Council shall
allow this exception to the requirements of competitive bidding and this policy. The
determination that cooperative purchasing is allowed shall be documented and a copy of
the government contract off which piggybacking is allowed must be included in such
documentation.

H. Shared Services, Efficiencies and Municipal Cooperation. The City of Mount Vernon
is encouraged and authorized to share services and work together with other
municipalities when possible to reduce costs.

I. True leases. The courts have held that “true lease” agreements are neither purchases nor
contracts for public work and, thus, are not subject to bidding under General Municipal
Law §103.

a. Documentation Required: Procurement shall be documented by, at a minimum:
1. Written quotes
ii. Cost-benefit of leasing versus purchasing
iii. any other relevant information.

§7. Other Considerations.

A. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest. When engaging in procurement activities, officials, department
heads or their duly authorized designees shall conduct themselves in accordance with City Code
Chapter 24.

C. Internal Control._A system of internal control shall be established by the Department of Finance
and shall provide for periodic review and monitoring of procurement procedures as outlined
herein which shall be reported to the City Council.

D. Benefit-Cost Analysis. Benefit-cost analysis involves weighing the benefit against the cost in
order to make a choice among alternatives that will yield the maximum benefit at the least cost.
When implementing the policies and procedures outlined herein, officials, department heads or
their duly authorized designees should consider the financial benefit of their actions taken to
procure goods and services, which should be economically more beneficial than their cost.

E. Environmental Awareness. Officials, department heads or duly authorized designees shall take
into consideration the environmental impact of goods and their energy efficiency when procuring

the same.



F. Maintenance and Durability. Further consideration shall be given to the cost of maintaining
said goods, and the durability, repairability and reliability of same.

G. Standardization of purchase. Standardization of a particular type of material or equipment must
be approved by a City Council resolution setting forth the reasons for a need for standardization
as defined in General Municipal Law §103. Such resolution shall state reasons of efficiency or

economy

§8 Individual(s) Responsible for Purchasing

A. Purchasing Agent

Procurement Manager

Commissioner of Management Services
Comptroller

Assistant Comptroller

monw

§9 Input from Officials, Department Heads and Purchasing Agent.

Comments concerning the policies and procedures have been solicited from officials, department heads,
and the Purchasing Agent of the City of Mount Vernon involved in the procurement process prior to the
enactment of this resolution. Further comments will be solicited from time to time as the City Council

may desire.

§10 Annual Review.

The City Council shall review these policies and procedures annually, and when necessary, and evaluate
whether the lists maintained by the City Clerk are being effectively utilized by officials, department heads

or their duly authorized designees to implement the requirements of General Municipal Law § 104-b.

The Committee Chairpersons of Finance and Planning and Legislation and Public Works shall be
responsible for conducting an annual evaluation of the effectiveness of the procurement policy and
procedures and an evaluation of the control procedures established to ensure compliance with the

procurement policy, and shall be responsible for reporting back to the City Council.

§11 Unintentional Failure to Comply.

In the event of an unintentional failure to fully comply with the provisions of General Municipal Law,
Section 104-b, the following corrective steps should be taken:
1. Immediate Review: Upon discovery of any unintentional noncompliance, an immediate review

shall be conducted to assess the extent and impact of the noncompliance.
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2. Notification: The officer or employee who identifies or learns of the noncompliance shall notify
their supervisor and the Corporation Counsel’s Office.

3. Documentation: All details of the noncompliance, including how it was discovered, the nature of
the noncompliance, and any immediate actions taken, must be documented.

4. Rectification Plan: A rectification plan must be developed and implemented to correct the
noncompliance. This plan should outline the steps to be taken to ensure compliance and prevent
future occurrences.

5. Review and Approval: The rectification plan shall be reviewed and approved by the appropriate
supervisory personnel and, if necessary, by the City Council.

6. Implementation: The approved rectification plan shall be implemented promptly to address any
issues arising from the noncompliance.

The unintentional failure to fully comply with the provisions of General Municipal Law, Section 104-b
shall not be grounds to void action taken or give rise to a cause of action against the City of Mount

Vernon or any officer or employee thereof.

§12 Training.
A. Annual Training: All department heads, purchasing agents, and relevant employees will undergo a
mandatory training session annually conducted by the Corporation Counsel or an appointed
representative, in collaboration with the Purchasing Manager or Agent on these procurement policies.
This training will reinforce the City's procurement procedures, ethical guidelines, and any recent

policy changes.

B. Training Documentation: Participation in annual training will be recorded and filed in the Office

of the City Clerk
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO
RETROACTIVELY ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MOUNT VERNON AND
BARRINGTON IRVING TECHNICAL TRAINING
SCHOOL (BITTS) FOR FIXED-BASED OPERATOR-LINE
SERVICE TECHNICIAN AND CUSTOMER SERVICE
CAREERS TRAINING

Whereas, by letter dated April 8, 2024, the Executive Director of the Youth Bureau has requested
legislation authorizing the Mayor to retroactively enter into an agreement with Barrington Irving
Technical Training School (BITTS) to conduct Fixed-Based Operator-Line Service Technician and
Customer Service Careers training from March 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024; and

Whereas, the City of Mount Vernon recognizes the importance of providing training
opportunities to its residents to enhance their skills and employability; and

Whereas, Barrington Irving Technical Training School (BITTS) offers comprehensive training
programs in Fixed Based Operator-Line Service Technician and Customer Service Careers, which
align with the needs of the aviation industry; and

Whereas, the City has secured grants from WDAY and Project RISE to fund the training
program provided by BITTS; and

Whereas, the Mayor seeks authorization from the City Council to enter into an agreement
with BITTS to conduct the training program from March 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024, in the amount of
$30,000.00; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization to Enter into Agreement. The Mayor is hereby authorized to
retroactively enter into an agreement with Barrington Irving Technical Training School (BITTS) to
conduct Fixed-Based Operator-Line Service Technician and Customer Service Careers training from
March 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024.
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Section 2. Training Program Overview. The training program provided by BITTS shall
offer a concise yet comprehensive exploration of key industry facets, including Fixed-Based
Operations (FBO), marshaling, ground service equipment, and customer service in aviation.

Section 3. Funding Allocation. The funds for the training program shall be allocated as
follows:

e $24,000.00 from Revenue Code A4790.6, appropriated in Budget Code
A6296.458 (Misc.-GVP).

. $6,000.00 from Revenue Code A4790.6, appropriated in Budget Code
A6295.405 (Contracted Outside Services-WDAY/Project RISE).

Section 4. Retroactive Referral. This referral is retroactive and is funded by grants
received from WDAY and Project RISE.

Section 5. Reimbursement. The training program is county and state-funded and requires
no matching, but it is considered as a reimbursable grant.

Section 6. Publication. The City Clerk is directed to publish this ordinance under the laws
of the State of New York.

Section 7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

YOUTH BUREAU
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square DEBBIE BURRELL-BUTLER, MBA
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Executive Director
(914) 665-2344 — Fax: (914) 665-1373 DENAT. WILLIAMS, MPA
IG: mountvernonyb | FB: mvyouthbureau Deputy Director

YOUTHBUREAU.CMVNY.COM
April 8, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
Through the Office of the Mayor

City Hall — One Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, NY 10550

Dear Honorable Members:

This letter comes to respectfully request that the City Council enact legislation that will enable the Mayor to enter into an
agreement with (BITTS) Barrington Irving Technical Training School to conduct Fixed Based Operator-Line Service
Technician and Customer Service Careers training. The service period is from March 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024, in the
amount of $30,000.00. This referral is retro and comes from two grants WDAY and Project RISE.

The BITTS course will offer a concise yet comprehensive exploration of key industry facets on-Line Service Technician
and Customer Service roles. Beginning with a focus on Fixed-Base Operations (FBO), a crucial cornerstone in aviation,
providing a comprehensive spectrum of services and facilities for private and business aircraft. FBO’s fuel, hangar, move,
and support business / general aviation aircraft across the country. The curriculum then delves into the integral role of
marshalling for secure ground aircraft movement. Following this, it covers the various facets of ground service equipment,
highlighting their impact on operational efficiency. The program concludes with a dedicated segment on elevating
customer experience in aviation, emphasizing superior service and quality standards to enhance overall satisfaction.
Collectively, these modules provide a holistic understanding of essential elements within the aviation landscape.
Candidates will also conduct on site trips to three different FBO facilities who will become the employers of the
candidates.

Funds are to be accounted for in revenue code A4790.6 with the appropriations in budget code A6296.458 in the amount
of $24,000 (Misc.-GVP) and budget code A6295.405 in the amount of $6,000 (Contracted Outside Services-
WDAY/Project RISE). The program is county and state funded and requires no matching but is considered as a
reimbursable grant. Should you require further information, please feel free to contact me at (914) 665-2344 or by email at
Dburrell@cmvny.com.

Sincerely,

Debbie Burrell-Butler
Debbie Burrell-Butler
Executive Director, MBA

Enclosed: Schedules A & B
CC: Shawyn Patterson-Howard, Mayor

Darren Morton, Comptroller
Brian Johnson, Corporation Counsel
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR
TO RETROACTIVELY ENTER INTO AN
AGREEMENT WITH CHEF GIOVANNI GREEN
OF BREAK BREAD NOT HEARTS

Whereas, by letter dated April 8, 2024, the Executive Director of the Youth Bureau has requested
legislation authorizing the Mayor to retroactively enter into an agreement with Break Bread Not Hearts,
represented by Chef Giovanni Green, for the implementation of the Food Literacy curriculum as
outlined in this ordinance; and

Whereas, the City of Mount Vernon recognizes the importance of community programs that
empower and educate its residents, particularly its youth, in making healthier and more informed food
choices; and

Whereas, Break Bread Not Hearts, in collaboration with the Mount Vernon Youth Bureau’s
SP40G Program, seeks to implement a Food Literacy curriculum aimed at achieving these goals; and

Whereas, the “Cooking UP Community” initiative, spearheaded by Chef Giovanni Green,
emphasizes the significance of locally sourced food and culinary diversity within the community; and

Whereas, the City Council acknowledges the positive impact such programs can have on the
overall health and well-being of Mount Vernon residents, as well as the enhancement of culinary skills
and cultural appreciation among participants; and

Whereas, the financial aspects of the program have been diligently planned and accounted for,
with funding allocated through Revenue Code A2229.8 (Westchester County Youth Bureau Grant-
KIDS) with appropriations in Budget Code A7318.405 (Contracted Outside Services), without
imposing any additional burden on the city’s budget; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization. The Mayor of Mount Vernon is hereby authorized to enter into
an agreement with Break Bread Not Hearts, represented by Chef Giovanni Green, for the
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implementation of the Food Literacy curriculum as outlined in this ordinance.

Section 2. Program Details. The service period for the program shall commence on March
1, 2024, and conclude on June 30, 2024.

e The total amount allocated for this agreement shall be $8,925.00.

e Chef Giovanni Green shall conduct 17 sessions, each lasting 3 hours, aimed at
providing participants with culinary skills and food literacy education.

J A culminating event shall be organized at the end of the program, where
participants will showcase their skills in a cook show-and-tell or cook-off event, open to
parents and community members.

Section 3. Reporting and Documentation. Chef Giovanni Green shall be responsible for
gathering quantitative and qualitative data throughout the program duration to provide periodic reports
and documentation regarding student progress and participation.

Section 4. Financial Provisions. The funds allocated for this program shall be accounted
for in Revenue Code A2229.8 (Westchester County Youth Bureau Grant-KIDS) with appropriations in
Budget Code A7318.405 (Contracted Outside Services).

e The program is state-funded and does not require any matching funds from
the city.

Section 5. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of
this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

Section 6. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 7. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish this
ordinance under the laws of the State of Mount Vernon.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board of
Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

YOUTH BUREAU
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square DEBBIE BURRELL-BUTLER, MBA
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Executive Director
(914) 665-2344 — Fax: (914) 665-1373 DENAT. WILLIAMS, MPA
IG: mountvernonyb | FB: mvyouthbureau Deputy Director

YOUTHBUREAU.CMVNY.COM

April 8, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
Through the Office of the Mayor

City Hall — One Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, NY 10550

Dear Honorable Members:

This letter respectfully requests that the City Council enact legislation that will enable the mayor to enter into an agreement with
Break Bread Not Hearts with Chef Giovanni Green. The service period is from March 1, 2024, to June 30, 2024, and the
amount is $8,925.00. This referral letter should be considered a retro from the Safe Place for Out Girls grant.

Break Bread Not Hearts, in collaboration with the Mount Vernon Youth Bureau’s SP4OG Program, aims to facilitate a Food
Literacy curriculum. This program is designed to empower and educate participants on how to make healthier and more
informed food choices, thereby improving their overall health. The culinary skills they will acquire will not only benefit them
personally but also contribute to the community's culinary diversity. “Cooking UP Community” has been the slogan and driving
manifesto of Break Bread Not Hearts, emphasizing the importance of the food that is being prepared and the farms and families
that produce it. Chef Giovanni Green will gather quantitative and qualitative data to provide periodic reports and documentation
regarding student progress and participation in this program. Chef Green will bring all the supplies; there will be 17 sessions,
and each session is 3 hours. At the end of the program, there will be a culminating event showcasing the participants’ skills in a
cook show-and-tell or cook-off event where parents and community members can be in attendance.

The financial aspect of this program is well-planned and accounted for. The funds are to be accounted for in revenue code
A2229.8 with the appropriations in budget code A7318.405 in the amount of $8,925.00 (Contracted Outside Services). The
program is state-funded and requires no matching funds, ensuring that it puts no burden on the city's budget. The financial
aspect of this program is well-planned and accounted for in the Comptroller’s Office, further confirming the financial feasibility
of this proposal. Should you require further information, please feel free to contact me at (914) 665-2344 or by email at
Dburrell@cmvny.com.

Sincerely,

Debbie Burrell-Butler
Debbie Burrell-Butler
Executive Director, MBA

Enclosed: Schedules A & B
CC:  Shawyn Patterson-Howard, Mayor

Darren Morton, Comptroller
Brian Johnson, Corporation Counsel

“The Jewel of Westchester”

73


mailto:Dburrell@cmvny.com

. 1 ROOSEVELT SQ. RM.
City of Mount Vernon, New York oyt vounT
VERNON, NEW YORK
Staff Report VTN
FACEBOOK.
COM/MOUNTVERNONNY

File #: TMP -560 Agenda Date: 4/24/2024 Agenda #: 11 -
A

City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
ATTENDANCE AT THE NATIONAL
ASSOCIATION FOR RELATIONSHIP AND
MARRIAGE EDUCATION (NARME) SUMMIT

Whereas, by letter dated April 12, 2024, the Executive Director of the Youth Bureau has
requested legislation authorizing the Executive Director and the Ready4LIFE Director to attend the
National Association for Relationship and Marriage Education (NARME) Summit in Oklahoma City
from Sunday, June 23, to Wednesday, June 26, 2024, as panelists representing the city alongside the
Dibbles Institute; and

Whereas, the City of Mount Vernon recognizes the importance of investing in the professional
development of its key personnel, particularly those involved in youth and family services; and

Whereas, the National Association for Relationship and Marriage Education (NARME)
provides invaluable knowledge and strategies for enhancing relationship education, family formation,
and poverty prevention in communities across America; and

Whereas, the NARME Summit presents a unique opportunity for the Mount Vernon Youth
Bureau Executive Director and the Ready4LIFE Director to participate as panelists alongside the
esteemed Dibbles Institute; and

Whereas, the City Council acknowledges the significance of this Summit and the potential
benefits it holds for the city's youth and family programs; and

Whereas, the financial aspects of attending the Summit have been thoroughly assessed and
accounted for, with funds allocated through Revenue Code A4820.4 and appropriations in Budget
Codes A7335.402 (Travel Expense) and A7335.423 (Conference Expense) totaling $3,000, without
imposing any additional financial burden on the city; Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization for Attendance. The Mayor of Mount Vernon is hereby granted
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authority to allow the Mount Vernon Youth Bureau Executive Director and the Ready4LIFE Director
to attend the NARME Summit in Oklahoma City from Sunday, June 23, to Wednesday, June 26, 2024,
as panelists representing the city alongside the Dibbles Institute.

Section 2. Summit Costs.

1. The costs associated with attending the Summit shall include:

e Registration fees for two attendees: $598 each

e Hotel accommodations for two attendees for three nights: $376.61 per
person

e Meals per diem for two people for four days (breakfast, lunch, and
dinner): $64 per day per person

e Ground transportation to and from airports and the hotel for two attendees
(estimated): $500

e Airfare for two attendees: $480.30 per person, totaling $960.60

2. The total cost of attendance shall not exceed $3,000.
Section 3. Financial Provisions.

1. The funds allocated for attendance at the Summit shall be accounted for in
Revenue Code A4820.4.

2. Appropriations for Summit expenses shall be made from Budget Codes
A7335.402 (Travel Expense) and A7335.423 (Conference Expense) in the amount of $3,000.

3. The program is federally funded and does not require any matching funds
from the city. Funds have already been allocated in the Comptroller’s Office.

Section 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of
this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof.

Section 5. Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in
conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 6. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to publish this
ordinance in accordance with the laws of the State of Mount Vernon.
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Section 7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

YOUTH BUREAU
SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall, One Roosevelt Square DEBBIE BURRELL-BUTLER, MBA
Mayor Mount Vernon. NY. 10550 Executive Director
(914) 665-2344 — Fax: (914) 665-1373 DENAT. WILLIAMS, MPA
IG: mountvernonyb | FB: mvyouthbureau Deputy Director

YOUTHBUREAU.CMVNY.COM

April 12, 2024

Honorable Members of the City Council
Through the Office of the Mayor

City Hall — One Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, NY 10550

Dear Honorable Members:

This letter respectfully requests that the City Council enact legislation that will enable the Mayor to grant the Mount
Vernon Youth Bureau Executive Director and the Ready4LIFE Director permission to attend the highly significant
NARME Summit in Oklahoma City as panelists with the esteemed Dibbles Institute from Sunday, June 23, to
Wednesday, June 26, 2024. The Summit will be held at the Skirvin Hilton Hotel

The National Association for Relationship and Marriage Education (NARME) provides state, local, and national leaders
with the knowledge and strategies needed for thriving communities across America in relationship education, family
formation, and poverty prevention. The cost associated with the summit is as follows: Registration x2 $598; Hotel x 2 (3
nights) $376.61; Meals per diem $64 x 2 people * 4 days (breakfast, lunch, and dinner) $512; Ground Transportation to and
from airports and hotel x2 (estimated) $500; Airfare $480.30 per person $960.60.

The funds for this summit are to be accounted for in revenue code A4820.4 with the appropriations in budget code
A7335.402 (Travel Expense) and &7335.423 (Conference Expense) in the amount of $3,000. It's important to note that
the program is federally funded and requires no matching, meaning the funds are already accounted for in the
Comptroller’s Office and will not impose any financial burden on the city. Should you require further information, please
feel free to contact me at (914) 665-2344 or by email at Dburrell@cmvny.com.

Sincerely,

Debbie Burrell-Butler
Debbie Burrell-Butler
Executive Director, MBA

Enclosed: Confirmations
CC: Shawyn Patterson-Howard, Mayor

Darren Morton, Comptroller
Brian Johnson, Corporation Counsel

“The Jewel of Westchester” 77


mailto:Dburrell@cmvny.com

NARME Workshop Schedule
Monday June 24
10:15 - 11:15 Workshops A (6)

Name: Kristin Orphan & Mark Orphan

Organization: Family Wellness

Presentation Title: Strengthening Foster, Adoptive, and Kinship Families
Faith Based

Name: Alan J. Hawkins

Organization: Utah Marriage Commission

Presentation Title: A Model State Legislative Agenda to Strengthen Marriages and
Families

Name: Catherine Wood
Organization: Relationships Under Construction
Presentation Title: Generations - Your Secret to Success!

Names: Sara Murry, Mariana Falconier, Zeinab (Sarah) Azizi, Jessica Fish, &
Sarah Fritz

Organization: University of Maryland

Presentation Title: TOGETHER Program LGBTQ+ Adaptation

Name: Heather Carlile
Organization: Private Practice
Presentation Title: Using the Enneagram for Relationships

Name: Dr. Leah McCoy

Organization: The Legacy Center, PLLC

Presentation Title: Lets Talk About Sex, The Sweetest Taboo: Examining the Impact of
Sexual Messages on Marital and Sexual Satisfaction in African American Relationships
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Monday June 24

11:30 - 12:30 Workshops B

Names: Ronde Walch & Melody Barenbrugge

Organization: Utah State University Extension

Presentation: Increase participation by building partnerships in the “Goldilocks zone™: A
Top-down, Grassroots Approach

Name: Carl Caton
Organization: The Marriage Initiative
Presentation Title: Leading a Community Collaboration

Names: Tammy Daughtry & Jay S. Daughtry

Organization: CoParenting International

Presentation Title: One Heart, Two Homes: Co-parenting Tools for Working with Single
Parents, Stepparents, Never Married Parents and Today's Complex Families

Name: Jeremy Walden

Organization: Auburn University
Presentation Title: Fostering Foster Families
Faith Based

Name: Lauren Reitsema
Organization: Center for Relationship Education
Presentation Title: The Blueprint for Life Success

Name: Kelly Roberts

Organization: Oklahoma Christian University

Presentation Title: Sacred Ground: Meta-Lessons and Revelations from 25 Years in
RME

Faith Based
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Monday June 24
2:00 - 3:15 Workshops C

Names: Dennis Stoica & Carl Caton

Organization: Community Marriage Initiative

Presentation Title: Leading a Community Marriage Initiative
Faith Based

Names: Mindy Scott & Matthew Rivas-Koehl

Organization: Child Trends

Presentation Title: Core Components of Relationship Education: Building Blocks for
Family Well-being

Names: Liz Shumate & Camal Pennington

Organization: Public Strategies

Presentation Title: Key elements of positive impacts, the integration of research and
responsive practice.

Name: James Worthy
Organization: National Responsible Fatherhood Clearinghouse
Presentation Title: Best Practices for Engaging Fathers in Relationship Education

Names: Jo Anne Eason Allie Wallace, Sarah Simister, Mary Ann Slanina & Debbie
Burrell-Butler

Organization: The Dibble Institute

Presentation Title: Youth Programs That Work - What is Their Secret Sauce?

Name: Doug Stephens

Organization: Live the Life

Presentation Title: Building Your Team To Do Dream Work
Faith Based

80



Tuesday June 25
11:00 - 12:15 Workshops D

Name: Laresha Tyler

Organization: Hope for Miami

Presentation Title: Using Qualitative Data in Evaluation: Amplifying Youth Voice for
Program Improvement

Name: Jerry Angelo

Organization: Vanguard Marriage and Family Advocates

Presentation Title: Converting Opportunities Into Action Through Networking &
Relationships

Faith Based

Name: Nikki Anarado

Organization: Prepare to be Pursued

Presentation Title: How Intentional Dating Promote Healthy Dual-Parent Households
Faith Based

Name: Washington Jackson lll
Organization: MY CHANCE - HOUSTON
Presentation Title: Pass Me The Baton

Name: Lisa Ross
Organization: Anthem Strong Families
Presentation Title: Marketing to the Most Difficult Demographic

Name: Stephanie D. McKenzie
Organization: Digital Divine, LLC
Presentation Title: "Is Love Your Business?!?!"
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Tuesday June 25
2:00 - 3:15 Workshops E (6)

Name: Ron & Catherine Tijerina
Organization: The Ridge Project, Inc
Presentation Title: The Effects of Incarceration on Marriage and Parenting

Names: Mary Ann Slanina & Corey Odle
Organization: Youth and Family Services
Presentation Title: Healthy Relationships-What Teens Need-AND want!

Names: Alan Ray & Matthew Zoller

Organization: MarriageTeam

Presentation Title: Marriage Coaching: A Paradigm Shift in Marriage Education
Faith Based

Names: Alan Hawkins (Moderator), Seth Chamberlain, Taffy Compain, & Kailiah
Thomas (Discussants) and, other presenters to be identified

Organization: Utah Marriage Commission

Presentation Title: The Federal Healthy Marriage and Responsible Fatherhood
Initiatives: Reflecting on Lessons Learned, Thinking about Future Directions

Name: Calvin Copeland

Organization: Forever Love Coaching LLC

Presentation Title: Understanding the Purpose of Marriage and Relationships: A Path
to Lasting Passion and Results

Faith Based

Names: Susanne M. Alexander & Monette Van Lith

Organization: Marriage Transformation

Presentation Title: How to Have Fun Family Meetings That Build Unity
Faith Based
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING COMMISSIONER
PATRICK HOLDER TO ATTEND THE 2024
INTERNATIONAL CODE COUNCIL (ICC) ANNUAL
CONFERENCE AND EXPO (October 20-23, 2024)

Whereas, by letter dated March 26, 2024, the Commissioner for the Department of Buildings has
requested legislation authorizing him to attend the 2024 International Code Council (ICC) Annual
Conference and Expo in Long Beach, California, from October 20 to October 23, 2024; and

Whereas, it is necessary for Commissioner Patrick Holder to attend the ICC in Long Beach,

California; and

Whereas, the ICC Annual Conference provides valuable opportunities for building professionals and
industry leaders to network and learn about the latest advancements in building safety; and

Whereas, the total cost of attendance, including registration fees and related expenses, is estimated to
be $3,300.00; and

Whereas, funds for Commissioner Patrick Holder’s attendance at the ICC Annual Conference will be
allocated from Budget Code A3620.451 (Training); Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization. Commissioner Patrick Holder is hereby authorized to attend the 2024
International Code Council (ICC) Annual Conference and Expo in Long Beach, California, from October 20 to
October 23, 2024.

Section 2. Cost. The total cost of attendance, including registration fees and related expenses, shall
not exceed $3,300.00.

Section 3. Source of Funds. Funds for Commissioner Patrick Holder’s attendance at the ICC
Annual Conference shall be allocated from Budget Code A3620.451 (Training).
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Section 4. Submission of Receipts. Commissioner Patrick Holder shall submit all receipts related
to the conference expenses upon return.

Section S. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unenforceable,
such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions.

Section 6. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this
ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 7. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance in accordance
with the laws of the State of New York.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board of
Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, NY

DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall — One Roosevelt Square, Room 210 Patrick G. Holder, R.A.

Mayor Mount Vernon, NY 10550 Commissioner
(914) 665-2483 or (914) 665-2498
Email: DoB@cmvny.com

Website: www.cmvyny.com

March 26, 2024

The Honorable City Council of the City of Mount Vernon
City Hall

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
Re: Legislation for attending ICC Annual Conference 2024 Meeting
Dear Council President Gleason and Honorable City Council Members:

The purpose of this letter is to respectfully request that the City Council enact legislation which
will allow Commissioner Patrick Holder to attend the 2024 International Code Council Annual
Conference and Expo ICC in Long Beach, Ca on October 20", through October 23, 2024. The
ICC annual conference is a safety event bringing together building professionals and industry
leaders from around the world to network and learn about the latest advancements in building
safety.

The cost of the training includes registration of $715.00 per government membership. The total
cost is not to exceed $3,300.00 including all related expenses and access to and from the
conference.

Funds are to be taken from Budget Code A. 3620.451 budget line for training in the 2024
Budget. All receipts shall be submitted upon return.

Thank you in adv for your consideration of this matter.

Patrick G. Holder
Commissioner
Department of Buildings
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Why You Should Attend

This year's conference will feature industry-leading educational sessions, valuable career resources,
special networking events, inspiring speakers and historic building tours

Who Should Attend
The Internaticnal Code Council’s Annual Conference brings together building safety professionals from around the world

Benefits of Attending Annual Conference

Mo matter whene you ane in your bunldeng salety caneer ~ just startang oul of in the thick of things and looking to expand your code
Inowledpe or leadership skills - the Code Council has a track record of delivering value. During the conference, participants will have
thi apporiunity 1o network, eamm CEUS, acoess career resources, sociakre with peers, and participate in elections and other
association business, Our attendees walk away with smart strategies, actionable tactics, improved skills and real connections with
thi people who are shaping the future of building safety.
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING
RETROACTIVE PAYMENT FOR REPAIRS
ON NON-CITY-OWNED PROPERTIES

Whereas, by letter dated April 15, 2024, the Commissioner for the Department of Buildings
has requested legislation authorizing retroactive payment of $7,863.10 for repairs on non-city-
owned properties as detailed below; and

Whereas, it is necessary for the City Council of Mount Vernon, New York, to authorize
retroactive payment for repairs on non-city-owned properties; and

Whereas, the repairs undertaken were essential to address emergency unsafe conditions and
ensure the safety and well-being of residents; and

Whereas, the total cost of the repairs on non-city-owned properties amounts to $7,863.10; and

Whereas, funds for the repairs have been allocated from Budget Code A3620.443, Emergency
Unsafe Conditions-2024 Budget; and

Whereas, property liens are to be placed on the following properties:

Property Address Amount Year

341 Fourth Avenue $3,250.00 2018

349 South Fourth Avenue $645.00 2018

102 Mount Vernon Avenue $1,650.00 2018

261 South Second Avenue $1,718.00 2019

48 Wildwood Avenue $600.00 2022
Total: $7,863.10

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Authorization of Retroactive Payment. The City Council hereby authorizes the
retroactive payment of $7,863.10 for repairs on non-city-owned properties as detailed above.
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Section 2. Source of Funds. The funds for the repairs shall be allocated from Budget Code
A3620.443, Emergency Unsafe Conditions-2024 Budget.

Section 3. Property Liens. Property liens shall be placed on the aforementioned properties
to secure the repayment of the retroactive payment for repairs.

Section 4. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the
remaining provisions.

Section 5. Repeal. All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of
this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency.

Section 6. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance in
accordance with the laws of the State of New York.

Section 7. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, NY
DEPARTMENT OF BUILDINGS

SHAWYN PATTERSON-HOWARD City Hall -~ One Roosevelt Square, Room 210
Mayor Mount Vernon, NY 10550
(914) 665-2483 or (914) 665-2498
Email: DoB@@cmyvny.com

Website: www.cmvny.com

April 15,2024
The Honorable City Council of the City of Mount Vernon
City Hall

1 Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, New York 10550

THROUGH THE OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
Re: Authorization to Retroactively Pay for Repairs

Dear Council President Gleason and Honorable City Council Members:

Patrick G. Holder, R.A.
Commissioner

The purpose of this letter is to respectfully request that the City Council enact legislation which
will allow authorization to retroactively pay for repairs for non-city owned properties. These
unsafe and dangerous properties were repaired as far back as 2018 and the contractors remain
unpaid today. The majority of the work occurred previous to this administration as detailed in the
below chart. However, did not receive legislative approval during the previous administration
who at the time deemed the repairs necessary for the safety of the community. Funds are
available from Budget Code A.3620.443 budget line for emergency unsafe conditions in the
2024 Budget. The properties total cost of the liens is $7,863.10. Property liens will be placed on

the properties listed below:

341 Fourth Avenue $3,250.00 2018
349 S, Fourth Avenue $645.00 2018
102 Mt. Vernon Avenue $1,650.00 2018
261 So. Second Avenue $1,718.10 2019
48 Wildwood Avenue $ 600.00 2022
Total $7,863.10

Thank you in cc for your cpnsideration of this matter.

trick (' 1{olde
Commissioner
Department of Buildings
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING RETROACTIVE
ATTENDANCE FOR TWO (2) MEMBERS OF SERVICE
(“MOS”) AT THE CONSENSUAL ENCOUNTERS TRAINING

Whereas, by letter dated April 4, 2024, the Commissioner for the Department of Public
Safety has requested legislation for the attendance of two (2) Members of Service (“MoS”) at the
Consensual Encounters Training, held on Thursday, February 8, 2024, at the Paladin Center located
at 39 Seminary Hill Road, Carmel, NY; and

Whereas, the Department of Public Safety recognizes the importance of ongoing training for
its members; and

Whereas, the Consensual Encounters Training held on February 8, 2024, provided valuable
knowledge and skills for law enforcement personnel; and

Whereas, the attendance of two MoS at the Consensual Encounters Training incurred a total
cost of $250.00 ($125.00 per person); and

Whereas, the funds for this training were allocated in Budget Line A3120.451 (Training);
Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Retroactive Authorization for Attendance. The retroactive attendance of the
two (2) MoS at the Consensual Encounters Training, held on February 8, 2024, at the Paladin Center,
is hereby approved and authorized. Permission is also granted for said Members of Service to utilize
a department vehicle to and from said training course.

Section 2. Funding. The total cost of $250.00 for the Consensual Encounters Training for
two MoS shall be satisfied from Budget Line A3120.451 (Training).
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Section 3. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is held to be invalid or
unenforceable, the remaining provisions shall remain in full force and effect.

Section 4. Enactment. This ordinance shall be deemed enacted upon approval by the City
Council and signature by the Mayor.

Section 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect upon its approval by the Board
of Estimate & Contract.
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY
BUREAU OF POLICE

ROOSEVELT SQUARE
MOUNT VERNON, NY 10550
(914) 665-2500
DAVID GIBSON JENNIFER LACKARD MARCEL OLIFIERS
POLICE COMMISSIONER DEPUTY COMMISSIONER CHIEF OF OPERATIONS
SHAWYN PATTERSON - HOWARD
MAYOR
April 4, 2024
REVISED

Honorable City Council Members
City of Mount Vernon

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, New York 10550

RE: Consensual Encounters Training FOR APPROVAL AT THE April 10th, 2024
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

Honorable Councilmembers:

The Department of Public Safety requests that the City Council retroactively approve a Resolution for
two (2) Members of Service to attend the Consensual Encounters Training which was held on
Thursday February 8", 2024. The training was held at the Paladin Center at 39 Seminary Hill Road in
Carmel Hamlet, NY. '

The cost for this training for two (2) Members of Service was $250.00 ($125.00 per person) and will be
satisfied from Budget Line #A3120.451 (Training). No department vehicle was needed for use.

If this request meets the approval of your Honorable Body, please enact legislation granting this
approval.

Sincerely,

David Gibson 7
Commissioner of Public Safety

cc: Mayor
Comptroller
Law Department
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City Council:

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE
ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2017 ANNUAL
INDEPENDENT AUDIT BY PKF O'CONNOR DAVIES

Whereas, by letter dated April 19, 2024, the Comptroller has requested legislation authorizing
the City Council of the City of Mount Vernon to accept the 2017 Annual Independent Audit prepared
by PKF O’Connor Davies; and

Whereas, in accordance with the General Municipal Finance Law and Section 98 of the
Mount Vernon City Charter, an annual independent audit is required to be conducted and submitted to
the City Council, the Mayor, and the Comptroller; and

Whereas, it is incumbent upon the City of Mount Vernon to ensure transparency and
accountability in its financial management by conducting regular audits; and

Whereas, PKF O’Connor Davies has conducted the 2017 Annual Independent Audit for the
City of Mount Vernon in compliance with professional standards and practices; and

Whereas, it is essential to adopt the findings of the 2017 Annual Independent Audit and any
corrective measures to address identified issues and enhance financial stewardship; Now, Therefore,
Be It Resolved That

The City of Mount Vernon, in City Council convened, does hereby ordain, and enact:

Section 1. Acceptance of the 2017 Annual Independent Audit. The City Council of the
City of Mount Vernon hereby accepts the 2017 Annual Independent Audit prepared by PKF O’Connor
Davies.

Section 2. Compliance with Legal Requirements. The City Council acknowledges that
the acceptance of the 2017 Annual Independent Audit complies with the General Municipal Finance
Law and Section 98 of the Mount Vernon City Charter.
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Section 3. Distribution of Audit Documents. Copies of the final audit documents for the
2017 fiscal year shall be made accessible to the City Council, the Mayor, the Comptroller, and the
general public.

Section 4. Adoption of Corrective Action Measures. The City Council authorizes the
implementation of any corrective action measures identified in the 2017 Annual Independent Audit to
address deficiencies and improve financial management practices.

Section 5. Severability. If any provision of this ordinance is found to be invalid or
unenforceable, it shall not affect the validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions.

Section 6. Repeal. Any ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are
hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 7. Publication. The City Clerk is hereby directed to publish this ordinance in
accordance with legal requirements.

Section 8. Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption by
the City Council.
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CITY OF MOUNT VERNON, N.Y.

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

Darren M. Morton, Ed.D., CPRP, CMFO
Comptroller City Hall, One Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, NY, 10550
(914) 665-2303

April 19, 2024

The Honorable City Council
City Hall

1 Roosevelt Square

Mount Vernon, NY 10550

RE: COMP2024-08 — Acceptance of the 2017 Annual Independent Audit prepared by PKF O’Connor
Davies

Honorable City Council Members:

| am pleased to announce and submit the 2017 City Audit for acceptance by your Honorable Body.
Pursuant to General Municipal Finance Law and the Mount Vernon City Charter Section 98 —
Independent Audit, the annual independent audit shall be submitted to the City Council, the Mayor and
the Comptroller. Additionally, copies are to be made accessible to the public.

Therefore, enclosed you will find copies of the final audit documents for the 2017 fiscal year. Itis my
request for the City Council to adopt this audit and any corrective action measures. |If there are any
questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Thanking you in advance for your assistance in this matter.

Respectfully,

LIEA

Darren M. Morton, Ed.D., CPRP, CMFO
Comptroller

City of Mount Vernon

1 Roosevelt Sq.

Mount Vernon, NY 10550
dmorton@cmvny.com

914-665-2304

cc: Mayor Shawyn Patterson-Howard
Corporation Counsel
File
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D PKF

OCONNOR
DAVIES

ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and the City Council
of the City of Mount Vernon, New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Mount Vernon, New York (“City”) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Mount Vernon Board of Water Supply, which represents 6.8% of the assets
and 8.4% of the revenues of the governmental activities. We also did not audit the financial statements of
the Mount Vernon Industrial Development Agency (a component unit), which represents 100% of the
assets and revenues of the discretely presented component unit, for the year ended December 31, 2017.
Those statements were audited by another auditor, whose report has been furnished to us, and our
opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for such component unit, is based solely on the report
of the other auditor. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’'s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinions as described in the following Summary of Opinions table.

PKF O’'CONNOR DAVIES, LLP
500 Mamaroneck Avenue, Harrison, NY 10528 | Tel: 914.381.8900 | Fax: 914.381.8910 | www.pkfod.com

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP is a member firm of the PKF International Limited network of legally independent firms and does not accept any responsibility or liability
for the actions or inactions on the part of any other individual member firm or firms.
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Summary of Opinions

Opinion Unit Type of Opinion

Governmental Activities Disclaimer
Aggregate Discretely Presented Component Units Unmodified
General Fund Unmodified
Community Development Fund Unmodified
Capital Projects Fund Unmodified
Water Fund Disclaimer
Debt Service Fund Unmodified
Aggregate Remaining Fund Information Qualified

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion on Governmental Activities and Water Fund

The auditors for the Mount Vernon Board of Water Supply (“Water Fund”) were unable to satisfy
themselves by applying auditing procedures concerning balance sheet and revenue and expenditure
account balances. In addition, they were unable to confirm or verify account balances through document
observation or testing of controls to confirm the efficiency and effectiveness of internal controls over
financial reporting. As of the date of the auditors’ report, management was still in the process of rectifying
system deficiencies. As a result of these matters, they were unable to determine whether adjustments were
necessary in order to conclude the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Disclaimer of Opinion on Governmental Activities and Water Fund

Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph,
sufficient appropriate audit evidence was not able to be obtained to provide a basis for an audit opinion.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the financial statements of the governmental activities and
the Water Fund.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information

The City has reported compensated absences in the amount of $4,947,069 on the statement of net
position at December 31, 2017. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence surrounding
this balance because the records were not being maintained properly and could not be compiled into a
comprehensive and coherent format suitable for the audit. Consequently, we were unable to determine
whether any adjustment to this amount was necessary.

Qualified Opinion on Aggregate Remaining Fund Information

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of the other auditor and except for the effects of the
matters described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the
discretely presented component unit and each major fund of the City, as of December 31, 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective
budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted Management’s Discussion and Analysis that accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial statements.
Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. Our opinion
on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedules
included under the Required Supplementary Information in the accompanying table of contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
State of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries,
the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit for the year ended December 31, 2017 was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the
financial statements that collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The individual fund
financial statements and schedules for the year ended December 31, 2017 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017 and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund financial statements and schedules are
fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year
ended December 31, 2017.

We also previously audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the
City as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016 (not presented herein), and have issued our report
thereon dated March 3, 2023, which contained qualified opinions on the respective financial statements
of the governmental activities, the discretely presented component units, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information. The individual fund financial statements and schedules for the
year ended December 31, 2016 are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the 2016
financial statements. The individual fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 2016 basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare those financial statements or to those financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the individual fund financial statements and schedules are
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fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole for the year
ended December 31, 2016.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April 4, 2024
on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

PE O Gans, Dans, LLP

PKF O’Connor Davies, LLP
Harrison, New York
April 4, 2024
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents
Cash - Restricted
Cash held in escrow
Receivables
Taxes, net
Accounts, net
Water rents
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Mortgages, net
Rents
Other
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Capital assets
Not being depreciated
Being depreciated, net

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Pension related

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Due to school district
Overpayments
Unearned revenues
Deposits payable
Accrued interest payable
Non-current liabilities

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Taxes collected in advance
Pension related

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Community development
Capital projects
Liability and casualty claims
Debt service
Industrial development agency
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Primary Component
Government Unit
Industrial
Governmental Development
Activities Agency

$ 23863567 $ 2,393,236
- 896,691
- 163,983
7,382,917 53,269
2,484,861 -
4,577,484 -
3,129,055 -
889,629 -
3,930,750 -
- 224,213

- 27,111
5,612,080 8,026
467,993 -
5,730,931 245,000
84,736,897 1,399,995
142,806,164 5,411,524
25,530,178 -
8,826,996 247,216
430,754 120,389
3,164,391 -
1,798,084 -
289,265 104,152

- 896,691
292,123 -
9,612,507 -
146,671,084 -
171,085,204 1,368,448
581,664 -
5,342,913 -
5,924,577 -
73,497,206 1,644,995
3,641,988 -
3,623,661 -
1,691,452 -
106,343 -

- 2,398,081
(91,234,089) -
$ (8,673,439) $ 4,043,076
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Primary government
Governmental activities
General government support $ 25,578,163 §$ 946,877 $ 327,127 $ -
Public safety 81,293,741 6,559,729 528,246 127,590
Health 266,044 - 652,414 -
Transportation 1,235,268 - - 1,038,877
Economic opportunity
and development 1,823,881 18,137 1,679,319 -
Culture and recreation 7,896,236 629,423 472,023 -
Home and community services 28,269,837 11,709,371 2,460,806 -
Interest 635,525 - - 4,103
Total Governmental Activities
Primary Government $ 146,998,695 §$ 19,863,537 §$ 6,119,935 §$ 1,170,570

Component unit
Industrial Development Agency

$ 3,191,226 $ - 3 - 3

General revenues
Real property taxes
Other tax items
Interest and penalties on real property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes
Loss on sale of tax acquired properties
Real estate transfer tax
Non-property taxes
Utilities gross receipts taxes
Cable television franchise taxes
Sales taxes
Unrestricted use of money and property
Unrestricted State aid
Rental income
Miscellaneous

Total General Revenues
Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning, as reported

Prior Period Adjustment
Beginning, as restated

Ending

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expense) Revenue
and Changes in Net Position

Primary Component
Government Unit
Industrial
Governmental Development
Activities Agency

$  (24,304,159) $ -
(74,078,176) -
386,370 -
(196,391) ;

(126,425)

(6,794,790)
(14,099,660) -

(631,422)

(119,844,653) -

- (3,191,226)

60,052,009 -

1,069,708 -
544,021 1,102,492
(36,461) -
2,922,624 -

827,291 -
1,185,701 -
20,264,450 -
42,498 -
8,586,414 -
- 102,051
2,286,676 543,885

97,744,931 1,748,428

(22,099,722) (1,442,798)

13,426,283 5,389,484
- 96,390
13,426,283 5,485,874

$ (8,673,439) $ 4,043,076
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Taxes receivable, net

Other receivables
Accounts, net
Water rents
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Mortgages, net
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures
Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other governments

Due to school district

Due to other funds

Overpayments

Unearned revenues - Other

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues

Deferred mortgage principal repayments

Taxes collected in advance

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Community Capital

General Development Projects
15,812,959 $ 1,161,374 2,803,934
7,382,917 - -
2,438,786 - 41,910
2,462,140 77,149 589,766
889,271 358 -
- 3,930,750 -
3,483,067 - 1,660,399
9,273,264 4,008,257 2,292,075
5,593,471 18,609 -
38,062,611 $ 5,188,240 5,096,009
2,242619 $ - 492,052
2,921,875 352,389 -
429,979 775 -
3,164,391 - -
9,506,504 - 31,839
1,798,084 - -
- 162,479 126,786
20,063,452 515,643 650,677
6,632,229 - -
- 3,930,750 -
581,664 - -
7,213,893 3,930,750 -
27,277,345 4,446,393 650,677
5,593,471 18,609 -
192,282 723,238 4,445,332
3,000,077 - -
1,999,436 - -
10,785,266 741,847 4,445,332
38,062,611 $ 5,188,240 5,096,009

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total

Debt Governmental

Water Service Funds
4,085,150 150 23,863,567
- - 7,382,917
4,165 - 2,484,861
4,577,484 - 4,577,484
- - 3,129,055
- - 889,629
- - 3,930,750
574177 2,440,633 8,158,276
5,155,826 2,440,633 23,170,055
- - 5,612,080
467,993 - 467,993
9,708,969 2,440,783 60,496,612
2,575,897 - 5,310,568
242 164 - 3,516,428
- - 430,754
- - 3,164,391
1,232,562 2,334,440 13,105,345
- - 1,798,084
- - 289,265
4,050,623 2,334,440 27,614,835
- - 6,632,229
- - 3,930,750
- - 581,664
- - 11,144,643
4,050,623 2,334,440 38,759,478
467,993 - 6,080,073
1,691,452 106,343 7,158,647
1,321,417 - 1,321,417
2,177,484 - 5,177,561
- - 1,999,436
5,658,346 106,343 21,737,134
$ 9,708,969 2,440,783 60,496,612
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Reconciliation of Governmental Funds Balance Sheet to
the Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position are Different Because

Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 21,737,134

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Capital assets - non-depreciable 5,730,931

Capital assets - depreciable 226,242,506

Accumulated depreciation (141,505,609)
90,467,828

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Real property taxes 6,632,229
Departmental income 3,930,750
10,562,979

Differences between expected and actual experiences, assumption changes and
net differences between projected and actual earnings and contributions
subsequent to the measurement date for the postretirement benefits (pension
and OPEB) are recognized as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources on the statement of net position.

Deferred outflows - pension related 25,530,178
Deferred inflows - pension related (5,342,913)
20,187,265

Long-term liabilities that are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore are not reported in the funds.

Accrued interest payable (292,123)
General obligation bonds payable (19,845,000)
Claims payable (14,454,150)
Net pension liability (23,858,013)
Retirement incentives and other pension obligations (8,427,066)
Post employment benefit obligations payable (84,360,000)

(151,236,352)

Governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts, and refundings
and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities.
Premium on general obligation bonds (392,293)

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (8,673,439)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items

Non-property taxes

Departmental income

Intergovernmental charges

Charges for services

Use of money and property

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Sale of property and
compensation for loss

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALANCES
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Community Capital

General Development Projects Water
59,374,493 - 3 - $ -
4,499,892 - - -
22,277,442 - - -
3,991,493 367,524 - -
1,501,000 - - -
- - - 9,598,277
718,583 193 4,103 762,516
1,183,286 - - -
3,273,574 - - -
220,403 - - -
10,391,187 - 1,038,877 -
1,368,058 1,383,337 7,123 -
2,353,831 - 120,467 81,455
111,153,242 1,751,054 1,170,570 10,442,248
18,981,671 - - -
44,419,963 - - -
436,650 - - -
1,702,090 - - -
1,262,762 - - -
5,786,924 - - -
8,078,702 1,547,226 - 9,708,465
33,147,044 - - -
- - 1,171,152 -
113,815,806 1,547,226 1,171,152 9,708,465
(2,662,564) 203,828 (582) 733,783
712,996 - - -
(2,418,084) - (4,103) (712,996)
(1,705,088) - (4,103) (712,996)
(4,367,652) 203,828 (4,685) 20,787
15,152,918 538,019 4,450,017 5,637,559
10,785,266 741,847 § 4445332 $ 5,658,346

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Total
Debt Governmental
Service Funds

$ - $ 59,374,493
- 4,499,892
- 22,277,442
- 4,359,017
- 1,501,000
- 9,698,277
- 1,485,395
- 1,183,286
- 3,273,574

- 220,403
- 11,430,064
- 2,758,518
- 2,555,753

- 124,517,114

- 18,981,671
- 44,419,963
- 436,650
- 1,702,090
- 1,262,762
- 5,786,924
- 19,334,393
- 33,147,044
- 1,171,152

1,700,000 1,700,000
720,304 720,304

2,420,304 128,662,953

(2,420,304) (4,145,839)

2,422,187 3,135,183
- (3,135,183)

2,422,187 -

1,883 (4,145,839)

104,460 25,882,973

$ 106,343  $§ 21,737,134
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are Different Because

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ (4,145,839)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Capital outlay expenditures 2,934,262
Depreciation expense (5,879,857)
(2,945,595)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Real property taxes 677,516
Departmental income (295,657)
381,859

Bond and other debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental
funds, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Repayment of bond and other debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.
Also, governmental funds report the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred and amortized on
the statement of activities.
Principal paid on general obligation bonds 1,700,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.

Accrued interest 22,012
Claims payable (2,068,884)
Changes in pension liabilities and related deferred outflows and

inflows of resources (2,363,672)
Retirement incentives and other pension liabilities (2,370)
Other post employment benefit obligations payable (12,740,000)
Amortization of premium on refunding bonds 62,767

(17,090,147)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (22,099,722)

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2017

REVENUES

Real property taxes

Other tax items

Non-property taxes

Departmental income

Intergovernmental charges

Use of money and property

Licenses and permits

Fines and forfeitures

Sale of property and
compensation for loss

State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity and
development
Culture and recreation
Home and community services
Employee benefits

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total Other Financing Uses
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
59,003,436 $ 59,003,436 $ 59,374,493 371,057
3,255,289 3,255,289 4,499,892 1,244,603
20,300,000 20,300,000 22,277,442 1,977,442
4,340,800 4,392,511 3,991,493 (401,018)
1,190,000 1,364,791 1,501,000 136,209
745,000 745,000 718,583 (26,417)
1,322,500 1,322,500 1,183,286 (139,214)
3,404,500 3,404,500 3,273,574 (130,926)
23,500 23,500 220,403 196,903
8,607,527 9,673,523 10,391,187 717,664
43,000 1,384,258 1,368,058 (16,200)
136,000 180,920 2,353,831 2,172,911
102,371,552 105,050,228 111,153,242 6,103,014
18,560,042 18,647,467 18,981,671 (334,204)
38,842,182 38,879,666 44,419,963 (5,540,297)
353,244 437,473 436,650 823
1,782,259 1,782,259 1,702,090 80,169
763,563 1,206,139 1,262,762 (56,623)
3,821,962 5,248,095 5,786,924 (538,829)
7,148,976 7,591,511 8,078,702 (487,191)
33,080,822 33,240,291 33,147,044 93,247
104,353,050 107,032,901 113,815,806 (6,782,905)
(1,981,498) (1,982,673) (2,662,564) (679,891)
1,000,000 1,000,000 712,996 (287,004)
(2,868,084) (2,868,084) (2,418,084) 450,000
(1,868,084) (1,868,084) (1,705,088) 162,996
(3,849,582) (3,850,757) (4,367,652) (516,895)
3,849,582 3,850,757 15,152,918 11,302,161
- % - $ 10,785,266 10,785,266

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2017

ASSETS
Current assets
Due from other funds $ 4,947,069

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Current portion of compensated absences 495,000

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences, less current portion 4,452,069

Total Liabilities $ 4,947,069

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

Year Ended December 31, 2017

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee benefits

Change in Net Position

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 31, 2017

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from other funds
Payments to employees

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash from operating activities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Due from other funds
Compensated absences

Net Cash from Operating Activities

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2017

Agency
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 1,484,180
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 227,516
Deposits and overpayments 1,256,664
Total Liabilities $ 1,484,180

The notes to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The City of Mount Vernon, New York (“City”) was incorporated in 1892 and operates in accordance with its
Charter and the various other applicable laws of the State of New York. The City functions under a
Mayor/Comptroller/City Council form of government. The City Council is the legislative body responsible
for overall operation. The Mayor serves as the chief executive officer and the Comptroller serves as the
chief financial officer. The City provides the following services to its residents: public safety, health,
transportation, economic opportunity and development, culture and recreation, home and community
services and general and administrative support.

The financial statements of the City have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America as applied to local governmental units and the Uniform System of
Accounts as prescribed by the State of New York. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(“GASB”) is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The City’s significant accounting policies are described below:

A. Financial Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity consists of a) the primary government, which is the City, b)
organizations for which the City is financially accountable and c) other organizations for which the
nature and significance of their relationship with the City are such that exclusion would cause the
reporting entity’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete as set forth by GASB.

In evaluating how to define the City, for financial reporting purposes, management has considered
all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the City’s
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth by GASB, including legal standing, fiscal
dependency and financial accountability. Based upon the application of these criteria, the following
individual component unit is included in the City’s reporting entity because of its operational or
financial relationship with the City.

The Mount Vernon Industrial Development Agency (“IDA”) is a public benefit corporation created by
State legislation to promote the economic welfare, recreation opportunities and prosperity of the
City's inhabitants. Members of the IDA serve at the pleasure of the Mayor and, therefore, the City
is considered able to impose its will on the IDA. IDA members have complete responsibility for
management of the IDA and accountability for fiscal matters. The City is not liable for IDA bonds or
notes. Since the IDA does not provide services entirely or almost entirely to the City, the financial
statements of the IDA have been reflected as a discretely presented component unit.

Complete financial statements for the IDA can be obtained from their administrative office at the
address indicated below:

City of Mount Vernon Industrial Development Agency
City Hall - Roosevelt Square
Mount Vernon, New York 10550

B. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of
Activities) report information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government as a whole and
its component unit. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these
statements, except for interfund services provided and used. The primary government is reported
separately from the legally separate component unit.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Statement of Net Position presents the financial position of the City and its component unit at
the end of its fiscal year. The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which direct
expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include (1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods or services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment and (3) interest
earned on grants that is required to be used to support a particular program. Taxes and other items
not identified as program revenues are reported as general revenues. The City does not allocate
indirect expenses to functions in the Statement of Activities.

While separate government-wide and fund financial statements are presented, they are interrelated.
Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with a
proprietary fund's principal ongoing operation. The principal operating revenues of the Internal
Service Fund are charges to other funds. Operating expenses for the Internal Service Fund
includes certain employee benefit costs. All revenues and expenses not meeting the definition are
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

C. Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A fund is an
independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts which comprise its
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances/net
position, revenues and expenditures/expenses. Fund accounting segregates funds according to
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance
related legal and contractual provisions. The City maintains the minimum number of funds
consistent with legal and managerial requirements. The focus of governmental fund financial
statements is on major funds as that term is defined in professional pronouncements. Each major
fund is to be presented in a separate column, with non-major funds, if any, aggregated and
presented in a single column. Internal service and fiduciary funds are reported by type. The City
has elected to treat each governmental fund as a major fund as provided by the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 34. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a different
measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental
activities column, a reconciliation is presented on the pages following, which briefly explains the
adjustments necessary to transform the fund based financial statements into the governmental
activities column of the government-wide presentation. The City's resources are reflected in the
fund financial statements in three broad fund categories, in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles as follows:
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Categories

a.

Governmental Funds - Governmental Funds are those through which most general
government functions are financed. The acquisition, use and balances of
expendable financial resources and the related liabilities are accounted for through
governmental funds. The following are the City’s major governmental funds.

General Fund - The General Fund constitutes the primary fund of the City and is
used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported
in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds - Special revenue funds are used to account for and report
the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted or committed to
expenditures for specified purposes other than debt service or capital projects. The
major special revenue funds of the City are as follows:

Community Development Fund - The Community Development Fund is
used to account for projects/programs financed by entitlements from the
United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Water Fund - The Water Fund is used to account for the activities of the
Mount Vernon Board of Water Supply. The Board of Water Supply was
created by State legislation to provide for the supply of water to the
residents of the City. The major revenue of this fund is charges to
customers based on water consumption.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for
capital outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and
other capital assets, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

Debt Service Fund - The Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report
financial resources that are restricted, committed or assigned to expenditures for
principal and interest, and for financial resources that are being accumulated for
principal and interest maturing in future years.

Proprietary Funds - The Proprietary fund consists of an internal service fund.
Internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies of the government, or to other governments, on a cost
reimbursement basis. The City has established its Compensated Absences Fund
as an internal service fund.

Fiduciary Funds (Not Included in Government-Wide Financial Statements) -
Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the City in an agency
capacity on behalf of others. The City's Agency Fund is primarily utilized to account
for employee payroll tax withholdings or deposits that are payable to other
jurisdictions or individuals.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

D.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The accounting and financial reporting treatment is determined by the applicable measurement
focus and basis of accounting. Measurement focus indicates the type of resources being
measured such as current financial resources (current assets less current liabilities) or economic
resources (all assets and liabilities). The basis of accounting indicates the timing of transactions or
events for recognition in the financial statements.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as is the Internal Service Fund. The
Agency Fund has no measurement focus but utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they
are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
they have been earned and they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to
be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. Property taxes are considered to be available if collected within sixty
days of the fiscal year end. If expenditures are the prime factor for determining eligibility, revenues
from Federal and State grants are recognized as revenues when the expenditure is made and the
amounts are expected to be collected within one year of the fiscal year end. A ninety day
availability period is generally used for revenue recognition for most other governmental fund
revenues. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to certain claims,
compensated absences, net pension liabilities, certain pension liabilities and other postemployment
benefit liability are recognized later based on specific accounting rules applicable to each, generally
when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in
governmental funds. Issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported
as other financing sources.

Component Unit

The component unit is presented on the basis of accounting that most accurately reflects its
activities. The IDA is accounted for on the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities
are incurred.

Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources and Net Position or Fund
Balances

Cash and Equivalents, Investments and Risk Disclosure
Cash and Equivalents - Cash and equivalents consist of funds deposited in demand

deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of deposit with original maturities of
less than three months from the date of acquisition.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The City’s deposits and investment policies are governed by State statutes. The City has
adopted its own written investment policy which provides for the deposit of funds in FDIC
insured commercial banks or trust companies located within the State. The City is
authorized to use demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit.

Collateral is required for demand deposit accounts, time deposit accounts and certificates of
deposit at 100% of all deposits not covered by Federal deposit insurance. The City has
entered into custodial agreements with the various banks which hold their deposits. These
agreements authorize the obligations that may be pledged as collateral. Such obligations
include, among other instruments, obligations of the United States and its agencies and
obligations of the State and its municipal and school district subdivisions.

Investments - Permissible investments include obligations of the U.S. Treasury, U.S.
Agencies, repurchase agreements and obligations of New York State or its political
subdivisions, and accordingly, the City’s policy provides for no credit risk on investments.

The City follows the provisions of GASB Statement No. 72, “Fair Value Measurement and
Application”, which defines fair value and establishes a fair value hierarchy organized into
three levels based upon the input assumptions used in pricing assets. Level 1 inputs have
the highest reliability and are related to assets with unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets. Level 2 inputs relate to assets with other than quoted prices in active markets
which may include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or other inputs which can
be corroborated by observable market data. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs and
are used to the extent that observable inputs do not exist.

Risk Disclosure

Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that the government will incur
losses in fair value caused by changing interest rates. The City does not have a
formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from changing interest rates. Generally,
the City does not invest in any long-term investment obligations.

Custodial Credit Risk - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to it. GASB Statement No. 40,
“Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures — an amendment of GASB Statement No.
3", directs that deposits be disclosed as exposed to custodial credit risk if they are
not covered by depository insurance and the deposits are either uncollateralized,
collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution or collateralized
by securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department but not in
the City’'s name. The City had a bank balance of $3,382 that was not covered by
depository insurance and was exposed to custodial credit risk at December 31,
2017.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty will not fulfill
its specific obligation even without the entity’s complete failure. The City does not
have a formal credit risk policy other than restrictions to obligations allowable
under General Municipal Law of the State of New York.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit risk is the risk attributed to
the magnitude of a government’s investments in a single issuer. The City’s
investment policy limits the amount on deposit at each of its banking institutions.

Property Taxes Receivable - City real property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on real
property and are levied on January 1st. The City collects City, County and School District taxes.
City taxes for the period January 1st to December 31st are levied and due on January 1st with the
first half payable without penalty until January 31st and the second half payable without penalty
until July 31st. County taxes are due April 1st and are payable without penalty until April 30th.
School district taxes for the period July 1st to June 30th are levied on July 1st with the first half
payable without penalty until July 31st and the second half payable without penalty until January
31st. The City guarantees the full payment of the County and School District warrants and assumes
the responsibility for uncollected taxes. The City also has the responsibility for conducting in-rem
foreclosure proceedings.

The City functions in both a fiduciary and guarantor relationship with the County of Westchester
(“County”) and the City School District of Mount Vernon (“School District”) with respect to the
collection and payment of real property taxes levied by such jurisdictions. The County Charter
provides for the City to collect County taxes and remit them as collected. However, the City must
remit to the County sixty percent of the amount levied by May 25th and the balance of forty percent
on October 15th. With respect to School District taxes, New York State law provides that the City
satisfy the warrant of the School District two years after February 20th of the fiscal year for which
such taxes were levied. Thus, the City’s fiduciary responsibility for school district taxes is from the
date of the levy until two years after the above date, at which time the City will satisfy its obligations
to the School District. Since the County tax warrant must be paid by October, uncollected County
taxes have been accounted for in a manner similar to City taxes. The collection of School District
taxes is deemed a financing transaction until the warrants are satisfied.

Other Receivables - Other receivables include amounts due from other governments and
individuals for services provided by the City. Receivables are recorded and revenues recognized
as earned or as specific program expenditures/expenses are incurred. Allowances are recorded
when appropriate.

Mortgages Receivable - The City has outstanding mortgages receivable of $3,930,750 at
December 31, 2017. Mortgages are issued to qualifying small and minority businesses and for
housing rehabilitation projects at or below market interest rates. Allowances are recorded when
appropriate.

Due From/To Other Funds - During the course of its operations, the City has numerous
transactions between funds to finance operations, provide services and construct assets. To the
extent that certain transactions between funds had not been paid or received as of December 31,
2017, balances of interfund amounts receivable or payable have been recorded in the fund financial
statements.

Prepaid Expenses/Expenditures - Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method in both the
government-wide and fund financial statements. Prepaid expenses/expenditures consist of costs
which have been satisfied prior to the end of the fiscal year, but represent amounts which have
been provided for in the subsequent year's budget and will benefit such periods. Reported
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

amounts in governmental funds are equally offset by nonspendable fund balance, in the fund
financial statements, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable
resources" even though they are a component of current assets.

Inventories - Inventories in the Water Fund are valued at cost on a first-in, first-out basis and
consist of certain expendable supplies held for consumption. The cost is recorded as inventory at
the time individual items are purchased. The City uses the consumption method to relieve
inventory. In the fund financial statements, reported amounts are equally offset by nonspendable
fund balance, which indicates that these amounts do not constitute "available spendable resources"
even though they are a component of current assets. Purchases of other inventory items are
recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase and year-end balances are not material.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets
(e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items) are reported in the governmental activities
column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as
assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the date of donation.
Acquisition value is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential
on the date of the donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by
governmental activities), the City chose to include certain items regardless of their acquisition date
or amount. The City was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets
through backtrending (i.e., estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be
capitalized and used an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or
estimated acquisition year).

Maijor outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are completed. The
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend asset’s life, is not capitalized.

Land and construction-in-progress are not depreciated.  Property, plant, equipment and
infrastructure of the City are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated

useful lives.
Life
Class in Years
Primary Government:
Buildings 50
Improvements 20
Machinery and equipment 5-20
Vehicles 5-10
Infrastructure 40-60
Component Unit:
Buildings 40
Machinery and Equipment 3
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The costs associated with the acquisition or construction of capital assets are shown as capital
outlay expenditures on the governmental fund financial statements. Capital assets are not shown
on the governmental fund balance sheet.

Unearned Revenues - Unearned revenues arise when assets are recognized before revenue
recognition criteria have been satisfied. In the government-wide financial statements, unearned
revenue consists of revenue received in advance and/or amounts from grants received before the
eligibility requirements have been met.

Unearned revenues in the fund financial statements are those where asset recognition criteria have
been met, but for which revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City has reported
unearned revenues of $162,479 for various items in the Community Development Fund and
$126,786 for Federal and State aid received in advance in the Capital Projects Fund. Such
amounts have been deemed to be measurable but not "available" pursuant to generally accepted
accounting principles.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the statement of financial
position includes a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position includes a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net
assets that applies to a future period and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

The City reported deferred inflows of resources of $6,632,229 for real property taxes in the General
Fund and $3,930,750 for mortgages receivable in the Community Development Fund. These
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amount
becomes available.

The City also reported deferred inflows of resources of $581,664 for taxes collected in advance of
the levy date in the General Fund and in the government-wide Statement of Net Position.

The City also reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in relation
to its pension obligations in the government-wide financial statement for governmental activities.
These amounts are detailed in the discussion of the City’s pension plans in Note 3E.

Long-Term Liabilities - In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums
and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bonds payable are reported
net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed as incurred.

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other
financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as
Capital Projects or Debt Service funds expenditures.
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Compensated Absences - The various collective bargaining agreements provide for the
payment of accumulated vacation and sick leave upon separation from service. The liability for
such accumulated leave is reflected in the government-wide Statement of Net Position as current
and long-term liabilities. Liabilities for compensated absences are recorded in both the
governmental funds and the internal service fund. However, only the liability maturing through
employee resignation or retirement is recorded in the governmental funds. The liability for
compensated absences includes salary related payments, where applicable.

Net Pension Liability - The net pension liability represents the City’s proportionate share of the
net pension liability of the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System and the New
York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System. The financial reporting of these
amounts are presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 68,
“‘Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions” and GASB Statement No. 71, “Pension
Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date — An Amendment of
GASB Statement No. 68”.

Other Postemployment Benefit Liability (“OPEB”) - In addition to providing pension benefits,
the City provides health care benefits for certain retired employees and their survivors. The
financial reporting of these amounts are presented in accordance with the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment
Benefits Other than Pensions”.

Net Position - Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of
resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is comprised of three
components: net investment in capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization and reduced by outstanding balances of bonds and other debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets or related debt are also included in this component of net position.

Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources related to those assets. Assets are reported as restricted when constraints are placed
on asset use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the City or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments.
Restricted net position for the City includes restricted for community development, capital
projects, liability and casualty claims, debt service and Industrial development agency.

Unrestricted net position is the net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that does not meet the definition of the two preceding
categories.

Fund Balance - Generally, fund balance represents the difference between current assets and
deferred outflows of resources and current liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. In the
fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund classifications that comprise a
hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent. Under this standard, the fund
balance classifications are as follows:
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Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not in spendable form (inventories, prepaid amounts, long-term receivables) or they are
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact (the corpus of a permanent fund).

Restricted fund balance is reported when constraints placed on the use of the resources
are imposed by grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of other governments or
imposed by law through enabling legislation. Enabling legislation includes a legally
enforceable requirement that these resources be used only for the specific purposes as
provided in the legislation. This fund balance classification is used to report funds that are
restricted for debt service obligations and for other items contained in the General
Municipal Law of the State of New York.

Committed fund balance is reported for amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to formal action of the entity’s highest level of decision making
authority. The City Council is the highest level of decision making authority for the City
that can, by the adoption of a resolution prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit fund
balance. Once adopted, these funds may only be used for the purpose specified unless
the entity removes or changes the purpose by taking the same action that was used to
establish the commitment. This classification includes certain amounts established and
approved by the City Council.

Assigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts constrained either by
the policies of the City Council for amounts assigned for balancing the subsequent year’s
budget or the City Comptroller for amounts assigned for encumbrances, workers’
compensation benefits, tax certiorari claims, contractual labor settlements and capital
projects. Unlike commitments, assignments generally only exist temporarily, in that
additional action does not normally have to be taken for the removal of an assignment. An
assignment cannot result in a deficit in the unassigned fund balance in the General Fund.
Assigned fund balance in all funds except the General Fund includes all remaining
amounts, except for negative balances, that are not classified as nonspendable and are
neither restricted nor committed.

Unassigned fund balance, in the General Fund, represents amounts not classified as
nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned. The General Fund is the only fund that
would report a positive unassigned fund balance. For all governmental funds other than
the General Fund, any deficit fund balance is reported as unassigned.

In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted and unrestricted fund balance in
the governmental fund financial statements, a flow assumption must be made about the
order in which the resources are considered to be applied. When both restricted and
unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use for expenditures incurred, it is
the City’s policy to use restricted amounts first and then unrestricted amounts as they are
needed. For unrestricted amounts of fund balance, it is the City’s policy to use fund
balance in the following order: committed, assigned, and unassigned.

F. Encumbrances

In governmental funds, encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and
other commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve applicable
appropriations, is generally employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the
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General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are generally reported as assigned fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities.

G. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Estimates also
affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

H. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial
statements through the date that the financial statements were available to be issued, which date is
April 4, 2024.

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A. Budgetary Data

The City, in accordance with the City Charter, follows the procedures enumerated below in
establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial statements:

a) On or before the nineteenth day of November, the Board of Estimate and Contract,
which is comprised of the Mayor, Comptroller and President of the City Council,
shall hold a public hearing on the proposed budget presenting a financial plan for
conducting the affairs of the City for the ensuing fiscal year.

b) After said public hearing, the Board of Estimate and Contract adopts the budget and
submits it to the entire City Council for approval.

c) The City Council then holds a second public hearing on the proposed budget.

d) The City Council shall adopt the budget estimates as submitted or amended by
December 5th, which shall then become the annual budget, and shall at the same
time appropriate the amounts set forth in the budget as adopted and for the
purposes stated therein.

e) Formal budgetary integration is employed during the year as a management control
device for the General and Debt Service funds.

f) Budgets for General and Debt Service funds are legally adopted annually on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles. The Capital Projects Fund
is budgeted on a project basis. Annual budgets are not adopted for the Community
Development and Water funds.
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g) The City Council has established legal control of the budget at the function level of
expenditures. Transfers between appropriation accounts, at the function level,
require initial approval by the City Council and ultimate approval by the Board of
Estimate and Contract. Any modifications to appropriations resulting from increases
in revenue estimates or supplemental reserve appropriations also requires a similar
approval process.

h) Appropriations in General and Debt Service funds lapse at the end of the fiscal year,
except that outstanding encumbrances are reappropriated in the succeeding year,
pursuant to the Uniform System of Accounts promulgated by the Office of the State
Comptroller.

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the City Council. Major
amendments in the General Fund for the current year are as follows:

Operating expenditures and other financing uses funded by
grants and use of appropriated fund balance $ 2,679,851

B. Property Tax Limitation

The amount that may be raised by the City for real property taxes in any fiscal year, for purposes
other than for debt service on City indebtedness, is limited by the Constitution of the State of New
York to two percent of the five year average full valuation of taxable real estate located within the
City. For 2017, the maximum amount which could have been raised was $87,571,642, which
exceeded the levy subject to the tax limit by $29,738,500, inclusive of the overlay to provide for
uncollected taxes.

In addition to this constitutional tax limitation, Chapter 97 of the Laws of 2011, as amended (“Tax
Levy Limitation Law”), modified previous law by imposing a limit on the amount of real property
taxes a local government may levy. The following is a brief summary of certain relevant
provisions of the Tax Levy Limitation Law. The summary is not complete and the full text of the
Tax Levy Limitation Law should be read in order to understand the details and implementations
thereof. The Tax Levy Limitation Law imposes a limitation on increases in the real property tax
levy, subject to certain exceptions. The Tax Levy Limitation Law permits the City to increase its
overall real property tax levy over the tax levy of the prior year by no more than the "Allowable
Levy Growth Factor," which is the lesser of one and two-one hundredths or the sum of one plus
the Inflation Factor; provided, however that in no case shall the levy growth factor be less than
one. The "Inflation Factor" is the quotient of: (i) the average of the 20 National Consumer Price
Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the twelve-month period ending
six months prior to the start of the coming fiscal year minus the average of the National
Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of Labor for the
twelvemonth period ending six months prior to the start of the prior fiscal year, divided by (ii) the
average of the National Consumer Price Indexes determined by the United States Department of
Labor with the result expressed as a decimal to four places. The City is required to calculate its
tax levy limit for the upcoming year in accordance with the provision above and provide all
relevant information to the New York State Comptroller prior to adopting its budget. The Tax Levy
Limitation Law sets forth certain exclusions to the real property tax levy limitation of the City,
including exclusions for certain portions of the expenditures for retirement system contributions
and tort judgments payable by the City. The Common Council may adopt a budget that exceeds
the tax levy limit for the coming fiscal year, only if the Common Council first enacts, by a vote of
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at least sixty percent of the total voting power of the Common Council, a local law to override

such limit for such coming fiscal year.

D. Prior Period Adjustment - Component Unit

A net correction was made of $96,390 to the January 1, 2017 beginning net position of the Mount
Vernon Industrial Development Agency. A receivable of $147,912 from previous years for past
due rent payments were found to be without merit. In addition, a net correction of ($51,522) was

needed to correct various other errors.

E. Expenditures in Excess of Budget

The following categories of expenditures exceeded their budgetary provisions by the amounts

indicated:

General Fund
General government support:
Department of Finance
Expenses on City owned property
Law
Engineering
Public Works Commissioner's office
Vehicle maintenance
Special items:
City-wide electricity charges
City-wide telephone charges
Judgments and claims
Tax certiorari payments
Tax abatements

Metropolitan commuter transportation mobility tax

Public safety:
Police Department
Jail
Animal shelter
Fire Department
Transportation:
Street lighting
Sidewalks
Off-street parking
Economic opportunity and development:
Programs for the aging
Office for the Aging - Elderly nutrition

31

110,220
17,928
1,348,905
1,223
4,353
118,855

72,750
7,609
1,071,013
840,914
71,477
11,145

3,777,906
30,647
41,874

1,798,323

23,328
5,060
5,441

1,478
59,420
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General Fund (Continued)
Culture and recreation:

Parks and recreation - Administration $ 49,879
Playgrounds 234,015
Neighborhood facility center 40,876
Youth programs 359,749
Adult education 9,420
Home and community services:
Sanitary and storm sewers 351,133
Street cleaning 417,450
Employee benefits:
Police and fire retirement 891,447
Social security 208,684
Workers' compensation benefits 228,569
Debt Service Fund
Debt service
Serial bonds - Interest 10

In addition, the entire General Fund budget was overexpended by $6,332,905.

Additionally, the capital project entitled Police Justice Assistance Grant — 2016 exceeded its
budgetary provisions by $886.

Note 3 - Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Taxes Receivable

Taxes receivable at December 31, 2017 consisted of the following:

City taxes $ 4,879,460
County taxes 1,851,541
Relevied water rents 986,251
School district taxes 3,825,482
Property acquired for taxes 3,874,421
15,417,155
Less - Allowance for uncollectible taxes (8,034,238)
$ 7,382,917

Property taxes receivable are partially offset in the fund financial statements by deferred tax
revenues of $6,632,229, which represents an estimate of the receivable which will not be collected
within the first sixty days of the subsequent year.
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B.

Due From/To Other Funds

The composition of interfund balances at December 31, 2017 were as follows:

Fund

General

Capital Projects
Water

Debt Service

Total Governmental Funds

Internal Service

The outstanding balances between funds results mainly from the time lag between the dates that
1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, 2) transactions

Due Due

From To
$ 3,483,067 $ 9,506,504
1,660,399 31,839
574177 1,232,562
2,440,633 2,334,440
8,158,276 13,105,345
4,947,069 -
$ 13,105,345 $ 13,105,345

are recorded in the accounting system and 3) payments between funds are made.

Capital Assets

Changes in the City's capital assets are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, Additions/ December 31,
Class 2017 Reclassifications Deductions 2017
Capital Assets, not being depreciated -
Land $ 5,730,931 $ - 8 $ 5,730,931
Capital Assets, being depreciated:
Buildings $ 53,793,926 $ 654,444 $ 54,448,370
Improvements 3,855,615 147,103 4,002,718
Machinery and equipment 13,942,411 483,147 14,425,558
Vehicles 17,687,240 1,653,336 19,340,576
Infrastructure 134,029,052 (3,768) 134,025,284
Total Capital Assets, being
Depreciated 223,308,244 2,934,262 226,242,506
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings 29,803,395 1,221,828 31,025,223
Improvements 2,743,019 75,349 2,818,368
Machinery and equipment 10,895,807 914,565 11,810,372
Vehicles 15,635,687 1,073,943 16,709,630
Infrastructure 76,547,844 2,594,172 79,142,016
Total Accumulated Depreciation 135,625,752 5,879,857 141,505,609
Total Capital Assets, being
Depreciated, net $ 87682492 $ (2,945,595) $ $ 84,736,897
Capital Assets, Net $ 93413423 $ (2,945,595) $ $ 90,467,828
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Depreciation expense was charged to City functions and programs as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government Support $ 511,895
Public Safety 1,114,405
Transportation 515,359
Culture and Recreation 833,957
Home and Community Services 2,904,241
Total $ 5,879,857
Capital Assets - Component Unit
Changes in the capital assets of the component unit were as follows:
Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Class 2017 Additions 2017
Capital Assets, not being depreciated -
Land $ 245000 §$ - $ 245,000
Capital Assets, being depreciated -
Buildings $ 2,206,623 $ 8,456 $ 2,215,079
Less Accumulated Depreciation for -
Buildings 760,500 54,584 815,084
Total Capital Assets, being
Depreciated, net $ 1,446,123 § (46,128) $ 1,399,995
Component Unit
Capital Assets, net $ 1691123 § (46,128) $ 1,644,995
D. Accrued Liabilities
Accrued liabilities at December 31, 2017 were as follows:
Fund
Total
Community Governmental
General Development Water Funds
Payroll and Employee Benefits $ 1,350,015 $ 302,198 $ 242,164 $ 1,894,377
Taxes 691,071 - - 691,071
Other 880,789 50,191 - 930,980
Total Accrued Liabilities $ 2921875 $ 352389 $ 242164 $ 3,516,428
34
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E.

Long-Term Liabilities

The following table summarizes changes in the City’s long-term liabilities for the

December 31, 2017:

Governmental Activities (inclusive
of Internal Service Fund):
General Obligation Bonds Payable:
Capital construction
Judgments and claims

Plus
Unamortized premium on bonds

Other Non-Current Liabilities:

Claims Payable

Compensated Absences

Net Pension Liability

Retirement Incentives and
Other Pension Liabilities

Other Postemployment Benefit
Obligations Payable

Total Other Non-Current
Liabilities
Governmental Activities -
Long-Term Liabilities

year ended

Balance Maturities Balance Due
January 1, New Issues/ and/or December 31, Within One

2017 Additions Payments 2017 Year
$ 18,915,000 $ - % 1,515,000 $ 17,400,000 $ 1,545,000
2,630,000 - 185,000 2,445,000 190,000
21,545,000 - 1,700,000 19,845,000 1,735,000
455,060 - 62,767 392,293 -
22,000,060 - 1,762,767 20,237,293 1,735,000
12,385,266 5,892,167 3,823,283 14,454,150 6,357,663
4,955,464 - 8,395 4,947,069 495,000
38,202,108 - 14,344,095 23,858,013 -
8,424,696 930,151 927,781 8,427,066 1,024,844
71,620,000 12,740,000 84,360,000 -
135,587,534 19,562,318 19,103,554 136,046,298 7,877,507
$ 157,587,594 $ 19,562,318 $ 20,866,321 $ 156,283,591 $ 9,612,507

Each governmental fund’s liability for compensated absences is liquidated by the Internal Service
Fund, which is funded primarily by the General Fund. Claims, net pension liabilities, retirement
incentives and other pension liabilities and other postemployment benefit liabilities are liquidated
primarily by the General Fund. The City’s indebtedness for general obligation bonds is satisfied by
the Debt Service Fund, which is funded by the General Fund.

General Obligations Bonds Payable

General obligation bonds payable at December 31, 2017 are comprised of the following individual

issues:
Amount
Original Outstanding
Year of Issue Final Interest at December 31,
Purpose Issue Amount Maturity Rate 2017
Various Public Improvements 2012 $ 14,224,000 July, 2029 3.00-400% $ 10,595,000
Various Public Improvements 2013 1,680,000 July, 2031 3.75-4.25 1,360,000
Tax Certiorari Obligations 2013 3,000,000 July, 2028 4.50-5.25 2,445,000
Refunding Bonds 2016 6,765,000 September, 2024 3.00 5,445,000
$ 19,845,000
35
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Interest expenditures of $720,304 were recorded in the fund financial statements in the Debt
Service Fund. Interest expense of $635,525 was recorded in the government-wide financial
statements for governmental activities.

Legal Debt Margin

The City is subject to legal limitations on the amount of debt that it may issue. The City’s legal debt
margin is 7% of the five year average full valuation of taxable real property.

Payments to Maturity

The annual requirements to amortize all bonded debt outstanding as of December 31, 2017
including interest payments of $4,124,051 are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 1,735000 $ 665,919 $ 2,400,919
2019 1,780,000 606,644 2,386,644
2020 1,830,000 542,019 2,372,019
2021 1,875,000 483,269 2,358,269
2022 1,935,000 427,144 2,362,144
2023-2027 7,910,000 1,237,500 9,147,500
2028-2031 2,780,000 161,556 2,941,556
$ 19,845000 $ 4,124,051 $ 23,969,051

The above general obligation bonds are direct obligations of the City for which its full faith and credit
are pledged and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable real property within the City.

Claims Payable

The government-wide financial statements reflect self-insured portions of general liability and
workers' compensation claims, which are based upon estimates of the ultimate cost of claims
(including future claim adjustment expenses) that have been reported, but not settled, and of
claims that have been incurred but not reported (“IBNR’s”). The length of time for which such
costs must be estimated varies depending on the coverage involved. Because actual claim costs
depend on such complex factors as inflation, changes in doctrines of legal liability and damage
awards, the process used in computing claim liabilities does not necessarily result in an exact
amount. Claim liabilities are recomputed periodically using a variety of actuarial and statistical
techniques to produce current estimates that reflect recent settlements, claim frequency and
other economic and social factors. A provision for inflation in the calculation of estimated future
claim costs is implicit in the calculation because reliance is placed both on actual historical data
that reflects past inflation and other factors that are considered to be appropriate modifiers of past
experience.
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An analysis of the activity of unpaid claim liabilities is as follows:

2017 2016
Workers' General Workers' General
Compensation Liability Compensation Liability
Unpaid Claims - Beginning
of Year $ 1081939 § 2,759,211  $ 1,127,978 $ 2,868,490
Incurred Claims including
IBNR's 4,012,053 5,463,426 876,523 263,958
Claims Paid and Adjustments (1,183,727) (2,639,556) (922,562) (373,237)
Unpaid Claims - End of Year $ 3910265 § 5,583,081 $ 1,081,939 § 2,759,211
Due Within One Year $ 848,527 4,641,598 $ 290,478 $ 275,921

The City has restricted $192,282 of the fund balance of the General Fund for workers'
compensation benefits. The City has also restricted $1,691,452 of the fund balance of the Water
Fund for liability and casualty claims.

Claims payable also includes a liability of $4,960,805 for court ordered tax certiorari refunds
($867,838 due within one year), which were not due and payable at year-end. This amount has
been recorded in the government-wide financial statements.

Compensated Absences

Vacation time is generally taken in the year earned but can be carried over to succeeding years,
subject to limitations as provided in the respective collective bargaining agreements and the City
code. Employees are allowed to accumulate sick and terminal leave up to a maximum depending
upon the contract. Payments for accumulated sick and terminal leave are dependent upon the
length of service or accumulated days. At December 31, 2017, the value of such accumulated
leave was reflected in the Compensated Absences Internal Service Fund.

Pension Plans
New York State and Local Retirement System

The City participates in the New York State and Local Employees’ Retirement System (“ERS”)
and the New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System (“PFRS”) which are
collectively referred to as the New York State and Local Retirement System (“System”). These
are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans. The System provides
retirement benefits as well as death and disability benefits. The net position of the System is held
in the New York State Common Retirement Fund (“Fund”), which was established to hold all net
assets and record changes in plan net position. The Comptroller of the State of New York serves
as the trustee of the Fund and is the administrative head of the System. The Comptroller is an
elected official determined in a direct statewide election and serves a four year term. Obligations
of employers and employees to contribute and benefits to employees are governed by the New
York State Retirement and Social Security Law (“NYSRSSL”). Once a public employer elects to
participate in the System, the election is irrevocable. The New York State Constitution provides
that pension membership is a contractual relationship and plan benefits cannot be diminished or
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impaired. Benefits can be changed for future members only by enactment of a State statute. The
City also participates in the Public Employees’ Group Life Insurance Plan, which provides death
benefits in the form of life insurance. The System is included in the State’s financial report as a
pension trust fund. That report, including information with regard to benefits provided may be
found at www.osc.state.ny.us/retire/publications/index.php or obtained by writing to the New York
State and Local Retirement System, 110 State Street, Albany, NY 12244,

The System is noncontributory except for employees who joined after July 27, 1976, who
contribute 3% of their salary for the first ten years of membership, and employees who joined on
or after January 1, 2010, who generally contribute between 3% and 6% of their salary for their
entire length of service. Under the authority of the NYSRSSL, the Comptroller annually certifies
the actuarially determined rates expressly used in computing the employers’ contributions based
on salaries paid during the System’s fiscal year ending March 31. The employer contribution
rates for the plan’s year ending in 2017 are as follows:

Tier/Plan Rate
ERS 1 751 21.7%
2 75l 19.7

3 A15 16.0

4 A15 16.0

5 A15 13.1

6 A15 9.3

PFRS 2 384D 24.6
3 384D 24.3

3 384F 22.3

5 384F 17.3

5 384D 19.9

6 384D 14.8

At December 31, 2017, the City reported the following for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability for ERS and PFRS:

ERS PFRS

Measurement Date March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017
Net pension liability $
City's proportion of the

net pension liability
Change in proportion since the

prior measurement date

7,310,258 % 16,547,755

0.0778000% 0.7983856%

(0.0024498%) (0.0568530%)

The net pension liability was measured as of March 31, 2017 and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The
City’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on a computation of the actuarially
determined indexed present value of future compensation by employer relative to the total of all
participating members.
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For the year ended December 31, 2017, the City recognized pension expense in the government-

wide financial statements of $4,224,840 for ERS and $8,269,379 for PFRS.

Pension

expenditures of $3,204,192 for ERS and $6,926,355 for PFRS were recorded in the fund financial

statements and were charged to the following funds:

Fund ERS PFRS
General $ 2,845,026 $ 6,926,355
Community Development 92,181 -
Water 266,985 -
$ 3,204,192 $ 6,926,355

At December 31, 2017, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between
City contributions and proportionate
share of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Differences between expected and actual experience

Changes of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportion and differences between
City contributions and proportionate
share of contributions

City contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

ERS PFRS

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

Deferred
Outflows
of Resources

Deferred
Inflows
of Resources

$ 183,189 $ 1,110,104 $ 2,170,780 $ 2,859,085
2,497,452 - 8,152,383 -
1,460,154 - 2,471,383 -

234,834 116,202 - 1,257,522
2,260,959 - 6,099,044 -
$ 6,636,588 $ 1,226,306 $ 18,893590 $ 4,116,607
Total
Deferred Deferred
Outflows Inflows

of Resources

of Resources

$ 2353969 $ 3,969,189
10,649,835 -
3,931,537 .
234,834 1,373,724
8,360,003 .

$ 25530,178 $ 5,342,913

$2,260,959 and $6,099,044 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to ERS and

PFRS, respectively,

resulting from the City’'s accrued contributions subsequent to the

measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended
March 31, 2018. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to ERS and PFRS will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Year Ended

March 31, ERS PFRS
2018 $ 1,419,747 $ 2,951,554
2019 1,419,747 2,951,554
2020 1,293,672 2,767,099
2021 (983,843) (348,902)
2022 - 356,634

Thereafter - -

$ 3,149,323 $ 8,677,939

The total pension liability for the ERS and PFRS measurement date was determined by using an
actuarial valuation date as noted below, with update procedures used to roll forward the total
pension liabilities to that measurement date. Significant actuarial assumptions used in the
valuation were as follows:

ERS PFRS
Measurement Date March 31, 2017 March 31, 2017
Actuarial valuation date April 1, 2016 April 1, 2016
Investment rate of return 7.0% * 7.0%
Salary scale 3.8% 4.5%
Inflation rate 2.5% 2.5%
Cost of living adjustments 1.3% 1.3%

*Compounded annually, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation.

Annuitant mortality rates are based on the System’s experience with adjustments for mortality
improvements based on Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2014.

The actuarial assumptions used in the valuation are based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period April 1, 2010 - March 31, 2015.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected return, net of investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset
class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized below.
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Long-Term

Expected

Target Real Rate

Asset Type Allocation of Return

Domestic Equity 36 % 4.55 %

International Equity 14 6.35
Private Equity 10 7.75
Real Estate 10 5.80
Absolute Return Strategies 2 4.00
Opportunistic Portfolio 3 5.89
Real Assets 3 5.54
Bonds and Mortgages 17 1.31
Cash 1 (0.25)
Inflation Indexed Bonds 4 1.50

100 %

The real rate of return is net of the long-term inflation assumption of 2.5%.

The discount rate used to calculate the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumes that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based upon those assumptions, the System’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
pension liability.

The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.0%, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability (asset) would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower
(6.0%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.0%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(6.0%) (7.0%) (8.0%)
City's proportionate share of the
ERS net pension liability (asset) $ 23347516 $§ 7,310,258 $ (6,249,213)

City's proportionate share of the
PFRS net pension liability (asset) $ 46911925 §$§ 16,547,755 $ (8,920,351)
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The components of the collective net pension liability as of the March 31, 2017 measurement
date were as follows:

ERS PFRS Total
Total pension liability $ 177,400,586,000 $ 31,670,483,000 $ 209,071,069,000
Fiduciary net position 168,004,363,000 29,597,830,000 197,602,193,000
Employers' net pension liability $ 9,396,223,000 3 2,072,653,000 $ 11,468,876,000
Fiduciary net position as a
percentage of total pension liability 94.7% 93.5% 94.5%

Employer contributions to ERS and PFRS are paid annually and cover the period through the end
of the System’s fiscal year, which is March 31s. Accrued retirement contributions as of
December 31, 2017 represent the employer contribution for the period of April 1, 2017 through
December 31, 2017 based on prior year ERS and PFRS wages multiplied by the employers’
contribution rate, by tier. Retirement contributions to ERS and PFRS for the nine months ended
December 31, 2017 were $2,260,959 and $6,099,044, respectively.

Voluntary Defined Contribution Plan

The City also offers a defined contribution plan to all non-union employees hired on or after July 1,
2013 and earning at the annual full-time salary rate of $75,000 or more. The employee contribution
is between 3% and 6% depending on salary and the City will contribute 8%. Employer
contributions vest after 366 days of service. No current employees participated in this program.

Retirement Incentives and Other Pension Obligations

The State Legislature enacted Chapter 57 of the Laws of 2010. This chapter authorized local
governments, at their option, to amortize a portion of their respective ERS and PFRS
contributions beginning in 2010. The maximum amortization amount each year going forward will
be determined by the difference between each employer’s effective contribution rate as compared
to the System’s overall graded rate. The amortized amounts are to be paid in equal annual
installments over a ten year period, although amounts may be prepaid at any time. Interest will
be charged at rates which approximate a market rate of return on taxable fixed rate securities of a
comparable duration and will be adjusted annually. The City elected to amortize the maximum
allowable ERS and PFRS contributions for the years noted in the table below.

Legislation enacted as part of the 2013-14 New York State adopted budget as Chapter 57 of the
Laws of 2013 established an alternative to the original Contribution Stabilization Program enacted
in 2010. This Alternate Contribution Stabilization Program (“ACSP”) authorized local
governments, at their option, to defer payment on a portion of their annual ERS and PFRS
contributions beginning in the 2013 fiscal year. The maximum amortization amount in each year
going forward under this alternate plan will be determined by the difference between each
employer’s normal effective contribution rate as compared to the System’s ACSP graded rate.
The graded rate will always move from the previous graded rate towards the new actuarial rate by
no more than .5% per year. Any amounts amortized under this program are to be paid in equal
annual installments over a twelve year period, although amounts may be prepaid at any time.
The interest rate on an amount amortized in a given year will be the interest rate for that year and
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will be fixed for the duration of that payment period. The interest rate will be comparable to a
twelve year US Treasury bond plus 1%. If the System’s average actuarial rates are lower than
the employer's graded rate, the employer would still be required to pay the graded rate. Any
additional contributions made as a result will first be used to pay off existing amortizations with
any excess being deposited into a reserve account to be used to offset future increases in
contribution rates. The City elected to amortize the maximum allowable ERS and PFRS
contributions for the 2017 fiscal year. The current year cost and balance due are noted in the

table below.
Original Current Principal Principal
Amount Year Balance Due Within
Amortized Payments Due One Year
2010 ERS $ 340,169 $ 44,054 $ 119,969 $ 38,055
2011 ERS 868,074 105,698 385,943 91,225
2011 PFRS 212,999 25,935 94,698 22,384
2012 ERS 1,134,113 132,953 608,884 114,686
2012 PFRS 1,287,368 150,919 691,163 130,184
2013 ERS 1,340,496 140,851 957,782 104,838
2013 PFRS 2,345,883 246,491 1,676,129 183,468
2014 ERS 1,335,823 138,236 1,051,659 101,428
2014 PFRS 1,200,104 124,192 944,810 91,123
2015 ERS 1,012,416 103,601 869,916 74,806
2015 PFRS 111,682 11,429 95,962 8,252
2018 PFRS 930,151 - 930,151 64,395

$ 12,119,278 $§ 1224359 $ 8,427,066 $ 1,024,844

The current year payments were charged to retirement expenditures in the General Fund.
Other Postemployment Benefit Obligations Payable

In addition to providing pension benefits, the City provides certain health care benefits for retired
employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The various collective bargaining
agreements stipulate the employees covered and the percentage of contribution. Contributions by
the City may vary according to length of service. The cost of providing postemployment health care
benefits is shared between the City and the retired employee. Substantially all of the City’s
employee’s may become eligible for those benefits if they reach normal retirement age while
working for the City. The cost of retiree health care benefits is recognized as an
expenditure/expense as claims are paid.

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (‘OPEB”) cost (expense) is calculated based on
the annual required contribution (“ARC”), an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the
parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. GASB Statement No. 45 establishes standards for the
measurement, recognition and display of the expenses and liabilities for retirees’ medical
insurance. As a result, reporting of expenses and liabilities will no longer be done under the “pay-
as-you-go” approach. Instead of expensing the current year premiums paid, a per capita claims
cost will be determined, which will be used to determine a “normal cost”, an “actuarial accrued
liability”, and ultimately the ARC. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing
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basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
over a period not to exceed thirty years.

Actuarial valuations for OPEB plans involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. These amounts are subject to
continual revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about
the future. Calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under the terms of the
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. In addition, the assumptions and
projections utilized do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future.
The actuarial calculations of the OPEB plan reflect a long-term perspective.

The City is required to accrue on the government-wide financial statements the amounts necessary
to finance the plan as actuarially determined, which is equal to the balance not paid by plan
members. Funding for the Plan has been established on a pay-as-you-go basis. The assumed
rates of increase in post-retirement benefits are as follows:

Year Ended

December 31, Medical
2018 8.0 %
2019 7.5
2020 7.0
2021 6.5
2022 6.0
2023 55
2024+ 5.0

The amortization basis is the level percentage of payroll method with an open amortization
approach with 22 years remaining in the amortization period. The actuarial assumptions include a
4.5% investment rate of return. The City currently has no assets set aside for the purpose of
paying postemployment benefits. The actuarial cost method utilized was the projected unit credit
method.

The number of participants as of December 31, 2017 was as follows:

Active Employees 726
Retired Employees 298
1,024
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Amortization Component:
Actuarial Accrued Liability as of January 1, 2017
Assets at Market Value

Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability ("UAAL")
Funded Ratio
Covered Payroll (active plan members)
UAAL as a Percentage of Covered Payroll

Annual Required Contribution
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation
Adjustments to Annual Required Contribution

Annual OPEB Cost
Contributions Made *

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - Beginning of Year
Net OPEB Obiligation - End of Year

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the

161,460,000

161,460,000

0.00%

62,010,000

260.38%

17,620,000
3,220,000
(4,210,000)

16,630,000
(3,890,000)

12,740,000
71,620,000

84,360,000

net OPEB obligation for the current and two preceding years is as follows:

Fiscal Percentage of
Year Ended Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
December 31, OPEB Cost Cost Contributed Obligation
2017 $ 16,630,000 23.40 $ 84,360,000
2016 15,570,000 22.50 71,620,000
2015 13,280,000 24.60 61,360,000

The schedule of funding progress for the OPEB plan immediately following the notes to the financial
statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of the plan
assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liability for the benefits over time.

F. Significant Commitments - Encumbrances

As discussed in Note 2.A, Budgetary Data, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent
necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash
planning and control. At December 31, 2017, the amount of encumbrances expected to be

honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year were as follows:

General Fund

45
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G.

Revenues and Expenditures

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers are defined as the flow of assets, such as cash or goods and services, without
the equivalent flow of assets in return. The interfund transfers reflected below have been

reflected as transfers:

Transfers In

Debt
General Service
Transfer Out Fund Fund Total
General Fund $ - $ 2418,084 $ 2,418,084
Capital Projects Fund - 4,103 4,103
Water Fund 712,996 - 712,996

$ 712996 $ 2422187 $ 3,135,183

Transfers are used to 1) move funds from the General Fund to the Debt Service Fund as debt
service principal and interest payments become due, 2) move funds from the Community
Development Fund to the General Fund to satisfy interfund obligations, 3) move surplus revenues
from the Water Fund to the General Fund and 4) move amounts earmarked in the operating
funds to fulfill commitments for Capital Projects Fund expenditures.

Net Position
The components of net position are detailed below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets - the component of net position that reports the difference
between capital assets less both the accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balance of
debt, excluding unexpended proceeds, that is directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or improvement of those assets.

Restricted for Community Development - the component of net position that reports the difference
between assets and liabilities of the Community Development Funds with constraints placed on
their use by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

Restricted for Capital Projects - the component of net position that reports the amounts restricted
for capital projects less unexpended bonds proceeds and unrestricted interest earnings.

Restricted for Liability and Casualty Claims - the component of net position that has been
established to set aside funds to be used for the payment of future claims made upon the Board
of Water Supply of the City of Mount Vernon, New York in accordance with Section 6n of the
General Municipal Law of the State of New York.

Restricted for Debt Service - the component of net position that reports the difference between
assets and liabilities with constraints placed on their use by Local Finance Law.
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Restricted for Industrial Development Agency - the component of net position that represents
funds restricted for acquiring or constructing various business and recreational facilities and
advance job opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the people of the
City of Mount Vernon.

Unrestricted - all other amounts that do not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net investment in
capital assets".
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l. Fund Balances

Nonspendable:
Prepaid expenditures
Inventory

Total Nonspendable

Restricted:
Workers' compensation benefits
Capital projects
Liability and casualty claims
Debt service
Debt service - for subsequent year's expenditures
Community development purposes

Total Restricted

Committed:
Additions, betterments and replacements
Maintenance of water supply system

Total Committed

Assigned:

Purchases on order:
General government support
Public safety
Health
Transportation
Economic opportunity

and development

Culture and recreation
Home and community services

Subsequent year's
expenditures from:
General Fund
Future claims
Water Fund

Total Assigned

Unassigned
Subsequent year's
expenditures from:
General Fund
Unassigned

Total Unassigned

Total Fund Balances (Deficits)

2017 2016
Community Capital Debt Community Capital Debt
General Development Projects Water Service General Development Projects Water Service

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
$ 5593471 $ 18,609 $ - - 8 - $ 5612080 $ 4127571 $ 17,795  §$ -8 - 3 268,132 $ 4,413,498
- - - 467,993 - 467,993 - - - 321,696 - 321,696
5,593,471 18,609 - 467,993 - 6,080,073 4,127,571 17,795 - 321,696 268,132 4,735,194
192,282 - - - - 192,282 192,186 - - - - 192,186
- - 4,445,332 - - 4,445,332 - - 4,450,017 - - 4,450,017
- - - 1,691,452 - 1,691,452 - - - 1,631,451 - 1,631,451
- - - - 104,407 104,407 - - - - - -
- - - - 1,936 1,936 - - - - - -
- 723,238 - - - 723,238 - 520,224 - - - 520,224
192,282 723,238 4,445,332 1,691,452 106,343 7,158,647 192,186 520,224 4,450,017 1,631,451 - 6,793,878
- - - 752,140 - 752,140 - - - 502,139 - 502,139
- - - 569,277 - 569,277 - - - 369,277 - 369,277
- - - 1,321,417 - 1,321,417 - - - 871,416 - 871,416
173,151 - - - - 173,151 191,955 - - - - 191,955
111,329 - - - - 111,329 221,101 - - - - 221,101
823 - - - - 823 - - - - - -
4,999 - - - - 4,999 29,311 - - - - 29,311
22,108 - - - - 22,108 21,403 - - - - 21,403
392,154 - - - - 392,154 46,290 - - - - 46,290
22,496 - - - - 22,496 18,704 - - - - 18,704
727,060 - - - - 727,060 528,764 - - - - 528,764
- - - - - - 3,320,818 - - - - 3,320,818

2,273,017 2,273,017

- - - 2,177,484 - 2,177,484 - - - 2,812,996 - 2,812,996
3,000,077 - - 2,177,484 - 5,177,561 3,849,582 - - 2,812,996 - 6,662,578
5,500,000 - - - - 5,500,000 - - - - - -
(3,500,564) - - - - (3,500,564) 6,983,579 - - - (163,672) 6,819,907
1,999,436 - - - - 1,999,436 6,983,579 - - - (163,672) 6,819,907
$ 10785266 $ 741847 $§ 4,445,332 5,658,346 $ 106,343 § 21,737,134 § 15152918 §$ 538,019 § 4,450,017 $ 5637559 § 104,460 $ 25,882,973
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Certain elements of fund balance are described above. Those additional elements which are not
reflected in the statement of net position but are reported in the governmental funds balance
sheet are described below.

Prepaid Expenditures has been established to account for certain payments made in advance.
The amount is classified as nonspendable to indicate that funds are not “available” for
appropriation or expenditure even though they are a component of current assets.

Inventories in the Water Fund have been classified as nonspendable to indicate that a portion of
fund balance is not "available" for expenditure because the asset is in the form of commodities and
the City anticipates utilizing them in the normal course of operations.

The amounts restricted for Workers’ Compensation Benefits have been established to set aside
funds to be used for a specific purpose in accordance with Section 6j of the General Municipal Law
of the State of New York.

The amounts committed for Additions, Betterments and Replacements, established by the City
Council, is used to segregate a portion of fund balance to be utilized for additions, betterments and
replacements of property and equipment. The City Council legislation permits the members of the
Board of Water Supply to set aside $250,000 per year up to a maximum of $1,000,000.

The amounts committed for Maintenance of Water Supply System, established by the City Council,
is used to segregate a portion of fund balance to be utilized for work to be performed on the water
supply system. The City Council legislation permits the members of the Board of Water Supply to
set aside $200,000 per year up to a maximum of $1,000,000.

Purchases on order are assigned and represent the City’s intention to honor the contracts in
process at year-end. The subsequent year’s appropriations will be amended to provide authority to
complete the transactions.

Subsequent year's expenditures represent that at December 31, 2017, the City Council has
assigned the above amounts to be appropriated for the ensuing year’s budget.

Unassigned fund balance in the General Fund represents amounts not classified as nonspendable,
restricted, committed or assigned.

Note 4 - Summary Disclosure of Significant Contingencies

A.

Litigation

The City, in common with other municipalities, receives notices of claims for money damages
occurring from false arrest, civil rights violations, wrongful death, property damage, negligence,
personal injury, improper practice charges, wrongful termination and employment discrimination.
The filing of such claims commences a statutory period for initiating judicial action. Currently, the
City is a defendant in numerous actions with varying degrees of monetary exposure ranging from
$100,000 to $15,000,000 per case. Certain cases were adjudicated against the City; however, the
City continues to vigorously defend these cases and has filed its appeals when deemed
appropriate. The City’'s claims administrator has reviewed the status of the cases and has
determined the City’s exposure has been reflected in the government-wide financial statements.
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The City is also defendant in numerous tax certiorari proceedings, the results of which generally
require tax refunds on the part of the City. Any refunds resulting from adverse settlements will be
funded in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

B. Other Contingencies

The City participates in various Federal grant programs, principal of which are programs of the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development. These programs are subject to program
compliance audits pursuant to the Uniform Guidance. The amount of expenditures which may be
disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City anticipates
such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

C. Risk Management

The City purchases conventional insurance coverages to reduce its exposure to loss. The City
purchases property insurance on a replacement cost basis. The City maintains general, law
enforcement and auto liability insurance with limits of $10 million, excess of a self-insured
retention (“SIR”). From 2010 to the present, the City has a $350,000 SIR, except for the 2014/15
policy year which had an SIR of $250,000. The City also maintains public officials
liability/employment practice liability insurance with coverage of $10 million, excess an SIR of
$100,000 per occurrence for claims since 2010. The City purchases excess workers’
compensation coverage, excess of $700,000 SIR. All open or paid claims have not exceeded the
coverage limits in any of the past three fiscal years.

Note 5 - Additional Disclosure

Mount Vernon Housing Authority

The Mount Vernon Housing Authority (“Authority”) operated a 500 unit five building housing complex known
as Levister Towers. Unpaid real property taxes, excluding penalties and interest, due the City dating back
to 1987 totaled $2,607,585. The Authority was also obligated to the City for unpaid utilities charges totaling
$858,000.

On July 17, 2001, the Authority sold its property to a private developer. Under the terms of the sale, the
developer entered into an installment agreement with the City that provided for the repayment of the
outstanding property taxes and utilities charges over a ten year period, without interest. The developer
had defaulted on each of the annual installment payments due since July 2002. Certain minimal
payments were made in 2011 and 2013. The City has reflected an allowance for the remaining unpaid
amounts in the General Fund.

Note 6 - Tax Abatements

The City has real property tax abatement agreements with housing development and redevelopment
companies organized pursuant to Article V or Article Xl of the Private Housing Finance Law of the State
of New York ("PHFL") for the purpose of creating or preserving affordable housing in the City.

50

151



City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 6 - Tax Abatements (Continued)

Generally, these agreements provide for a 100 percent abatement of real property taxes in exchange for
a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT) based on a percentage of shelter rents, and continue until the
property no longer provides the required affordable housing or no longer complies with the requirements
of the PHFL.

The City also has real property tax abatement agreements pursuant to Section 412-a of the Real
Property Tax Law for the purpose of acquiring a leasehold interest in certain land for improvements.
These agreements induce a Company to acquire, renovate, construct, and equip the Project.

Copies of the agreements may be obtained from the City. Information relevant to disclosure of these
agreements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 is as follows:

Taxable

Assessed Tax Tax PILOT Taxes

Start Date Agreement Value Rate Value Received Abated
9/1/2015 Levister Towers $ 862,000 $ 0.39597 $ 341,326 $ 93,184 $ 248,142
12/1/2015 Petrillo 112,660 0.39597 44,610 32,031 12,579
1/1/1983  Wartburgh 3,618,200 0.39597 1,432,699 73,226 1,359,473
12/1/2020 Ebony Gardens 311,650 0.39597 123,404 345,580 -
12/31/2015 Greater Centennial Homes 354,080 0.39597 140,205 - 140,205
$ 5,258,590 $ 2082244 $ 544,021 $ 1,760,399

Note 7 - Subsequent Events

Rehabilitation of Storm Sewer System

In September 2020, the Federal District Court ordered the City to bring its polluting storm system into
compliance with the Clean Water Act. The filing alleged that since at least January 2012 the City has
failed to comply with permit obligations and has allowed raw sewage to flow into its storm sewer system,
which then discharges into the Hutchinson and Bronx Rivers. The City’s Department of Public Works
Commissioner estimated the total cost to rehabilitate the entire system would range from approximately
$124 million to $199 million.

In 2022, the New York State Governor announced a $150 million investment for water and sewer
infrastructure in Mount Vernon. An additional $3 million in federal funding was allocated to assist
residents impacted by the sewer and water infrastructure crisis through the Governor’'s Office of Storm
Recovery Healthy Homes pilot program.

In addition, in August 2022, the City was awarded $10 million from the Water Quality Improvement
Project administered by the New York State Department of Environmental Conservation.

Mount Vernon City School District (“School District”) Taxes
Beginning in 2018, the City Comptroller’s office delayed payments to vendors, including tax payments to
the School District. The School District has identified approximately $11.7 million in back taxes not

received from the City that relate to tax years 2017 through 2019. The City has identified approximately
$11 million of these back taxes as uncollected from the taxpayers. In response to the delayed payments
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
December 31, 2017

Note 7 - Subsequent Events (Continued)

from 2018-2020, the School District elected to take over the billing and collection of school taxes
effective with its’s 2020-21 fiscal year. However, since the School District has no authority to lien
properties for unpaid taxes, the School District must submit a certified listing of unpaid taxes for the
2020-21 fiscal year to the City for relevy on the City’s 2023 tax bills. (i.e., two year old taxes). The City
would have been required to make the School District whole (with certain exceptions) for these taxes
prior to the end of the School District’s fiscal year end of June 30, 2023. These 2020-21 School District
unpaid taxes aggregate to approximately $5.9 million. While this process was supposed to be under
way, we have been advised by City officials that a listing of unpaid 2020-21 taxes has not been certified
and provided to the City.

Vendor Payments

After fiscal year end December 31, 2017, the City Comptroller's office began delaying payments to
vendors. Subsequently, the City Comptroller’s office issued a financial report on July 7, 2022 that has
identified an estimated $60 million of unpaid bills relating to New York State health insurance, New York
State Retirement System and various other vendors.

New York State Office of the State Comptroller (“NYS OSC”) - Report of Examination of the City of
Mount Vernon

The NYS OSC conducted an examination of the City’s finances for the period January 1, 2018 through
September 30, 2020 and extended their audit period back to January 1, 2017. The NYS OSC report
dated January 2022, identified internal control deficiencies relating to electronic disbursements,
withdrawals and uncollected property taxes. The report can be accessed at wwe1.0sc.state.ny.us.

Bond Anticipation Notes

The City, in November 2023, issued bond anticipation notes for various purposes in the amount of
$3,204,456 with an interest rate of 6.5% that will mature in November 2024.

Note 8 - Recently Issued GASB Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities,” improved guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those activities should be reported.
The Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities. The focus of the criteria is on (a)
whether a government controls the assets of the fiduciary activity and (b) the beneficiaries with whom a
fiduciary relationship exists. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2018.

GASB Statement No. 87, “Leases,” as amended by GASB Statement No. 95, “Postponement of the
Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance,” established a single model for lease accounting
based on the concept that leases are a financing of a “right-to-use” underlying asset. As such, this
Statement requires a lessee to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset. A
lessor will be required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. The
requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Notes to Financial Statements (Concluded)
December 31, 2017

Note 8 - Recently Issued GASB Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 96, “Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements” provides guidance
on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements
(“SBITAs”) for government end users. This Statement defines a SBITA and establishes that a SBITA
results in a right-to-use subscription asset (intangible asset) and a corresponding liability. The Statement
also provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA, as well as detailing the requirements for note disclosures regarding a
SBITA. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2022.

GASB Statement No. 101, “Compensated Absences”, provides guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for compensated absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance under a
unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. The requirements of this
Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023.

This is not an all-inclusive list of recently issued GASB pronouncements but rather a listing of Statements
that the City believes will most impact its financial statements. The City will evaluate the impact this and

other pronouncements may have on its financial statements and will implement them as applicable and
when material.

* k k k %
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Required Supplementary Information - Schedule of Funding Progress

Other Post Employment Benefits
Last Three Fiscal Years

Unfunded
Actuarial Unfunded Liability as
Actuarial a Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assets Liability Liability Ratio Payroll Payroll
January 1,2015 § - $ 131,450,000 131,450,000 - % $ 55,360,000 237.45 %
January 1, 2016 - 151,111,000 151,111,000 - 61,350,000 246.31
January 1, 2017 - 161,460,000 161,460,000 - 62,010,000 260.38
See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Required Supplementary Information
New York State and Local Employees' Retirement System
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (2)

2017 2016 2015

City's proportion of the net

pension liability 0.0778000% 0.0802498% 0.0813849%
City's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 7,310,258 § 12,880,315 § 2,749,381
City's covered payroll $ 19,679,508 § 20,843,445 § 21,254,838
City's proportionate share of the

net pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 37.15% 61.80% 12.94%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 94.70% 90.70% 97.90%

Schedule of Contributions
2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 3,161,136 $ 3,762,662 $ 3,356,410
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (3,161,136) (3,762,662) (3,356,410)
Contribution excess $ - 3 - 3% -
City's covered payroll $ 20,169,013 $ 18,764,023 $ 19,134,374
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 15.67% 20.05% 17.54%

(1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions."

(2) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31 measurement
date within the current fiscal year.

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Required Supplementary Information

New York State and Local Police and Fire Retirement System

Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

Schedule of the City's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (2)

2017 2016 2015

City's proportion of the net

pension liability 0.7983856% 0.8552386% 0.8663737%
City's proportionate share of the

net pension liability $ 16,547,755 § 25,321,793 § 2,384,776
City's covered payroll $ 35,408,391 § 28,897,760 $ 27,752,986
City's proportionate share of the

net pension liability as a percentage

of its covered payroll 46.73% 87.63% 8.59%
Plan fiduciary net position as a

percentage of the total pension liability 93.50% 90.20% 99.00%

Schedule of Contributions
2017 2016 2015

Contractually required contribution $ 6,663,870 $ 5,749,156 $ 6,185,009
Contributions in relation to the

contractually required contribution (6,663,870) (5,749,156) (6,185,009)
Contribution excess $ - 9 - % -
City's covered payroll $ 33,440,029 $ 30,102,307 $ 28,909,815
Contributions as a percentage of

covered payroll 19.93% 19.10% 21.39%

(1) Data not available prior to fiscal year 2015 implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 68, "Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions."
(2) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the March 31 measurement

date within the current fiscal year.

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Taxes receivable
City taxes
County taxes
Relevied water rents
School district taxes
Property acquired for taxes

Allowance for uncollectible taxes

Other receivables
Accounts, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $313,748 in 2017 and 2016
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

Prepaid expenditures

Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Due to other governments

Due to school district

Due to other funds

Overpayments

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred tax revenues
Taxes collected in advance

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balance

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
$ 15,812,959 $ 24,191,330
4,879,460 4,483,963
1,851,541 1,781,436
986,251 1,073,196
3,825,482 3,094,319
3,874,421 3,940,716
15,417,155 14,373,630
(8,034,238) (7,706,985)
7,382,917 6,666,645
2,438,786 2,119,107
2,462,140 1,747,901
889,271 873,261
3,483,067 155,407
9,273,264 4,895,676
5,593,471 4,127,571
$ 38,062,611 $ 39,881,222
2,242,619 2,328,715
2,921,875 5,695,935
429,979 477,764
3,164,391 1,529,169
9,506,504 6,467,559
1,798,084 1,707,447
20,063,452 18,206,589
6,632,229 5,954,713
581,664 567,002
7,213,893 6,521,715
27,277,345 24,728,304
5,593,471 4,127,571
192,282 192,186
3,000,077 3,628,764
1,999,436 7,204,397
10,785,266 15,152,918
38,062,611 $ 39,881,222
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

Years Ended December 31,

2017
Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES
Real property taxes $ 59,003436 $ 59,003436 $ 59,374,493 $ 371,057
Other tax items 3,255,289 3,255,289 4,499,892 1,244,603
Non-property taxes 20,300,000 20,300,000 22,277,442 1,977,442
Departmental income 4,340,800 4,392,511 3,991,493 (401,018)
Intergovernmental charges 1,190,000 1,364,791 1,501,000 136,209
Use of money and property 745,000 745,000 718,583 (26,417)
Licenses and permits 1,322,500 1,322,500 1,183,286 (139,214)
Fines and forfeitures 3,404,500 3,404,500 3,273,574 (130,926)
Sale of property and
compensation for loss 23,500 23,500 220,403 196,903
State aid 8,607,527 9,673,523 10,391,187 717,664
Federal aid 43,000 1,384,258 1,368,058 (16,200)
Miscellaneous 136,000 180,920 2,353,831 2,172,911
Total Revenues 102,371,552 105,050,228 111,153,242 6,103,014
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government support 18,560,042 18,647,467 18,981,671 (334,204)
Public safety 38,842,182 38,879,666 44,419,963 (5,540,297)
Health 353,244 437,473 436,650 823
Transportation 1,782,259 1,782,259 1,702,090 80,169
Economic opportunity
and development 763,563 1,206,139 1,262,762 (56,623)
Culture and recreation 3,821,962 5,248,095 5,786,924 (538,829)
Home and community services 7,148,976 7,591,511 8,078,702 (487,191)
Employee benefits 33,080,822 33,240,291 33,147,044 93,247
Total Expenditures 104,353,050 107,032,901 113,815,806 (6,782,905)
Excess (Deficiency) of
Revenues Over Expenditures (1,981,498) (1,982,673) (2,662,564) (679,891)
OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 1,000,000 1,000,000 712,996 (287,004)
Transfers out (2,868,084) (2,868,084) (2,418,084) 450,000
Total Other Financing Uses (1,868,084) (1,868,084) (1,705,088) 162,996
SPECIAL ITEM - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance (3,849,582) (3,850,757) (4,367,652) (516,895)
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 3,849,582 3,850,757 15,152,918 11,302,161
End of Year $ - 3% - $ 10785266 $ 10,785,266

See independent auditors' report.
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2016

Original Final Variance with

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
58,465,792 $§ 58,465,792 $§ 60,040,591 $ 1,574,799
2,911,986 2,911,986 5,334,344 2,422,358
19,900,000 19,900,000 20,610,056 710,056
4,378,800 4,429,224 4,502,256 73,032
520,000 710,064 1,224,729 514,665
750,000 750,000 738,445 (11,555)
1,684,500 1,684,500 1,096,922 (587,578)
3,507,500 3,507,500 3,204,179 (303,321)
26,000 26,000 23,724 (2,276)
8,504,678 9,155,354 9,761,574 606,220
32,500 1,326,353 1,311,853 (14,500)
156,000 185,062 330,122 145,060
100,837,756 103,051,835 108,178,795 5,126,960
18,027,388 16,343,993 15,996,397 347,596
38,689,119 44,954,664 44,684,880 269,784
351,350 744,892 744,347 545
1,737,809 1,565,033 1,526,872 38,161
710,940 1,217,272 1,174,562 42,710
3,649,525 5,643,353 5,539,538 103,815
6,454,970 6,770,722 6,722,213 48,509
31,653,366 30,927,383 30,922,844 4,539
101,274,467 108,167,312 107,311,653 855,659
(436,711) (5,115,477) 867,142 5,982,619
1,056,684 1,086,680 434,701 (651,979)
(2,971,472) (3,994,357) (3,994,357) -
(1,914,788) (2,907,677) (3,559,656) (651,979)
- - (1,400,811) (1,400,811)
(2,351,499) (8,023,154) (4,093,325) 3,929,829
2,351,499 8,023,154 19,246,243 11,223,089
- 3% - $ 15152918 $ 15,152,918
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget

Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actuals for 2016)

REAL PROPERTY TAXES

OTHER TAX ITEMS

Interest and penalties on real property taxes
Payments in lieu of taxes

Gain/(Loss) on sale of tax acquired property
Real estate transfer tax

NON-PROPERTY TAXES
Utilities gross receipts taxes
Cable television franchise taxes
Sales taxes

DEPARTMENTAL INCOME

Parking meter and permit fees

Red light camera demonstration program
Charges for tax advertising
Comptroller's fees

City Clerk fees

Police Department fees

Fire Department fees

Animal shelter fees

Safety inspection fees

Vital statistics

Public works fees

Bus shelter and scale fees

Park and recreation charges

Zoning and Planning Board fees
Sewer rents

Emergency Tenant Protection charges

Participant's contributions - Nutrition programs

Other departmental income

Original Final Variance with 2016

Budget Budget Actual Final Budget Actual
59,003,436 59,003,436 59,374,493 $ 371,057 60,040,591
1,255,000 1,255,000 1,069,708 (185,292) 1,429,790
500,289 500,289 544,021 43,732 489,035
- - (36,461) (36,461) 1,174,133
1,500,000 1,500,000 2,922,624 1,422,624 2,241,386
3,255,289 3,255,289 4,499,892 1,244,603 5,334,344
850,000 850,000 827,291 (22,709) 765,975
1,100,000 1,100,000 1,185,701 85,701 1,146,521
18,350,000 18,350,000 20,264,450 1,914,450 18,697,560
20,300,000 20,300,000 22,277,442 1,977,442 20,610,056
2,100,000 2,100,000 1,834,555 (265,445) 2,041,820
890,000 890,000 828,517 (61,483) 1,150,422
55,000 55,000 8,250 (46,750) 33,500
565,200 565,200 449,699 (115,501) 608,830
12,300 12,300 59,075 46,775 14,210
25,500 25,500 23,890 (1,610) 28,767
700 700 139 (561) 155
10,000 13,706 8,376 (5,330) 17,304
145,000 145,000 233,570 88,570 42,435
35,000 35,000 33,959 (1,041) 35,715
56,000 56,000 54,508 (1,492) 52,197
115,000 115,000 91,030 (23,970) 117,085
85,000 114,868 99,034 (15,834) 76,978
40,500 40,500 15,640 (24,860) 24,490
40,000 40,000 42,887 2,887 43,058
70,000 70,000 72,322 2,322 70,513
- 18,137 18,137 - 21,898
95,600 95,600 117,905 22,305 122,879
4,340,800 4,392,511 3,991,493 (401,018) 4,502,256
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INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES

County prisoner transportation

Police Department services

Administrative charges - Industrial Development Agency
Other

USE OF MONEY AND PROPERTY

Earnings on investments

Earnings on investments - Restricted to
workers' compensation benefits

Rentals of real property

Commissions

LICENSES AND PERMITS
Business and occupational licenses
Dog licenses and apportionment
Public safety permits

Building permits

Street opening permits

Plumbing permits

Other permits

FINES AND FORFEITURES
Fines and forfeited bail
Forfeiture of deposits

SALE OF PROPERTY AND COMPENSATION FOR LOSS
Sale of scrap

Sale of real property

Insurance recoveries

Other compensation for loss

180,000 180,000 179,734 (266) 175,733
1,000,000 1,005,162 1,141,224 136,062 812,048
- 7,835 7,835 - 7,167
10,000 171,794 172,207 413 229,781
1,190,000 1,364,791 1,501,000 136,209 1,224,729
40,000 40,000 42,498 2,498 58,755
- - 96 96 77
695,000 695,000 660,637 (34,363) 668,192
10,000 10,000 15,352 5,352 11,421
745,000 745,000 718,583 (26,417) 738,445
110,500 110,500 91,098 (19,402) 110,141
1,000 1,000 1,024 24 1,152
45,000 45,000 50,490 5,490 43,785
875,000 875,000 583,594 (291,406) 534,656
61,000 61,000 159,051 98,051 87,419
75,000 75,000 86,095 11,095 88,929
155,000 155,000 211,934 56,934 230,840
1,322,500 1,322,500 1,183,286 (139,214) 1,096,922
3,404,500 3,404,500 3,273,274 (131,226) 3,203,479
- - 300 300 700
3,404,500 3,404,500 3,273,574 (130,926) 3,204,179
1,500 1,500 656 (844) 424
- - - - 10,000
20,000 20,000 219,066 199,066 10,915
2,000 2,000 681 (1,319) 2,385
23,500 23,500 220,403 196,903 23,724
(Continued)
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Revenues and Other Financing Sources Compared to Budget (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actuals for 2016)

STATE AID

Per capita

Mortgage tax

Unified court system

Public safety grant

Mental health - Westchester County
Youth programs

Supplemental nutrition assistance program
Comprehensive adolescent pregnancy prevention program
BOA program grant

Veteran's services

Environmental Facilities

Other

FEDERAL AID

Civil defense

Programs for the aging

Workforce investment act

Police probation ride along grant

21st century community learning centers grant

Farmers' market promotion program

Comprehensive adolescent pregnancy prevention program
Nutrition for the elderly - Title 11IC

MISCELLANEOUS

Refund of prior year's expenditures
Gifts and donations
Other

TOTAL REVENUES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Water Fund

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES

See independent auditors' report.

Original Final Variance with 2016
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget Actual
7,115,691 $ 7,115,691 $ 7,155,691 $ 40,000 7,155,691
850,000 850,000 1,430,723 580,723 1,181,912
- - - - 79,150
250,000 250,000 348,212 98,212 124,596
391,836 507,178 507,331 153 388,872
- 262,117 262,117 - 285,687
- 90,570 92,061 1,491 106,353
- 136,631 136,631 - 221,871
- 441,363 441,363 - 197,442
- - 17,058 17,058 -
- - - - 20,000
- 19,973 - (19,973) -
8,607,527 9,673,523 10,391,187 717,664 9,761,574
25,000 25,000 - (25,000) -
18,000 24,684 24,684 - 21,714
- 211,969 211,969 - 259,331
- - - - 33,973
- 828,904 828,904 - 736,783
- 10,000 18,800 8,800 10,000
- 145,083 145,083 - 124,208
- 138,618 138,618 - 125,844
43,000 1,384,258 1,368,058 (16,200) 1,311,853
25,000 25,000 2,201,012 2,176,012 183,618
100,000 144,920 144,920 - 142,050
11,000 11,000 7,899 (3,101) 4,454
136,000 180,920 2,353,831 2,172,911 330,122
102,371,552 105,050,228 111,153,242 6,103,014 108,178,795
1,000,000 1,000,000 712,996 (287,004) 434,701
103,371,552 § 106,050,228 $ 111,866,238 $ 5,816,010 108,613,496
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, Other Financing Uses and Special Item Compared to Budget
Year Ended December 31, 2017

(With Comparative Actuals for 2016)

Original Final Variance with 2016
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget Actual
GENERAL GOVERNMENT SUPPORT
City Council $ 292,045 $ 292,045 197,602 $ 94,443 $ 235,145
Board of Estimate and Contract 3,000 3,000 1,112 1,888 342
Mayor 498,258 498,258 326,112 172,146 347,435
Department of Finance 1,374,758 1,374,758 1,484,978 (110,220) 1,448,772
Inspector General - - - - (5,210)
Assessment and Taxation 341,808 341,808 295,015 46,793 275,298
Expenses on City owned property 375,000 375,000 392,928 (17,928) 461,026
City Clerk 519,484 519,484 515,663 3,821 448,867
Law 1,233,879 1,233,879 2,582,784 (1,348,905) 1,540,563
Civil service 215,763 215,763 192,511 23,252 221,837
Personnel 162,988 162,989 127,305 35,684 111,051
Elections 123,024 123,024 2,339 120,685 116,880
Bureau of Management Services 871,956 871,956 827,806 44,150 767,152
Engineering 111,329 111,329 112,552 (1,223) 112,588
Public Works Commissioner's office 751,852 751,852 756,205 (4,353) 767,083
Building maintenance 1,104,245 1,104,245 942,380 161,865 940,213
Vehicle maintenance 2,751,915 2,826,915 2,945,770 (118,855) 2,373,196
Special items:
Parking ticket processing fees - - (898) 898 -
Independent audit 89,000 89,000 88,800 200 140,300
Unallocated insurance 980,000 992,424 946,456 45,968 937,719
City-wide electricity charges 1,845,259 1,845,259 1,918,009 (72,750) 1,723,265
City-wide telephone charges 350,000 350,000 357,609 (7,609) 343,262
Municipal association dues 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 876
Judgments and claims 500,000 500,000 1,571,013 (1,071,013) 1,140,025
Taxes on City property 135,000 135,000 119,084 15,916 133,163
Tax certiorari payments 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,990,914 (840,914) 1,182,618
Tax abatements 25,000 25,000 96,477 (71,477) 50,253
Metropolitan commuter transportation mobility tax 180,000 180,000 191,145 (11,145) 182,678
Contingency 2,569,479 2,569,479 - 2,569,479 -
18,560,042 18,647,467 18,981,671 (334,204) 15,996,397
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PUBLIC SAFETY

Police Department

Jail

Animal shelter

Fire Department

Architectural Board of Review
Building Department

Civil defense

HEALTH
Developmentally disabled programs

TRANSPORTATION

Highway maintenance and repair
Maintenance of bridges

Snow removal

Street lighting

Sidewalks

Off-street parking

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY AND DEVELOPMENT

Veteran's services

Consumer affairs

Youth board - Job training

Programs for the aging

Office for the Aging - Elderly nutrition

CULTURE AND RECREATION
Parks and recreation - Administration
Parks and recreation - Maintenance
Playgrounds

Neighborhood facility center

Pools

Youth programs

Youth bureau

Youth centers

Adult education

23,194,158 23,227,936 27,005,842 (3,777,906) 26,327,158
238,733 238,733 269,380 (30,647) 226,045
166,251 169,957 211,831 (41,874) 218,904

14,137,723 14,137,723 15,936,046 (1,798,323) 16,976,234

10,241 10,241 7,563 2,678 8,176
1,004,536 1,004,536 900,747 103,789 845,489
90,540 90,540 88,554 1,986 82,874

38,842,182 38,879,666 44,419,963 (5,540,297) 44,684,880

353,244 437,473 436,650 823 744,347

1,245,032 1,245,032 1,199,221 45,811 1,160,406
10,000 10,000 - 10,000 -
377,786 377,786 319,599 58,187 253,586
117,380 117,380 140,708 (23,328) 92,773
32,061 32,061 37,121 (5,060) 16,082
- - 5,441 (5,441) 4,025
1,782,259 1,782,259 1,702,090 80,169 1,526,872
87,024 87,025 83,871 3,154 46,861
73,653 73,653 72,532 1,121 69,730
835 189,400 189,400 - 253,192
306,609 306,609 308,087 (1,478) 280,063
295,442 549,452 608,872 (59,420) 524,716
763,563 1,206,139 1,262,762 (56,623) 1,174,562
624,606 624,606 674,485 (49,879) 669,868
1,395,630 1,320,630 1,249,451 71,179 1,230,397
214,028 214,029 448,044 (234,015) 376,025
346,977 346,977 387,853 (40,876) 379,296
125,324 125,324 113,823 11,501 96,569
355,944 403,272 763,021 (359,749) 868,817
440,490 441,074 430,214 10,860 478,367
251,010 1,704,230 1,642,660 61,570 1,383,425
67,953 67,953 77,373 (9,420) 56,774
3,821,962 5,248,095 5,786,924 (538,829) 5,539,538

(Continued)
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

General Fund

Schedule of Expenditures, Other Financing Uses and Special Item Compared to Budget (Continued)

Year Ended December 31, 2017
(With Comparative Actuals for 2016)

69T

Original Final Variance with 2016
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget Actual
HOME AND COMMUNITY SERVICES
Zoning Board of Appeals $ 47880 $ 47880 $ 21,700 $ 26,180 $ 22,453
Department of Planning and Development 1,071,588 1,514,562 1,373,111 141,451 490,030
Planning Board 42,260 42,260 17,252 25,008 17,118
ETPA administrative charge 65,000 65,000 61,200 3,800 61,530
Sanitary and storm sewers 818,370 818,369 1,169,502 (351,133) 755,669
Refuse disposal 3,184,911 3,184,911 3,105,983 78,928 3,332,752
Street cleaning 1,895,259 1,895,259 2,312,709 (417,450) 2,034,400
Shade trees 23,708 23,270 17,245 6,025 8,261
7,148,976 7,591,511 8,078,702 (487,191) 6,722,213
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
State retirement 10,667,722 4,100,658 3,510,419 590,239 3,363,931
Police and fire retirement 10,100 6,593,874 7,485,321 (891,447) 6,458,129
Local police and fire retirement - - - - 7,561
Social security 3,926,000 3,994,171 4,202,855 (208,684) 4,183,022
Workers' compensation benefits 934,000 955,158 1,183,727 (228,569) 922,562
Employee assistance program 8,000 8,000 8,000 - 6,000
Unemployment benefits 285,000 286,643 102,753 183,890 235,601
Health and dental insurance 17,250,000 17,301,787 16,653,969 647,818 15,746,038
33,080,822 33,240,291 33,147,044 93,247 30,922,844
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 104,353,050 107,032,901 113,815,806 (6,782,905) 107,311,653
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out
Capital Projects Fund 450,000 450,000 - 450,000 1,472,885
Debt Service Fund 2,418,084 2,418,084 2,418,084 - 2,521,472
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING USES 2,868,084 2,868,084 2,418,084 450,000 3,994,357
SPECIAL ITEM - - - - 1,400,811
TOTAL EXPENDITURES, OTHER
FINANCING USES AND SPECIAL ITEM $ 107,221,134 $ 109,900,985 $ 116,233,890 $ (6,332,905) $ 112,706,821

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Community Development Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts, net of allowance for uncollectible amount
of $43,008 in 2017
State and Federal aid
Due from other governments
Mortgages, net of allowance for uncollectible
amounts of $882,509 in 2017 and 2016

Prepaid expenditures
Total Assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accrued liabilities
Due to other governments
Unearned revenues

Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred mortgage principal repayments

Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balance

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
1,161,374 670,473
- 51,871
77,149 187,985
358 358
3,930,750 4,226,407
4,008,257 4,466,621
18,609 17,795
5,188,240 5,154,889
352,389 336,426
775 -
162,479 54,037
515,643 390,463
3,930,750 4,226,407
4,446,393 4,616,870
18,609 17,795
723,238 520,224
741,847 538,019
5,188,240 5,154,889




City of Mount Vernon, New York

Community Development Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES

Departmental income

Use of money and property
Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current
Home and community services

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures
SPECIAL ITEM
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
$ 367,524 $ 9,417
193 -

1,383,337 2,214,994

- 952,572

1,751,054 3,176,983
1,547,226 2,229,533
203,828 947,450

- 1,400,811

203,828 2,348,261
538,019 (1,810,242)

$ 741,847 $ 538,019
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
State and Federal aid
Due from other funds

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Due to other funds
Unearned revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund balance
Restricted

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
2,803,934 2,964,866
41,910 114,627
589,766 528,401
1,660,399 1,640,426
2,292,075 2,283,454
5,096,009 5,248,320
492,052 669,581
31,839 1,936
126,786 126,786
650,677 798,303
4,445,332 4,450,017
5,096,009 5,248,320
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Capital Projects Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES

Use of money and property
State aid

Federal aid

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Deficiency of Revenues Over Expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See independent auditors' report.

69

2017 2016
$ 4103 $ 1,936
1,038,877 1,112,152
7,123 124,030

120,467 451,329
1,170,570 1,689,447
1,171,152 2,467,992
(582) (778,545)

- 1,472,885

(4,103) (1,936)

(4,103) 1,470,949

(4,685) 692,404
4,450,017 3,757,613

$ 4445332 $ 4,450,017
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Capital Projects Fund
Project-Length Schedule
Inception of Project Through December 31, 2017

Expenditures and Transfers

Capital Interfund Unexpended

PROJECT Authorization Outlay Transfers Balance
Police Equipment $ 3210632 $ 2379699 $ 555837 $ 275,096
City Hall Computer System Phase |l 730,000 729,737 - 263
Roundabout Construction 1,838,487 1,771,178 - 67,309
Municipal Garage Elevators 750,000 394,873 - 355,127
Demolition of Public Nuisance Buildings 750,000 629,783 - 120,217
Memorial Field Renovations 10,450,000 3,960,007 - 6,489,993
Fourth Street Playground 1,250,000 140,142 - 1,109,858
Streetscape 400,000 26,342 - 373,658
Roof Replacement 750,000 656,693 - 93,307
Computer System Upgrade 325,000 256,252 - 68,748
Police Department 325,000 222,516 - 102,484
Fire - Emergency Operations Center 1,350,090 1,287,707 - 62,383
Fire Vehicles 192,000 186,928 - 5,072
Road Work 275,000 273,034 - 1,966
Parking Garage 750,000 579,949 - 170,051
Parking Garage Scape Entrance 750,000 4,143 - 745,857
Citywide Grounds Upkeep 135,000 134,146 - 854
Citywide Grounds Upkeep 1,105,000 963,224 - 141,776
Street Sewers Citywide 516,050 512,635 - 3,415
Doles Center Renovations 1,411,003 951,139 - 459,864
Armory Renovations 365,000 302,859 - 62,141
Municipal Buildings 650,000 572,151 - 77,849
HVAC 600,000 79,733 - 520,267
Maintenance Vehicle 225,000 218,105 - 6,895
Parking and Building Vehicles 149,700 148,802 - 898
Street Signs 150,000 94,862 - 55,138
License Plate Reader 260,000 241,782 - 18,218
Police Vehicles 150,000 149,471 - 529
Garage Renovation 250,000 57,899 - 192,101
Sanitary Sewers 200,000 198,555 - 1,445
Equipment 35,000 21,072 - 13,928
Resurfacing 3,162,200 2,877,199 - 285,001
YMCA Purchase 750,000 705,118 - 44,882
Parking Meters 180,000 177,600 - 2,400
YMCA Renovation 750,000 451,218 - 298,782
Police Justice Assistance Grant - 2013 52,532 33,301 - 19,231
Police Justice Assistance Grant - 2014 53,492 53,472 - 20
Resurfacing - 2014 1,914,313 1,237,643 - 676,670
Police Justice Assistance Grant - 2011 64,516 64,214 - 302
Con Edison Overtime 440,109 256,802 - 183,307
Police Justice Assistance Grant - 2015 44,380 - - 44,380
Resurfacing - 2015 2,257,273 2,190,517 - 66,756
Police Justice Assistance Grant - 2016 43,494 44,380 - (886)
Resurfacing - 2017 1,188,174 870,913 - 317,261

Totals $ 41,198,445 27,107,795 $ 555837 $ 13,534,813
See independent auditors' report.
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Fund Balance
at
December 31,
Revenues 2017

$ 3,210,592 § 275,056

730,000 263
1,813,919 42,741
750,000 355,127
750,000 120,217
4,150,001 189,994
140,142 -
150,000 123,658
750,000 93,307
325,000 68,748
325,000 102,484
1,350,090 62,383
192,000 5,072
275,000 1,966
750,000 170,051
750,000 745,857
135,000 854
1,081,500 118,276
516,050 3,415
1,406,537 455,398
365,000 62,141
650,000 77,849
600,000 520,267
225,000 6,895
149,700 898
150,000 55,138
260,000 18,218
150,000 529
250,000 192,101
200,000 1,445
35,000 13,928
2,877,199 -
750,000 44,882
180,000 2,400
750,000 298,782
33,301 -
53,472 -
1,237,643 -
64,214 -
471,794 214,992
2,190,517 -
44,380 -
870,913 -

$ 32,108,964 $ 4,445,332
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Water Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

ASSETS
Cash and equivalents

Receivables
Accounts
Water rents
Due from other funds

Inventories
Total Assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities
Due to other funds

Total Liabilities
Fund balance
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
4,085,150 4,117,839
4,165 107,292
4,577,484 4,135,879
574,177 -
5,155,826 4,243,171
467,993 321,696
9,708,969 8,682,706
2,575,897 2,353,042
242,164 573,975
1,232,562 118,130
4,050,623 3,045,147
467,993 321,696
1,691,452 1,631,451
1,321,417 871,416
2,177,484 2,812,996
5,658,346 5,637,559
9,708,969 8,682,706




City of Mount Vernon, New York

Water Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended December 31,

2017 2016
REVENUES
Charges for services $ 9,598,277 9,752,675
Use of money and property 762,516 329,328
Miscellaneous 81,455 510,745
Total Revenues 10,442,248 10,592,748
EXPENDITURES
Current
Home and community services
Water administration 2,616,018 1,966,133
Water purchases 4,777,167 4,537,092
Water treatment 212,561 105,084
Transmission and distribution 1,388,245 961,510
Pumping, supply and power 714,474 718,899
Total Expenditures 9,708,465 8,288,718
Excess of Revenues
Over Expenditures 733,783 2,304,030
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (712,996) (434,701)
Net Change in Fund Balance 20,787 1,869,329
FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year 5,637,559 3,768,230
End of Year $ 5658346 $ 5,637,559

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Debt Service Fund
Comparative Balance Sheet
December 31,

2017 2016
ASSETS
Cash and equivalents $ 150 $ -
Due from other funds 2,440,633 18,446
Prepaid expenditures - 268,132
Total Assets $ 2,440,783 $ 286,578
LIABILITES AND FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT)
Liabilities
Due to other funds $ 2,334,440 $ 182,118
Fund balance (deficit)
Nonspendable - 268,132
Restricted 106,343 -
Unassigned - (163,672)
Total Fund Balance 106,343 104,460
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,440,783 $ 286,578

See independent auditors' report.
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Debt Service Fund

Comparative Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and

Changes in Fund Balance
Years Ended December 31,

REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Serial bonds
Principal
Interest
Refunding bond issuance costs

Total Expenditures

Deficiency of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Refunding bonds issued

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent
Issuance premium

Transfers in

Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance

FUND BALANCE
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See independent auditors' report.

2017

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
- - - $ -
1,700,000 1,700,000 1,700,000 -
720,294 720,294 720,304 (10)
2,420,294 2,420,294 2,420,304 (10)
(2,420,294) (2,420,294) (2,420,304) (10)
2,418,084 2,418,084 2,422,187 4,103
2,418,084 2,418,084 2,422,187 4,103
(2,210) (2,210) 1,883 4,093
2,210 2,210 104,460 102,250

- - 106,343 § 106,343
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2016

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
- - - -
1,670,000 1,670,000 1,630,000 40,000
855,669 855,669 811,865 43,804

- 146,641 130,131 16,510
2,525,669 2,672,310 2,571,996 100,314
(2,525,669) (2,672,310) (2,571,996) 100,314
- 6,765,000 6,765,000 -

- (7,120,494) (7,120,494) -

- 502,135 502,135 -
2,521,472 2,521,472 2,523,408 1,936
2,521,472 2,668,113 2,670,049 1,936
(4,197) (4,197) 98,053 102,250
4,197 4,197 6,407 2,210

- $ - 9% 104,460 $ 104,460
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences
Comparative Statement of Net Position
December 31,

ASSETS
Current assets
Due from other funds

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Current portion of compensated absences

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences, less current portion

Total Liabilities

See independent auditors' report.

77

2017 2016

$ 4,947,069 $ 4,955464
495,000 496,000
4,452,069 4,459,464

$ 4,947,069 $ 4,955464
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences

Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position

Years Ended December 31,

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

OPERATING EXPENSES
Employee benefits

Income from Operations

NET POSITION
Beginning of Year

End of Year

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
8,395 § 726,552
8,395 726,552

- $ -
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City of Mount Vernon, New York

Internal Service Fund - Compensated Absences
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31,

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from other funds
Payments to employees

Net Cash from Operating Activities

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Beginning of Year

End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF INCOME FROM OPERATIONS TO

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income from operations
Adjustments to reconcile income from operations to
net cash from operating activities
Changes in assets and liabilities
Due from other funds
Compensated absences

Net Cash from Operating Activities

See independent auditors' report.
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2017 2016
8,395 423,000
(8,395) (423,000)
8,395 (726,552)
(8,395) 726,552
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